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COMPANY PROFILE

EEY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BITES Executive Directors

FREEAE (EE) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman)

SRR S A (T A2 Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (Chief Executive)

= W (AE4HE) Ms. Qin Ling (General Manager)
(MZZB-=F=A+XxBE/E) (resigned on 16 March 2023)

B RoA (48457 ) Mr. Liu Min (General Manager)
(RZZE-=F=A T HEZT (appointed as General Manager on 16 March 2023)
RIS )

> Erx Ms. Li Tao

FEHITES Non-executive Directors

fR 44 Ms. Chen Hong

RIBRTAE Mr. Zhang Daoyuan
(RZZE-=FA-HEZT) (appointed on 2 June 2023)

BYKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

2 ks Mr. Liu Jin
(RZEZ=F XA -HEFT) (resigned on 2 June 2023)

THRELAE Mr. Li Liuging

i Bt Ms. Zhao Jun
(R=ZZE=_=FA=HEHTL) (resigned on 2 June 2023)

BRERAf 2t Ms. Ou Yaqun

BEEBRLAE Mr. Lei Chunyong
(RZEZ=F - AZHEZMF) (appointed on 2 June 2023)

A it Ms. Zhou Lin
(RNZEZ=FA-HEZT) (appointed on 2 June 2023)

EREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

TRESLE(FE) Mr. Li Liuging (Chairman)

BEBRLAE Mr. Lei Chunyong

A #zt Ms. Zhou Lin

FMWEES REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

B Wzt (EE) Ms. Zhou Lin (Chairlady)

RS ST E Mr. Zhang Yingcen

BRER B¥ 2T Ms. Ou Yaqun
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Company Profile (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman)
Mr. Lei Chunyong
Ms. Zhou Lin

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Min
Ms. Ou Yaqun

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

4th Floor, Tian Lun Group Building,
No.6 Huang He East Road, Zheng Dong Xin District, Zhengzhou City, Henan Province,
The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Unit 4601-02, 46/F, The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong
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Company Profile (Continued)
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Ltd
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor,

Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

KPMG

8th Floor,

Prince’s Building,
10 Chater Road,
Central, Hong Kong
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Company Profile (Continued)

LEGAL ADVISER

Loong & Yeung
Room 1603, 16/F, China Building
29 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
Bank of China Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

A CHS STOCK CODE

01600 01600

REEBRE S INVESTOR RELATIONS

TEE 8637163707151 Telephone : 86 371 6370 7151

& : 86 371 6397 9930 Fax : 86 3716397 9930

EH : ir@tianlungas.com E-mail ir@tianlungas.com

#94E - www.tianlungas.com Website : www.tianlungas.com

ok - HA Address Hong Kong:
BEBEFIR Unit 4601-02, 46/F, The Center
SEKREFR I 99 Queen’s Road Central
IR 4612 4601-02 = Central, Hong Kong
A - Mainland:
AR A F A SN T Department of Investor Relations,
B R FT R 4th Floor, Tian Lun Group Building,
AR BE /SR No.6 Huang He East Road,
Kim&EBEmE Zheng Dong Xin District,
& EBEFEE Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, the PRC

4R © 450003 Zip Code : 450003

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



g (B E1E

BUSINESS REGIONS
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Business Regions (Continued)
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Hebi City, Shilin Industrial Assemble Zone, Heqi Industrial
Assemble Zone, Xuchang City, Xuchange New Area, Shangjie
District in Zhengzhou City, High-tech District in Puyang
City, Minquan County, Song County, Xinye County, Weishi
County, Xinwei Industrial Park, Gangwei New District,
Weibei Technology and Food Industrial Park, Lankao County,
Xichuan County, Baofeng County, Ye County, Wugang City,
Xiping County, Shengiu County, township in Jia County,
township in Xichuan County
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Dunhua City, Panshi City, Da’an City, Jiutai City, Tongyu
County, Zhenlai County, Nong'an County, Changchun Airport
Economic Zone, Yitong Manchu Autonomous County, Qian’an
County, Wangging County
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Huize County, Gejiu City, Guangnan County, Yanshan County,
Ludian County, Hekou County
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Cao County, Shan County, Gaoxin District in Heze City,
Dongming County
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Luzhai County, Guanyang County
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Longhu Town in Chaozhou City, Fuyang Town in Chaozhou
City, Dongfeng Town in Chaozhou City, Chenghai District in
Shantou City, Chaoyang District in Shantou City, Lechang
City
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Qian County, Liquan County, Zizhou County, Mizhi County,
Wubu County
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Xindu District in Chengdu City,

Jintang County in Chengdu City, Mianzhu City
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Datong County, Huzhu County

Pipeline
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Hebi City, Xuchang City, Shangjie
District in Zhengzhou City,
Minguan County, Song County,
Xinye County, Weishi County,
Lankao County, Xichuan County,
Ye County, Wugang City
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& County
Panshi City, Da’an City, Jiutai City,

Baicheng City, Tongyu County,

Zhenlai County, Shuangyang

District in Changchun City
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Baiyin City, Gulang County
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Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



g BERUBRE

OPERATION & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ZEHRE
RETAIL GAS SALES VOLUME
(&7 752K) (0000 m3)

166,835 174,126

156,613

121,774
112,824

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

HR B
GAS SALES STRUCTURE

FA-AEEHENEEAFL IHEAF  EBEAP it
BEBHOREND HMEMRAEIHE26.5%  52.5%  4.5% I
16.5%

During the year, the volume of gas of the Group sold
to residential users, industrial and commercial users,
transportation users, wholesale business accounted for
26.5%, 52.5%, 4.5% and 16.5% of total gas sales volume,
respectively.

o o o ®
M TEERAF ¥ il e

Residential users  Industrial and commercial users  Transportation users ~ Wholesale business
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Operation & Financial Highlights (Continued)

2 ERAF

AGGREGATE CONNECTIONS USERS

(7 ) (users) 5,599,325

5,294,315
4,938,642
4,204,256
3,247,483
> ]
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HRWALERE

STRUCTURE OF REVENUE FROM GAS SALES

FR AEBHENEERF  IBERF  ERF - #t
BEEBHHEEWADBMEBHEEKRA20.9% - 56.7% * 5.7%
$16.7% °

During the year, the revenue from gas sales of the Group
to residential users, industrial and commercial users,
transportation users, wholesale business accounted for
20.9%, 56.7%, 5.7% and 16.7% of total revenue from gas
sales, respectively.

o o o ®
M TEERAF ¥ il e

Residential users  Industrial and commercial users  Transportation users ~ Wholesale business

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Operation & Financial Highlights (Continued)

MBERE
Financial Highlights
2022 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETTT AR®T T
WA & FiE Revenue and profit
RETE VN Revenue 7,542,859 7,725,448
: BR PS8 Al A1 Profit before income tax 670,124 716,026
: FiSH &M Income tax expense 200,852 209,749
FEFE Profit for the year 469,272 506,277
BERERE Assets and liabilities
: ERBNEE Non-current assets 9,976,642 9,945,808
REVEE Current assets 5,982,092 5,744,716
ERBALE Non-current liabilities 5,051,546 3,875,137
: mEAE Current liabilities 5,084,518 5,703,566
WL RIBELEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 1,340,135 964,310
ER Equity
e Share capital 8,511 8,264
R A3 Share premium 341,096 81,317
: e NG =2 Attributable to owners of the Company 5,507,945 5,799,673
FEPE S 1A A Non-controlling interests 314,725 312,148
: frEs Total equity 5,822,670 6,111,821
TR R - EAR NS Earnings per share — basic and diluted 0.45 0.49
: (AR®TT) (RMB)
: IIREE
:  Financial Indicators
: 2022 2023
: RMB’000 RMB’000
: ARKETTT ARET T
EFIE Gross profit margin 18.5% 18.8%
: eI Net profit margin 6.2% 6.6%
BEBEX Assets gearing ratio 63.5% 61.0%
l-lf(A,%E o TEHF Sale of gas 62502‘5 6260;;
REVENUE STRUCTUBE o LIS Wholesale of gas 10.9% 13.3%
i TIiEZ# K Engineering construction 18.7% 13.5%
o RE services
H YA Others 5.4% 6.9%

10 RAMIIZBRERAT 2023EFEHE

FA - ARETEHRER  UBBRER - TRLERRBEES - HMEBHD

WA BIMEBYA 66.3% * 13.3% * 13.5% [26.9% °

During the year, the revenue from retail business of gas, wholesale business of
gas, engineering construction service business and other operation of the Group
accounted for 66.3%, 13.3%, 13.5 and 6.9% of total revenue, respectively.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

SROBA =
Zhang Yingcen, Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

2023 was the first year for China to fully implement the spirit of the 20th
National Congress of the Communist Party of China. It was a critical year
for the implementation of the “14th Five-Year Plan” to inherit the past
and usher in the future. It was also the year when the economy resumed
development after three years of COVID-19 prevention and control. The
economic “report card” achieved by the nation was remarkable. China’s
economy has achieved an upward recovery curve, with GDP growing by 5.2%
year-on-year. Such growth rate remained the leader among the world’s major
economies. At current stage, all authorities across the nation are firmly
implementing the strategy of expanding domestic demand, accelerating the
establishment of a new and more superior open economic system, promoting
smooth connectivity of domestic and international circulation, and making
the road to high-quality development more determined and powerful.

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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The results recorded by Tian Lun Gas in 2023 was inseparable from
the guidance of key national policies. We have achieved high-quality
development of the enterprise while responding to industry trends and
complying with policy changes and contributed to the realization of China’s
energy transformation targets.

We adhere to the principle of safety and the bottom line of safe
development. In 2023, residential gas safety remained the top priority for
urban gas development. In August, the Work Safety Commission of the
State Council issued a notice on the “National Urban Gas Safety Special
Rectification Work Plan”. Tian Lun Gas has taken systematic and beneficial
measures to focus on tackling key problems, comprehensively investigating
and rectifying the risks of the entire gas chain in our operating areas,
thereby further consolidating the foundation of gas safety management.

We focus on the gas industry and enhance the added value of gas services.
At present, the process of China's energy transformation has sped up and
the nation is vigorously developing renewable energy and low-carbon energy
has become an effective starting point to achieve energy transformation.
Based on the basic judgment on the optimization process of China’s current
energy structure, Tian Lun Gas will still focus on grasping the transitional
“golden period” of natural gas in the energy transformation process, as
well as information empowerment and wisdom empowerment so as to take
intelligent manufacturing as the starting point to ensure the sustainable and
healthy development of urban gas as an industry in the long term.

We support the dual carbon goal, and promote new development in the
energy field. In 2023, global energy consumption continued to accelerate
its transformation towards cleanliness, low-carbonization, electrification and
distribution. Tian Lun Gas followed the trend of green energy development,
transformed the traditional single energy service model, launched high-
quality comprehensive energy service projects, further promoted the
transformation from “gas” to “energy”, and aimed to become China’s first-
class green low-carbon energy supplier and service provider.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

OUTLOOK

In 2023, Tian Lun Gas has gone through multiple challenges, while the
high-quality development momentum of its results had not diminished.
Looking forward to the future, Tian Lun Gas will strive to make progress
while maintaining stability, and the pace of high-quality development will be
more determined. Tian Lun Gas is anchored to on its primary gas business
with a more systematic energy supply strategy. At the same time, it actively
develops a synergistic development business involving renewable energy. By
assessing the situation, it actively promotes comprehensive energy service
business, and strives to create value for customers.

Both two major priorities of expanding sales volume and ensuring supply
for people’s livelihood are essential to firmly conduct our primary urban
gas business. For Tian Lun Gas, the growth of residential gas consumption
was relatively stable, while the major increment was in industrial and
commercial gas consumption. With the rapid recovery of the economy and
the implementation of the long-term strategy of the “dual carbon” goal, we
consider that industrial and commercial gas consumption still has great
growth potential. Subsequently, the Company will rely on various localities
to comprehensively promote the “bottled-to-piped-gas” policy, realize all
necessary changes in its operating areas, continue to step up its efforts in
acquiring industrial and commercial users, and combine such measures
with the urban renewal plan to simultaneously promote piped gas coverage
and home access in urban villages, old communities and neighborhoods.
Meanwhile, we believe that promoting the construction of gas pipelines with
high-quality and high standards and improving gas supply capabilities are
the keys to the high-quality development of Tian Lun Gas. The Company
will strengthen its gas supply capabilities by enhancing natural gas source
security and promoting interconnection of urban gas pipeline networks to
meet the needs of users.

Of course, Tian Lun Gas does not only provide high-quality gas supply
services, we will also continue to develop comprehensive energy services
that can create synergies with our primary gas business. In the past two
years, we have been developing in a cleaner and lower-carbon direction.
Relying on our massive urban gas layout across the nation and our long-term
brand reputation, we will develop renewable energy starting with household
photovoltaics, and will also engage in a wider range of comprehensive energy
service to develop energy business based on user needs. We are committed
to creating higher economic and social value for the nation.

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

RE_Z_NF - XeMABEHEZRFM  Looking forward to 2024, Tian Lun Gas will coordinate both development
Za 0 BRITREEEAMREZ 2RI and safety, resolutely shoulder the social responsibility of investigating and
EWEENTEEMT  LEHEEAPKE  rectifying gas safety risks and accident hazards, and solidly promote the
NEEEHEEBREA T BRI MM  special rectification of household gas and old pipeline networks so as to
MALEHEBREATIENEMEREE - enhance the sense of responsibility and mission for the special rectification
TERABERAER - B - 2714  of urban gas safety, and effectively improve the quality and efficiency of
ALEEEEE  BEMITHTMAEIE  inspection and rectification. At the same time, the Company will special
LEEEMUUETE  REEL 2817 B)  safety rectifications and continue to effectively conduct the renovation and
DT REHBCETLRE  REMRTSEEEE  modification of aging urban gas pipelines to ensure safe operation. The
B BARBREEELZS BE0 ¥ Company will also assist in urban renewal projects, promote high-quality
E4T o urban development, and make people’s lives safer, more comfortable, and
better.

S E ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

KR — B EEEBEIEFREE - &£ Tian Lun Gas has always been developing by overcoming challenges, growing
BREERKR  EELEHFA KRB through ups and downs, trials and tribulations. In 2023, Tian Lun Gas has
ZEZ=F - RfaMREUSTMARIKE © achieved outstanding results. Such breakthrough results would not happen
ERWHKES R - BTFESAE I —4  without the consistent efforts and dedication of each employee, and the
BEEMS ML EBTHEREBRA  support and responsibility of the management team. | would like to thank all
TEMES  BRBSURACEBECHMA  of my colleagues for their hard work and dedication in their positions, paving
L ommEZE - BRER S AFREE  the way for the Company’s development and growth.

AR AYEER o
B Zhang Yingcen
[y Chairman

—EoFE=A=-+\H
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CEO Message

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board and fellow staff, | am pleased to present our annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”).

2023 was the first year to fully implement the spirit of the 20th National
Congress of the Communist Party of China. The global natural gas trade
pattern was restructured, and the supply sources of the domestic natural
gas market were gradually diversified. With the restoration of domestic
production and living order and the recovery of macroeconomic growth,
especially the sharp rebound in the growth rate of consumption and service
industries, natural gas demand has maintained a strong recovery trend
and production volume has steadily increased. According to data released
by the National Development and Reform Commission, the apparent
consumption of natural gas nationwide in 2023 was 394.53 billion m3,
representing a year-on-year increase of 7.6%, indicating that there is still
broad space for domestic natural gas development. At the same time, as
the nation has proposed the “dual carbon” strategy and the “3060" goal,
natural gas, as a clean fossil fuel, will be an important tool for China to
slow down the growth of carbon emissions. However, traditional energy is
also facing multiple challenges such as new energy substitution and supply
and demand balance. In the face of new changes in the domestic energy
landscape, while maintaining the stable and high-quality development of
urban gas business, the Group continued to expand and innovate low-carbon
energy business, accelerate the layout of new energy business to respond to
risks and opportunities brought by changes in the industry and market. As
of 31 December 2023, the Group had 69 urban gas projects across the PRC
providing gas services to over 5,550,000 households of urban and rural
residents and over 40,000 industrial and commercial users.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded operating
revenue of RMB7,725 million, representing a slight increase of 2.4% as
compared with the same period last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, China’s economy has gradually resumed normal from the abnormal
state during the pandemic. The service industry and consumption grew
rapidly, and new industries and new driving forces flourished, becoming
important supports for economic growth. In particular, China’'s economy
still continued to make steady progress while the growth momentum of the
global economy remained sluggish. According to the latest data released by
the National Bureau of Statistics, the GDP for the year grew by 5.2% year-
on-year. As the domestic economy continued to recover, and industrial and
commercial activities resumed, the demand for natural gas in turn grew
steadily, accordingly, the potential of the gas market remains promising in
the medium term.

In 2023, the retail business of natural gas continued to be the largest
contributor to the Group’s revenue. The Group’s retail sales volume of
natural gas reached 1,741 million m3, representing an increase of 4.5%
compared to the corresponding period of last year, which was mainly
due to the fact that the Group has been actively carrying out gas source
optimization measures and promoting gas sales contango mechanism. At
the same time, for industrial and commercial users, the Group has carried
out differentiated gas sales marketing strategies based on different types of
industrial activities to increase users’ willingness to use gas.

In 2023, the Group took advantage of the implementation of the
government’s policy of ensuring the delivery of buildings and projects,
and formulated flexible development strategies based on market and user
needs. During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were over 280,000
new urban gas residential users, and the cumulative number of residential
management users of engineering construction and service has increased to
5.55 million, laying a solid foundation for achieving the annual profit target.

In 2023, the value-added business structure continued to be optimized,
and the Group continued to promote technological innovation and improve
the depth of product management to achieve the purpose of reducing costs
and increasing efficiency. At the same time, the Group co-built its own
brand production base, established stable cooperative relationships, and
formed a win-win cooperation model with suppliers. As at 31 December
2023, revenue from the value-added business reached RMB371 million,
representing an increase of 11.5% compared to RMB333 million for the
corresponding period of last year.
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CEO Message (Continued)

Facing the continued recovery of the economy, the Group continued to focus
on its gas business, providing users with low-carbon, economical, safe and
convenient energy services through business extension and innovation,
thereby further expanding and innovating low-carbon energy business, and
assisting rural revitalization.

The Group’s current operating area has covered 16 provinces across China
and has accumulated over 5.59 million users. Among which, the scale of
user managed within Henan Province has reached 3 million households, and
nearly 2 million users are township households.

OUTLOOK

2024 is a critical year for the implementation of the “14th Five-Year Plan”.
Under the wise leadership of the party and the government, in the face
of the recovery and adjustment of the global economy, domestic demand
will continue to improve, China’s economy will grow towards its potential
level, and it will remain the main driving force for global economic recovery
in the future. In particular, under the national “carbon peaking and
carbon neutrality” strategy, clean energy represented by natural gas is still
regarded as an important medium for resource transformation, bringing new
development opportunities to the gas industry. In the future, the Group will
seize the major development opportunities under the dual carbon goal and
continue to promote the transformation and upgrading from gas supply to
comprehensive clean energy business.

With the issuance of the “Opinions of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China and the State Council on Promoting the
Development and Growth of the Private Economy”, the private economy
is a new force in promoting Chinese-style modernization, an important
foundation for high-quality development, and an important force in driving
China to comprehensively build a modern and powerful socialist country and
achieve the second centenary goal. In the future, the private economy will
surely usher in high-quality development, which will bring new historical
opportunities and strong policy support to the Group’s future development.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The main businesses of the Group include provision of gas pipeline
construction and infrastructure laying and installation for residential,
commercial and industrial users, as well as transportation, distribution and
sales of gases including natural gas and CNG and production and sales of

LNG in bulk and in cylinders.

The key results and operating information of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 as compared to the corresponding period of the previous

year are as follows:

BZE+-A=t+-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—BC-= —E-= k)
2023 2022 Change by
gEERRRR New pipeline gas users: 305,610 355,673 (14.1)%
— BIREERP (FY) — Urban gas residential users (households) 284,575 282,601 0.7%
— BEFERP (FY) — Township residential users (households) 16,517 68,136 (75.8)%
— IRm%RF(FE) — Industrial and commercial users (households) 4,518 4,936 (8.5)%
ZREBMAAE Total pipeline gas users: 5,599,925 5,294,315 5.8%
— WEERF (FPE) — Urban gas residential users (households) 3,593,886 3,309,311 8.6%
—HEEERP (PE) — Township residential users (households) 1,959,209 1,942,692 0.9%
— Im£RF(F&) — Industrial and commercial users (households) 46,830 42312 10.7%
AARBEZ (BUFK) : Natural gas sales volume (in ten thousand m3): 208,528 191,177 9.1%
— RAREEEHHAZ (BUAK)  — Sales volume of retail business of
natural gas (in ten thousand m?) 174,126 166,634 4.5%
—(FEAPARTHEEZ (BLAK) — Natural gas sales volume to residential
users (in ten thousand m?) 55,316 52,411 5.5%
— IAERPAARHEES (B HK) — Natural gas sales volume to
industrial and commercial users
(in ten thousand md) 109,528 106,318 3.0%
— RBAPARRHES (BUHX) — Natural gas sales volume to transportation
users (in ten thousand m?) 9,282 7,905 17.4%
— RAGHEEBHEAE (BUFX)  — Sales volume of wholesale business of
natural gas (in ten thousand m?) 34,402 24,543 40.2%
REEERRRBE (BLAK) Long-haul pipeline gas transmission volume
(in ten thousand m?) 71,640 75,931 (5.7)%
2P RBEERE(RE) Total length of medium and high-pressure
pipelines (kilometre) 9,173 8,813 4.1%

RwRRIERERD B 20235 FEME
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Management Discussion and AnaIyS|s (Contlnued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s revenue amounted
to RMB7,725 million, representing a slight growth of 2.4% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. Among which, revenue from
engineering construction services amounted to RMB1,045 million which
represented a decrease of 25.8% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year; revenue from gas retail business amounted to RMB5,120
million which represented an increase of 4.4% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year; revenue from gas wholesale business
amounted to RMB1,029 million which represented a growth of 24.5% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. The Group’s revenue
was primarily derived from sales of natural gas in cylinders and in bulk
business, engineering construction service business, accounting for 66.3%,
13.3% and 13.5% (the corresponding period of last year: 65.0%, 10.9%,
18.7%), respectively, of the total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Revenue from Gas Retail Business

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from gas retail business
of the Group amounted to RMB5,120 million, representing a year-on year
increase of 4.4% as compared with RMB4,905 million for the corresponding
period of last year.

Meanwhile, the Group has vigorously tapped the potential of industrial
and commercial users and formulated flexible and effective industrial and
commercial development strategies. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
revenue from gas sales of the Group’s industrial and commercial users
amounted to RMB3,481 million, representing an year-on-year growth of
4.8%.

Revenue from Gas Wholesale Business

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from gas wholesale
business of the Group amounted to RMB1,029 million, representing a
year-on-year growth of 24.5% as compared with RMB826 million for the
corresponding period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

TRZRRBRHWA

BE-_T-_=F+-_A=1+—BI&FE
TRRERRBAERARBARE10.45
Br BREFRBPARK14.09E7T [
Lb T BE25.8% o H A - K& EE R IE
WHmENERZKE ARESNRAER
B REIRZEERRGESTEEBNHET
KT WM IR EERBBAR/ARE
8.54 187  MAFREIARKE8.381E7T -
EER1.9% -

HAb R WA

Hi WA EBRBRIBEER - NS H
A AERERERC [Em+ RG] BF
WERFET - RAERRBEEES - HK
Hip X BEWAARK 5.32187T - WEFF
AR 4.03BTIER32.0%  Hr - 1§
BEEBRARARKEITIET  BEFR
HARE3.33ETTER1LE% -

BN R EF

BHE_Z_=F+_A=1+—HILEFE"
REBEREFARE 14536 8E
FRIHIEINAREO0.6018TT » #K4.3% °
REBHERBENRK18.8%  HEFFHH
ERFFTF -

HE-_T-_=F+-A=+—HULEFE"
AEEEREMARKELILEIET &
EZFRPARKILIAET AER
4.9% Hih - WREBER G M AR
1136 BT REFRHPARKI3BE
7T FHIER21.1% (HREBEMER
31.6% @ TRZENMRIBENIERS.4% -
BB mMIg &K 40.8%)

20 FAMIZEBRERAT 2023EFEHE

Revenue from Engineering Construction Services

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from engineering
construction services amounted to RMB1,045 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 25.8% as compared with RMB1,409 million for the
corresponding period of last year. Among them, the Group actively seized
the opportunities of urban renewal and development, carried out flexible
development strategies, and ensured stable profitability of the engineering
construction services business. The revenue from engineering construction
services of urban gas business amounted to RMB854 million, representing
an year-on-year increase of 1.9% as compared with RMB838 million of the
corresponding period of last year.

Revenue from Other Businesses

Most of the revenue from other businesses comes from value-added services.
During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to optimize the “product
+ service” system, promote innovative businesses, and improve after-sales
service capabilities, bringing in revenue from other businesses of RMB532
million, representing an increase of 32.0% as compared with RMB403
million of the corresponding period of last year. Among which, revenue from
value-added services was RMB371 million, representing an increase of
11.5% as compared with RMB333 million of last year.

Gross Profit and Segment Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group realized gross profit of
RMB1,453 million, representing an increase of RMB60 million or 4.3%
from the corresponding period of last year. Overall gross profit margin of the
Group was 18.8%, basically the same as the corresponding period of last
year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group realized segment profit
of RMB1,169 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 4.9% as
compared with RMB1,114 million for the corresponding period of last
year. Among which, the urban gas business realized a segment profit of
RMB1,136 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 21.1% as
compared with RMB938 million for the corresponding period of last year (an
increase of 31.6% in the segment profit of gas sales; an increase of 5.4%
in the segment profit of engineering construction services; an increase of
40.8% in the segment profit of other businesses).



HttEE — #H

BHE_Z-_=F+_-_A=+—HIFE "
RRERIBAERE - NEEAMEIE —
FREAARK04AEL  REFRERL
AR®0.611ETT °

B RAFE

BHE-_T_=F+-A=1+—HLFE"
AEEHBERFE/ARE 382 -
BREFREPEMARE 0.68FT °

7R R %0 R

BE-_Z_=F+_A=+—HIEE -
REBEETRFFHEARKS.06 18T W&
FRERTI% BE_T_=F+_H
=+ —BLEFE  AEESZOFEAA
R¥5.778T - Hf - WA EBZ
FEAARE5.58E T  BEAFRIH4.69
BT #K18.9% °

BERARAREEFNE

BE-_E-=F+-A=+—RH1ILEE -
EERARAMAEFIEAEARKE4.80
Bt REFRLRT7.9% -

BEENWR N (&)
Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Other losses — Net

For the year ended 31 December 2023, due to exchange losses and
other reasons, other losses — net of the Group amounted to RMB44
million, representing a decrease of RMB61 million as compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

Finance Expenses — Net

For the year ended 31 December 2023, finance expenses — net of the
Group amounted to RMB382 million, representing an increase of RMB68
million as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

Net Profit and Core Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2023, net profit of the Group amounted
to RMB506 million, representing an increase of 7.9% as compared with
the corresponding period of last year. For the year ended 31 December
2023, core profit of the Group amounted to RMB577 million, among
which, core profit from urban gas business amounted to RMB558 million,
representing an increase of 18.9% as compared with RMB469 million for
the corresponding period of last year.

Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2023, net profit attributable to owners of
the Company was RMB480 million, representing an increase of 7.9% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group has been adopting prudent policies in respect of financial
resources management, including maintaining an appropriate level of cash
and cash equivalents as well as sufficient credit limits, in order to cope
with the needs of daily operation and business development and control the
borrowing at a healthy level.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group incurred capital
expenditure of RMB328 million, of which RMB5 million was used in
project acquisitions and RMB323 million in continuously improving urban
gas business. The above capital expenditure was financed by the Group’s
operating cash flows and bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
RMB964 million in total, of which 98.5% was denominated in RMB, 1.4%
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and 0.1% was denominated in US
dollars, safeguarding the needs of project expansion and acquisition of
businesses of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total borrowings were RMB6,801
million (among which loans denominated in RMB were RMB3,853 million,
loans denominated in US dollars were RMB2,390 million and loans
denominated in HK dollars were RMB558 million). Among those borrowings,
45.8% of which were classified as non-current liabilities, and 54.2% of
which were classified as current liabilities. As at 31 December 2023, the
gearing ratio, calculated based on the percentage of total liabilities over
total assets, was 61.0%.

FINANCE COST AND EXCHANGE RISK
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s finance cost was
RMB398 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s overseas borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies accounted for 43.3% of its total
borrowings. The Group will continue to closely monitor the changes in
exchange rates and strive to lower its finance costs through diversified
arrangements, and will adopt necessary measures to lower its exchange risk
as and when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Top-Up Placing of Existing Shares and Subscription of New
Shares Under General Mandate

On 21 February 2022, the Company, Tian Lun Group Limited and the
Placing Agent entered into the Placing Agreement, pursuant to which the
Placing Agent conditionally agreed, as agent of Tian Lun Group Limited,
to procure on a best efforts basis the Placees to purchase an aggregate
of up to 50,000,000 Shares at the price of HK$8.40 per Share, on the
terms and subject to the conditions set out in the Placing Agreement. At
the same date, the Company entered into the Subscription Agreement
with Tian Lun Group Limited, pursuant to which Tian Lun Group Limited
conditionally agreed to subscribe for Subscription Shares (equivalent to
the number of Placing Shares) at the Subscription Price (same as the
Placing Price) in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the
Subscription Agreement. On 21 February 2022, being the date of the
signing of the Placing Agreement and Subscription Agreement, the market
price per each share was HK$9.63. The top-up placing shares represented
50,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an aggregate nominal value
of HK$500,000.

On 24 February 2022, an aggregate of 50,000,000 Placing Shares of
the Company have been successfully placed by the Placing Agent to not
less than six Placees at the Placing Price of HK$8.40 per Placing Share.
The Placees are professional and institutional investors. To the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable
enquiry, each of the Placees (and their respective ultimate beneficial
owners) are independent of the Company and its connected persons. None
of the Placees has become a substantial shareholder of the Company
immediately after completion of the Placing.

On 28 February 2022, an aggregate of 50,000,000 Subscription Shares
have been subscribed by Tian Lun Group Limited at the Subscription Price
of HK$8.40 per Subscription Share (equivalent to the number of the
Placing Shares actually sold by Tian Lun Group Limited under the Placing).
The Subscription Shares represent approximately 4.95% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
Subscription Shares. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 21 February 2022 and 28 February 2022.

The Directors consider that the Placing and the Subscription represent an
opportunity to raise capital for the Company’s new projects while broadening
its shareholder and capital base, which is conducive to the development of
the Company.
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The completion of the Placing and the Subscription took place on 24
February 2022 and 28 February 2022, respectively. The net proceeds from
the Subscription amounted to approximately HK$414 million. The net price
for each Placing Shares was HK$8.28. The proceeds raised are mainly
used as follows: (i) development of rooftop photovoltaics projects for rural
residential users and commercial/industrial users (“Rooftop Photovoltaics
Projects”); (ii) development of clean energy heating services (“Clean Energy
Heating Services Projects”); and (iii) working capital and general corporate
purposes (“General Working Capital”).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has utilised approximately HK$297
million of the proceeds mainly for the Rooftop Photovoltaics Projects
and relevant investments, and the General Working Capital, representing
approximately 71.7% of the net proceeds, and the unutilised proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$117 million.

BRI FTS TR
BE-BC-=H BRERR
+=HA=+—-8 B R
ME g KERAREFTIE Current expected
ERAS Unutilised timeline for the
MEFETE AR BMENEEE Actual use of proceeds as of intended use of
Intended use of proceeds Net proceeds proceeds 31 December 2023 net proceeds
BEAT BEAT BEETL BEETL
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BIaRIER 290 (173) 117 R-T-HEF
Rooftop Photovoltaics Projects +-A=+—H
.2 Al
On or before
31 December 2025
BRI EBIER 83 (83) - -
Clean Energy Heating Services
Projects
—REEES 41 (41) - -
General Working Capital
st 414 (297) 117
Total
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Dividend

Pursuant to the resolutions of the Board on 28 March 2024, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend (the “Final Dividend”) for
the year ended 31 December 2023 of RMB10.82 cents per share. Together
with an interim dividend of RMB6.82 cents per share which had been paid,
total dividend paid for the year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB17.64
cents per share.

The Final Dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars on or about 21 June
2024 (Friday) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 7 June 2024 (Friday), subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Further
announcement will be made by the Company in relation to the exact amount
of the Final Dividend in Hong Kong dollars when the conversion rate for
Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars to be adopted has been determined by the
Board.

Closure of Register of Members

In order to determine the Shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed Final
Dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from 4
June 2024 (Tuesday) to 7 June 2024 (Friday) (both days inclusive).

In order to be eligible to receive the proposed Final Dividend, all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Group’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30
p.m. on 3 June 2024 (Monday).
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Upon specific enquiries made to
all the Directors, each of them confirmed that they strictly complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted and has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

Audit Committee

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Company consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Liuging (chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lei Chunyong and Ms. Zhou Lin. The Audit
Committee had reviewed and discussed the annual consolidated results
and consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KPMG, the external auditor of the Group, had audited the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and issued unqualified opinion.
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Mr. Zhang Yingcen, aged 61, is the founder of the Company, the
Chairman of the Company and an executive Director. He is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and has involved in leading the
development and investment of the business of the Group in the PRC.
Mr. Zhang has more than 27 years of management experience, including
22 years of experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Zhang
received the certificate of graduation in advanced EMBA program from
Enterprise Research Center of Peking University in 2001, and received
a certificate of graduation in the PRC Enterprise CEO/Financial CEO
program from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2014 and
obtained his certificate of EMBA from Tsinghua University in 2018. He
is currently the vice president of Chinese Xianggi Association, and the
vice president of Henan Charity General Federation.
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Mr. Xian Zhenyuan, aged 49, is the chief executive of the Company
and an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Xian has 20 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Xian joined the
Group in 2003 and served as a director and general manager of certain
subsidiaries of the Company successively. Mr. Xian obtained a bachelor’s
degree majoring in International Trade from Southeast University in the
PRC in 1997 and obtained a master's degree majoring in Accounting
from Macquarie University in Australia in 2003.
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Ms. Qin Ling, aged 52, resigned as the general manager and an executive
Director of the Company on 16 March 2023. From April 2019 to May
2021, Ms. Qin served as a vice president of Tus Environmental Science
and Technology Development Co., Ltd, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000826.SZ). From January 2018 to
April 2019, she served as an executive vice president of CMIG New Energy
Investment Co., Ltd. From April 2007 to January 2018, she served as an
executive vice president of ENN Group Co. Ltd* (3R EERMDER AT,
a vice president of ENN Smart Energy Group* (¥TEEgLaL/REE) and a
deputy general manager of ENN energy services Co., Ltd., etc. From August
2005 to April 2007, she worked as the manager of the Transportation Data
Analysis Center at the National Center of ITS Engineering & Technology*
(ARBERBAESTIEFEMHITHL). Ms. Qin obtained a bachelor degree
(major in automatic control) and a master of business administration
from Tsinghua University in July 1994 and June 1997, respectively. Ms.
Qin obtained a master of science in civil engineering (major in intelligent
transportation) from the University of Virginia in May 2001.
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Mr. Liu Min, aged 50, who obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics
from Renmin University of China (FEBIARKER), is an executive
Director and the general manager of the Company. Mr. Liu has years of
experience in clean energy industry, financial management, investment
and financing management, asset acquisition, project development,
product marketing and business operations. Mr. Liu has served as the
vice president of the New Energy Chamber of the National Federation
of Industry and Commerce (EBTEHEBRASZHEREE) and the
vice chairman of the 7th Hainan Provincial Federation of Industry and
Commerce (HmE THZ%EEAE). Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liu
has served as the finance manager and the general manager assistant of
Beijing Daxing Urban Construction Group (Qihong Industrial Corporation)
QbR KB R EERUBSE 42 F]) from July 1995 to April 1999,
the assistant president, chief financial officer, the rotating president and
the executive president of Hanergy Holding Group Limited (ZEE1ERZE
&), the chairman of Hanergy Yunnan Wulang River Basin Hydropower
Development Limited (ZEREZEF AN RE/KEREFR AT, the
chairman of Nanfang Center of Hanergy Solar Power Manufacturing
Industry Group (ZRERRBUEEFEEEIH D), the chairman of
Hanergy Corporation in the America region (ZgEEMEIG AT, the
chief executive officer and the chairman of Hanergy Global Solar Power
and Applications Group (EEEZRIRFEIKFEFAEE), the executive director
and deputy chairman of Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited (Z&E
BRI EEE AR A7), formerly known as Hanergy Solar Group Limited
(ZBEAFGREE=E AR A F), the shares of which were listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00566), from May 1999 to September 2015.
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Ms. Li Tao, aged 51, is an executive Director and deputy general
manager of the Company. She joined the Group in April 2011 and is
responsible for the financial management of the Group. Ms. Li has years
of experience in corporate finance management. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Li had served as the head of finance of SDIC Henan Coal
Transportation & Sales Co., Ltd. Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
Economics from Henan University of Economics and Law in the PRC
in 1994, and obtained a master’'s degree in applied accounting and
finance from Hong Kong Baptist University on 13 November 2014. Ms.
Li is a senior accountant and a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Chen Hong, aged 50. From May 2011 to August 2013, Ms. Chen
served as the financial controller (B17548 %) of Zhuhai Letong Chemical Co.,
Ltd.* GRETLB(L T EBR A7), the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002319), and a director of Xinghua
Port Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 1990) (now known as Zhuhai Harbour
(Singapore) Company., Limited), the shares of which were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the listing was withdrawn
on 20 November 2020. Zhuhai Harbour (Singapore) Company., Limited
is now a subsidiary of Zhuhai Port Co., Ltd.* Ms. Chen is currently the
financial controller (BAT$48E%) of Zhuhai Port Co., Ltd.* GREERMDBREA
A]), the shares of which are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000507). Zhuhai Port Co., Ltd. is a substantial shareholder of our Company.
Ms. Chen is also a director of Zhuhai Port (Hong Kong) Development Co.,
Limited. Zhuhai Port (Hong Kong) Development Co., Limited is a subsidiary
of Zhuhai Port Co., Ltd.*, and a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Ms. Chen is also a director of Jiangsu Xiugiang Glasswork Co., Ltd.* (T#k7
SEILHE TEMDBPR A A)), the shares of which are listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300160). Ms. Chen, who obtained a bachelor degree
(major in electronic materials and components) from South China University
of Technology (¥:F¥E T A£) in China in July 1995, is a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Zhang Daoyuan, aged 37, is the son of Mr. Zhang Yingcen. Mr. Zhang
served as a non-executive Director of the Company from 13 October 2010 to
27 December 2012, and was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company on 2 June 2023. Mr. Zhang has served as an assistant to general
manager and marketing director of Henan Tian Lun Real Estate Limited (now
known as Henan Tian Lun Real Estate Group Limited), vice chairman and
chief information officer of Henan Tian Lun Investment Holdings Company
Limited O FIE AT EZERERE AR AF) and vice chairman of Henan
Tian Lun Real Estate Group Limited, respectively, since December 2007.
Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’'s degree majoring in finance from Griffith
University in Australia in November 2007. Mr. Zhang is currently a member
of the 13th Henan Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the vice president of Henan Overseas-Chinese
International Culture Communication Association (7] E5%& BRI AL 33
%2 ) and the vice president of Henan Young Entrepreneurs’ Association (]

HEBFLERNHE).
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jin, aged 53, resigned as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company on 2 June 2023. Mr. Liu served as an assistant professor at
Anderson School of Management of the University of California, Los Angeles
from July 1999 to July 2006 and served as a tenured associate professor
from July 2006 to July 2008. He also served as an Economics Instructor at
the Department of Economics at Columbia University in 1998. He obtained
a doctoral degree in Business Administration from Columbia Business
School in 1999. Mr. Liu is currently the Deputy Dean of Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business and a professor of Accounting and Finance.
Mr. Liu has extensive experience in research on capital markets, financial
accounting and equity investment and is an internationally renowned
expert in the field of equity investment and securities analysis. Mr. Liu’s
research has international influence and has been one of the authors whose
research achievements are most widely quoted in international literatures
among Chinese social science scholars in the past decade. He is a long-
term reviewer and editorial board member of various international first-level
academic journals. Mr. Liu has received the Outstanding Research Award
from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, the Eric and “E” Juline
Faculty Excellence in Research Award, and the Barclays Global Investors
Best Paper Award.

Mr. Li Liuging, aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Li has over 20 years of experience in accounting and auditing, and was
a senior manager and vice branch manager of Henan Branch of Ascenda
Certified Public Accountants Ltd. He is currently a partner in Zhongxingcai
Guanghua Certified Public Accountants LLP and in charge of its Henan
Branch. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accounting from Henan
University of Economics and Law in 1998 and a postgraduate certificate
majoring in Corporate Management from Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics in 2000. Mr. Li is a Certified Public Accountant on securities, a
Certified Public Valuer and a Certified Tax Agent in the PRC.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Zhao Jun, aged 61, resigned as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company on 2 June 2023. Ms. Zhao worked in the Post Office of
Zhengzhou City and Postal Transportation Bureau of Henan Province and
served as a Senior Lecturer, Education Officer and Occupational Testing
Officer successively. She had been the human resources director of
Shanghai Shibang Machinery Co., Ltd. Beijing Office and a supervisor of
Beijing Kelushi Heavy Industrial Technology Co., Ltd. Ms. Zhao obtained
a bachelor’'s degree majoring in Agricultural Machinery Repair from
Agricultural Machinery Department of Henan Agricultural University in the
PRC in 1984.

Ms. Ou Yaqun, aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director. Ms. Ou
served as the chief financial officer (BE#M#EE) of Greka Engineering
& Technology Ltd (#&im5 TI2EMTAMRAF*) from February 2008 to
September 2017; a budget analyst of Xinyuan (China) Real Estate, Ltd.
(FT(PE)BEAMR AT, a subsidiary of Xinyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd.,
the shares of which are listed on New York Stock Exchange (stock code:
XIN), from July 2007 to February 2008; the finance controller (317542 E5)
of Henan Hejing Air Purification Technology Co., Ltd* (i %2 m;Fb
FAiAREMLA7]) (now known as Henan Hejing Cleaning Technology Co.,
Ltd* O 2FRMAEREERRD) from July 1998 to June 2007;
and a finance supervisor (f754%E #88R48E) of The Fifth Research and
Design Institute of Nuclear Industry* (i L% AFFTEETFT) from July
1992 to June 1998. Ms. QOu is currently the deputy general manager (&l|42
#%38) of Zhengzhou Qidi Donglong Technology Development Co., Ltd.* (&6
MECERERNZEABR 2 7]). Ms. Ou obtained a bachelor degree (major
in accountancy) from Hengyang Engineering Institute* (1% T2%) (now
known as University of South China (FAZEA£2)) in June 1992. Ms. Ou, who
obtained a master degree of accounting from Henan University of Economics
and Law CRE & BUEAER) in June 2010, is a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Lei Chunyong, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 2 June 2023. Mr. Lei has accumulated more
than 20 years of experience in accounting and auditing. He has served as
a partner of Xigema Cpas (F1&I&ETENETEAT), and the deputy director of
Henan Branch of Mazars Certified Public Accountants (T EREB&sHHIE
T&FT). He is currently a partner and the deputy director of Henan Branch of
Zhongxingcai Guanghua Certified Public Accountants LLP (ff B84t EEEE
BN EFS AT R38R A $)). He has been a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since 2002.

Ms. Zhou Lin, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 2 June 2023. Ms. Zhou is currently an
associate professor of the Henan University of Economics and Law and is
primarily engaged in the research in management and accounting fields
such as strategic maps, management control systems, budget management,
cost management, etc. Ms. Zhou obtained a bachelor’'s degree in auditing
from Zhengzhou University, a master’s degree in accounting from Henan
University of Finance and Economics and a doctorate in accounting from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in June 2000, July 2007
and June 2011, respectively. Ms. Zhou is a leading accounting talent in
Henan Province and a high-level talent in Henan Province. Ms. Zhou is a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Xu Weidong, aged 54, is a deputy general manager of the Company.
He is responsible for the management of the Group’s New Energy Business
Division. Mr. Xu has accumulated 32 years of experience in the management
of gas enterprises. After joining the Group in May 2011, he successively
acted as general manager of Jilin Zhongji Dadi Gas Group Co., Ltd. (F#k
L EARMMAEBE AR AE]) and general manager of Xuchang Tian Lun
Gas Limited (RFEMXMBIRR AR A a]). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu
worked at Jilin Zhongji Dadi Gas Group Co., Ltd. as general manager. Mr. Xu
obtained a diploma in marketing from Wuhan University of Technology. Mr.
Xu obtained a senior economist qualification certificate of PRC.

Mr. Zhang Linxiong, aged 56, is a Chairman of Baiyin Region, Huzhu and
Datong Region of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2011.
Mr. Zhang has accumulated 34 years of experience in the management
of gas enterprises. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked at Baiyin
Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (HRTIMARBRE T2 7)) as executive deputy general
manager. Mr. Zhang obtained a diploma in water supply and drainage from
Changchun College of Architecture (RHFZESEFERIEZR) in 1990.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond, aged 61, is the company secretary. Mr. Tam
has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of CNQC
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1240), Yunhong Guixin Group
Holdings Limited (formerly Meigu Technology Holding Group Limited (stock
code: 8349)) and Kingland Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1751)
since September 2012, January 2017 and May 2020, respectively. He was
also the company secretary of Branding China Group Limited (now known as
BC Technology Group Limited) (stock code: 863) from April 2013 to April
2018. Mr. Tam was an independent non-executive director of Vision Fame
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1315) from December 2011 to February
2023, and Li Bao Ge Group Limited (stock code: 1869) from June 2016
to February 2020, respectively. Mr. Tam obtained a bachelor degree of arts
in Accounting with Computing from the University of Kent at Canterbury,
United Kingdom in July 1985. He is an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2023 together with the audited consolidated financial statements
to the shareholders.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is an investment holding company whose subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the investment, operation and management of
gas pipeline connections, transportation, distribution and sales of gas,
construction and operation of gas filling stations, and production and sales
of LNG in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Further details of the
principal business and subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 11
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review for the year ended 31 December 2023, and
discussion about the Group’s future business development, are set out in the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 11 to 14 and the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 18 to 26 of this
annual report.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial position, operating results
and business outlook may be subject to many risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly relating to the business of the Group, and have put in place the
relevant policies to ensure continuous identification and management of the
adverse impacts such risks might have on the Group. The major risks and
uncertainties currently facing by the Group are set out below.

Finance risks

The Group may be exposed to finance risks including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and liquidity risk. Management of the Group monitors
market changes and will adopt various means to mitigate such risks as and
when appropriate.
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Business risk

The performance of major business of the Group is subject to many factors,
including but not limited to overall market and economic conditions, and
the performance of property, industry and commerce market where the
Group operates its business. The Group will adjust its development plan in
a timely manner in line with the development of its local consumers and in
accordance with the relevant policies.

Growth strategy

The Group's business growth objectives will be achieved through internal
growth, strategic investments and acquisitions. In the event of change in
market condition, insufficient funds generated from operation or other
reason, the Group will consider delaying, revising or abandoning its growth
strategy in certain aspects.

Human resources risk

The Group may be subject to the risk of loss and recruitment of staff
and talents with requisite skills. The Group will provide competitive
remuneration packages and career development plans to suitable candidates
and employees based on market standard, individual experience and
individual performance. The Group will also recognise and encourage
employees’ contribution to the Group through performance appraisal system
and adoption of share option scheme.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has adopted the relevant environmental protection standards
in the PRC, formulated occupational health and environmental protection
measures, and established regulated operation procedures to ensure
compliance with the laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection.

As a gas supplier, the Group is committed to environmental protection
and improving air pollution. In 2023, the Group’s urban gas operation and
transmission business distributed a total of 2,802 million m® of natural gas.
Based on the gas sales volume, the Group helped reduce emissions from
approximately 4.67 million tons of coal.

In its day-to-day business operation, the Group continues to promote green
measures and improve employees’ awareness of environmental protection
and advocates the concept of recycling for use. It uses energy-saving lamps
for lighting and requires employees to turn off the lights before leaving office
so that no lights will be left always on. It requires turning off the faucet
after using to avoid water waste. It promotes electronic office and expands
the functions of our OA online office system to improve use efficiency. It
encourages double-sided printing to reduce resource waste so as to reduce
the impacts on the environment.

The Group will review its environmental protection work on a regular basis
and adopt more environmental protection measures in respect of business
operation to strengthen the environmental sustainability.

IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIPS WITH
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has always considered employees as essential for its continuous
business growth, pays great attention to the safety of employee’s working
environment, and has in place health and safety systems and measures.
The Group also organises induction and on-the-job trainings on a regular
basis based on the needs of employee position and career development.
In addition, the Group has established a fair and effective performance
appraisal system and incentive plan to motivate employees to exhibit their
talents and achieve performance objectives.
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With customer needs in mind and by adhering to the principle of “putting
customers above all else”, the Group has developed a customer service
guidebook and customer complaint management measures, and continues
to provide customers with value-added services in order to improve customer
satisfaction.

The Group selectively chooses suppliers by setting out requirements for
suppliers participating in its public tender in areas such as experience,
reputation and production capacity, and assesses successful bidders on
a half-yearly basis. Currently, the Group has established long-term good
cooperation with many suppliers.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s business is mainly conducted by the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China, and the Company is listed on the Stock Exchange. As such,
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report,
the Group has been in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong, such as the Environmental Protection Law, the Air
Pollution Control Law, the Labour Law, the Labour Contract Law, the Special
Provisions on Labour Protection of Female Workers and the Production
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the annual results of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on the last page of this report. The summary does not form part of
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

In order to thank the Shareholders for their support, the Group has
established a long-term steady dividend policy. Pursuant to the resolutions
of the Board dated 28 March 2024, the Board recommended the payment
of the Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 of RMB10.82
cents per share (the “Final Dividend”). Together with an interim dividend of
RMB6.82 cents per share which had been paid, total dividend paid for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was RMB17.64 cents per share.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

The Final Dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars on or about 21 June
2024 (Friday) to the Shareholders whose name appear on the register
of members of the Company on 7 June 2024 (Friday), subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Further
announcement will be made by the Company in relation to the exact amount
of the Final Dividend in Hong Kong dollars when the conversion rate for
Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars to be adopted has been determined by the
Board.

RESERVES

Details of movements of reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Notes 25, 27 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the distributable reserves of the Company was
the sum of the share premium and accumulated losses of RMB81,317,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors from 31 December 2023 to the date of this report were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman)
Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
Ms. Qin Ling

(resigned on 16 March 2023)
Mr. Liu Min
Ms. Li Tao

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chen Hong
Mr. Zhang Daoyuan
(appointed on 2 June 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jin (resigned on 2 June 2023)
Mr. Li Liuging
Ms. Zhao Jun (resigned on 2 June 2023)
Ms. Ou Yaqun
Mr. Lei Chunyong

(appointed on 2 June 2023)
Ms. Zhou Lin

(appointed on 2 June 2023)

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and senior management
liability insurance policies for all Directors and members of senior
management and reviews the coverage on an annual basis.

All non-executive Directors entered into service contracts with the Company
for a term of three years and subject to termination by either party upon
giving no less than one month’s prior written notice to the other party.

As of 31 December 2023, none of the Directors had a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under “RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS” below, none
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had entered into any contract of
significance in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, as at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into by
the Company or existed during the year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Liuging has served the Company for more than thirteen years. As an
independent non-executive Director with extensive experience and knowledge
and in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations and business, Mr.
Li Liuging has expressed objective views and given independent guidance
to the Company over the past years. The Board considered that their long
service would not affect their exercise of independent judgment and was
satisfied that Mr. Li Liuging has the required integrity and experience to
continue fulfilling the role of an independent non-executive Director and
consider Mr. Li Liuging to be independent.

The Board of the Company confirmed that it has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his
or her independence and considered, based on the confirmations received,
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors remained independent during the year.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors and senior management of the Company receive compensation
in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in kind or discretionary
bonuses relating to the performance of the Group. The Group also reimburses
the Directors and senior management for expenses which are necessarily
and reasonably incurred for providing services to the Group or discharging
their duties in relation to the operation of the Group. When reviewing
and determining the specific remuneration packages for the executive
Directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee takes into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment elsewhere in
the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid individuals are set out in
Note 9 to consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")),
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (“Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company (“Shares”):

LN
2EE BT
BAREL
Aotk
¥EHER Approximate
85 BBEE percentage
Bin REEME BHEE Number of  of the total issued
EERE Capacity/Nature Number of underlying share capital
Name of director of interest Shares held Shares held of the Company
SRS ([SREED) s EEER (1) 555,899,300 — 56.62%
Mr. Zhang Yingcen (“Mr. Zhang”) Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)
ie B (fisE2) 5,722,500 — 0.58%
Interest of spouse (Note 2)
HIRIRS A ([ RS ED EnfEAA 9,000,000 — 0.92%
Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (“Mr. Xian") Beneficial owner
B AEER (F1FE3) 12,829,500 = 1.31%
Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 3)
T BrL BEmEA A 3,000,000 — 0.31%
Ms. Li Tao Beneficial owner
RIEREAE Eﬁi%—\/\/ﬁ\lﬂﬁﬁfhé 471,171,300 = 47.99%

Mr. Zhang Daoyuan

(BMt5E1)
Interests held jointly with
another person (Note 1)
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Notes:

Gold Shine Development Limited is interested in 471,171,300 Shares through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Tian Lun Group Limited. The entire issued
share capital of Gold Shine Development Limited is owned as to 60% by Mr.
Zhang, 20% by Ms. Sun, and 20% by Mr. Zhang Daoyuan. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares held by
Tian Lun Group Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang wholly owns Chequers Development Limited, which is interested
in 63,728,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is also deemed or taken to
be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares held by Chequers
Development Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang wholly owns Kind Edge Limited, which is interested in 21,000,000
Shares. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the aforesaid
21,000,000 Shares.

Mr. Zhang is the director of Gold Shine Development Limited, Tian Lun Group
Limited, Chequers Development Limited and Kind Edge Limited.

Ms. Sun the spouse of Mr. Zhang holds 5,722,500 Shares through her
individual security account. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the Shares held by Ms. Sun for the purpose of the SFO.

Mr. Xian Zhenyuan beneficially owns the entire equity interests of Pleasant New
Limited, which in turn owns 12,829,500 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares held by Pleasant New
Limited for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Xian Zhenyuan is the sole director of
Pleasant New Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, the underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporation” above and the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2023, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO, the following persons (except the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or the underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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TN
BRTRA
BOESL

FristER8 Approximate
B E percentage of
B, Bkl oA Number of issued share
ME L Capacity/Nature Number of underlying capital of
Name of Interest Shares held Shares held the Company
RmEEERAE (MFE1) EREBA 471,171,300 — 47.99%
Tian Lun Group Limited (Note 1)  Beneficial owner
TIEERARAA (ML) PRl = B i 471,171,300 — 47.99%
Gold Shine Development Interest of controlled
Limited (Note 1) corporation
RRERBRAA EnEEA 63,728,000 — 6.49%
Chequers Development Limited Beneficial owner
B+ ey o 5,722,500 — 0.58%
(sE2)([HF2Z =+ ) Beneficial interest
Ms. Sun Yanxi IR 555,899,300 — 56.62%
(Note 2) (“Ms. Sun”) Interest of spouse
HEERNDEBRAR Fr{2e i) [ i 2 120,000,000 — 12.22%
Zhuhai Port Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled
corporation
KEEEABRRERAA EnEEA 120,000,000 — 12.22%
Zhuhai Port (Hong Kong) Beneficial owner
Development Co., Limited
HEEEE EnEEA 69,280,759 — 7.06%

Mr. Koo Yuen Kim

Beneficial owner
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Notes:

(1)  The entire issued share capital of Tian Lun Group Limited is held by Gold Shine
Development Limited. Tian Lun Group Limited owns 471,171,300 Shares.
Therefore, Gold Shine Development Limited is deemed or taken to be interested
in all the Shares and underlying Shares held by Tian Lun Group Limited for the
purposes of the SFO.

(2)  Gold Shine Development Limited is owned as to 60% by Mr. Zhang. Together
with Note (1) above, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be interested in all the
Shares and the underlying Shares held by Tian Lun Group Limited for the
purposes of the SFO.

Chequers Development Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang, who in turn
owns 63,728,000 Shares. Together with Note (5) above, Mr. Zhang is also
deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares held
by Chequers Development Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang wholly owns Kind Edge Limited, which is interested in 21,000,000
Shares. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the aforesaid
21,000,000 Shares.

Ms. Sun is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, and therefore Ms. Sun is deemed or taken
to be interested in all the Shares and the underlying Shares in which Mr. Zhang
is interested and may be obliged to purchase respectively for the purpose of the
SFO. Ms. Sun holds 5,722,500 Shares through her individual security account.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were not
aware of any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares,
debentures of the Company which falls to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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B RERTE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

BRSIRKEEBEERALT  MEFEMEE  In order to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional
SRR LA R B AN EE B Al HfEAS - ANAF]  incentive to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group,
ERZZEZZTF+HZT/\BBEEHERM  the Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “New
—IEREARRERT B ([#ETEl]) - ¥Rk - F  Scheme”) on 28 October 2020, pursuant to which, The Board is authorized
GEREA2ENBREBEERABEESMIE  to, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it may think fit, grant
o AAEBTMKEARIMEAEE (2  any employee (full-time or part-time), director, consultant or adviser of any
BhoksREE) - EF - ZMWAEERM - 5% member of the Group, or any substantial shareholder of any member of the
BT EARMEMEZRE « kA% Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business
EEMKE QR EADIERE - &ER ©  partner or service provider of any member of the Group, options to subscribe
HER - RIB - BF - BEBHIMRIEME  for such number of Shares as the Board may determine in accordance with
JERG IR LB - (PR S AIRIEFETEIA)  the terms and price of the New Scheme. The New Scheme has become
BHRREBRBESSURIETHEMNRK  unconditional on 5 November 2020 and will be effective for ten years
B FFEERN = _ZF+—HAAHBMK commencing from 5 November 2020, and it is subject to early termination
BEKRSE  WHZ-ZZT-TF+—AAABA#  according to the terms set out in the New Scheme. An offer for the grant
SFEAMTEER R EIATE 2§ of options must be accepted within 7 days inclusive of the day on which
SRIRRIELE - RHBERENZZRMNEL  such offer was made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
EEEZAMM(BREER)BEHAEMN - Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.
ERENERABREPNEZEFERA  The Subscription Price of a Share in respect of any particular option granted
EREMARTZ 1.0087T « BIEFET  under the New Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
EFREREMEEBRENRMDAREER  notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing
EFrRETWBANSEE - BTSE  price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
RTFE&EEE (VBRI ZBEREXRMTR  on the date of grant of the option, which must be a Business Day; (ii) the
e iEREE B (MWBERE3ERB)A  average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
W« (BB R MERAMMAXM Y daily quotations sheets for the five Business Days immediately preceding
ZERHERENAESXB 0 FHYWT  the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the
B RGO LB EE BOMEE ©  date of grant of the option, provided that in the event of fractional prices,
MM IR TREARE - RIEARREEE LS the Subscription Price per Share shall be rounded upwards to the nearest
BT B - whole cent.

KRB BREZEITHERE - WITEFFEIZE The Company has the right to issue share options, provided that the total
TETHFABRERTEEITHMRMAE  number of shares that may be issued upon the exercise of all options
BENSHBRFFEHES BEEITRM  granted under the New Scheme must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
#)10% ° N AR AN EAIREE B L on the date of approval of the New Scheme. The Company may refresh
R MEASERREAEIET EMARIT]  such limit at any time but is subject to the shareholders’approval and the
BRMAE - HRAMEER - issuance of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares (assuming there
were no Shares issued under the Share Award Scheme) which may be
issued under the New Scheme was 100,361,510 shares, representing
10.22% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted to any participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) under the New Scheme, in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the New
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board of the Company may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to
the provisions of early termination thereof.

From the effective date of the New Scheme to the date of this report, there
were no share options granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
New Scheme, nor any outstanding share options. A summary of the principal
terms of the New Scheme was set out in the circular of the Company dated
8 October 2020.

The Listing Rules amendments relating to share schemes becomes effective
on 1 January 2023. The grant of the share option under the New Scheme is
subject to those amendments from 1 January 2023.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) on 26 August 2021 (the “Adoption Date”). The purposes of the
Scheme are (i) to improve the Group’s incentive system, align the interests
of participants with the Group’s interest, and encourage them to create
long-term value for the Group and the Shareholders; and (ii) to attract
and motivate professional talents to enhance and promote the Group’s
sustainable and healthy development. The participants of the Share Award
Scheme shall cover (i) any of the directors and senior management of any
members of the Group; and (ii) any of the employees of any members of the
Group.
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The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion select any
participant (other than excluded participants) to participate in the Share
Award Scheme as a selected participant and determine, at its absolute
discretion, the awards to be granted subject to relevant terms and conditions
(including but not limited to, where applicable, the vesting of awarded
shares to selected participants at a consideration payable by such selected
participants as may be determined by the Board).

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective up till the 10th anniversary
date of the Adoption Date. The remaining life of the Share Award Scheme
shall be approximately 8 years.

The Board shall not make any further award of Shares which will result in
the aggregate number of the Shares awarded by the Board under the Share
Award Scheme exceeding 5% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. As at the date of this report, 12,817,500 shares were
acquired by an independent trustee appointed by the Company for the Share
Award Scheme. The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Award Scheme is 36,276,755, which represents approximately 3.69%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a selected
participant under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company in any 12-month period.

From the Adoption Date to the date of this report, there were no awards
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Award Scheme, nor
any unvested awardsp. A summary of the principal terms of the Share Award
Scheme was set out in the announcement of the Company dated 26 August
2021.

The Listing Rules amendments relating to share schemes becomes effective
on 1 January 2023. The grant of the awards under the Share Award Scheme
is subject to those amendments from 1 January 2023.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions entered into by the Company and
subsisting during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements. Such related party transactions
do not fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

connected transaction”

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, during the year ended 31 December 2023
and as at the date of this report, the Group had no material acquisition,
disposal or significant investments.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of association of the Company provides that every Director
shall be entitled to be of the Company indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has adopted and maintained appropriate insurance to
provide protection for possible legal action against its directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2023, sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 15.1% of the turnover of the Group, in which sales to the
largest customer accounted for approximately 6.1%, while purchases from
the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 39.6%
of the purchases of the Group in which purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 12.8%. To the best of the Board’s knowledge
having made all enquiries with all Directors, neither the Directors, their
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), nor any Shareholders
owning more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during
the year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company purchased certain
of its shares on the Stock Exchange which were subsequently cancelled by
the Company. The details of such share repurchase for the year ended 31
December 2023 are summarised below:

A& ERERNEE EEaROERER PRt ER
Number of shares Repurchase price of

Month repurchased shares per share Price paid
B& B HE

Highest Lowest In total

ETT BIT 7ETT

HK$ HK$ HK$

—E-=F—AH 880,500 4.42 3.80 3,654,792.11

January 2023

RZET—=F— AE[DO 880,500 Iix1m
DN TE =4 AT -

AABRER-_ZT-__FAARTHRE
BEREERRERNREBRAQRKR
N BEBRAANRAEEFELREBRK
BAERRR LR REEER -

B LRI EESN  ARE REWMEBRE
RAFEHEBA  BOIHEARRE
fa] LIRS
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The 880,500 shares repurchased in January 2023 were cancelled in April
2023.

The shares of the Company were repurchased by the Company pursuant to
the mandate granted by the shareholders at the annual general meeting
held on May 2022, for the purpose of benefiting the Company and its
shareholders as a whole by increasing the net asset value and earnings per
share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any of listed securities of the Company.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no relevant provisions for pre-emptive rights in the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the public float of the Company is not less than 25% as prescribed under
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has implemented the code provisions set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules. The Company has been in compliance with the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 10 November 2023 and KPMG was then appointed as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 28 November 2023.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
KPMG. A resolution will be proposed in the forthcoming annual general
meeting for the re-appointment of KPMG as the Company’s auditor.

For and on behalf of the Board of
Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited
Chairman

Zhang Yingcen

28 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving high
corporate governance standards to enhance corporate performance,
transparency and accountability, earning the confidence of Shareholders
and the public. The Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate
governance and adopt sound corporate governance practices to meet the
legal and commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with all code provisions set out in
the CG Code contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules during the year
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Upon specific enquiries of all
Directors, each of them confirmed that they strictly complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board of the Company comprised
(i) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman), Mr. Xian Zhenyuan, Mr. Liu Min and Ms.
Li Tao as executive Directors; (ii) Ms. Chen Hong and Mr. Zhang Daoyuan
as non-executive Directors; (iii) Mr. Li Liuging, Ms. Ou Yaqun, Mr. Lei
Chunyong and Ms. Zhou Lin as independent non-executive Directors. The
biographies of all the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. All executive Directors of the
Company have sufficient experiences for their positions to effectively carry
out their duties.
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The Company has appointed four independent non-executive Directors and
at least one of them has accounting expertise to assist the management in
formulating development strategies of the Group, and to ensure that the
preparation of the financial reports and other mandatory reports by the
Board are in strict adherence to appropriate systems in order to protect the
interests of the Shareholders and the Company. Each independent non-
executive Director has confirmed in accordance with the guidelines specified
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules that they are independent of the Company,
and the Company considers that they were independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Daoyuan is the son of Mr. Zhang Yingcen. Save as disclosed
above, there are no relationships (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among the members of the Board, and
in particular, between the chairman of the Board and the chief executive of
the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the amended code provision D.3.1. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of
the corporate governance policy of the Group.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All appointed Directors received comprehensive, formal training on the
first occasion of their appointments and were ensured to have a proper
understanding of the businesses and development of the Group and that
they were fully aware of their responsibilities under statute and common
law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory
requirements and the business and governance policies of the Company.
To facilitate the Directors to discharge their responsibilities, they are
continuously updated with regulatory developments, business and market
changes and the strategic development of the Group. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Yingcen,
Mr. Xian Zhenyuan, Mr. Liu Min, Ms. Li Tao, Ms. Chen Hong,
Mr. Zhang Daoyuan, Mr. Li Liuging, Ms. Ou Yaqun, Mr. Lei Chunyong and
Ms. Zhou Lin, have participated in a training course on the PRC Company
Law organized by the PRC legal adviser to the Company, to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided their training records to the
Company.
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SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in all other
cases, an agenda accompanied by the relevant Board papers are sent to all
Directors in a timely manner and at least three days before the specified
date of a Board meeting. All Directors are entitled to have access to Board
papers and related materials.

THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of the
Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the Company
and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the Shareholders
as a whole while taking into account the interests of other stakeholders. The
Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting forth matters that require
the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board
is also responsible for making decisions of formulating the development
targets and strategies, material acquisitions and disposals, material capital
investment, dividend policies, the appointment and removal of directors
and senior management, remuneration policies and other major operation
and financial issues of the Company. The powers and duties of the Board
include convening general meetings and reporting the Board’s work at
general meetings, implementing resolutions passed at general meetings,
determining business plans and investment plans, formulating annual
budget and final accounts, formulating proposals for profit distributions
and for the increase or reduction of registered capital as well as exercising
other powers, functions and duties as conferred by the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company. The daily business operations and
administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the management.

Code provision C.5.1 of the Code stipulates that the Board shall convene
meetings regularly with at least four board meetings every year (approximately
once a quarter).
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The Board of the Company held 6 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2023.

HE T BITERAE
Attendance/

5= Directors Meetings Held
HITES Executive Directors
FBREE (FE) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman) 6/6
BIRIR A Mr. Xian Zhenyuan 6/6
= BREt(RWZZTZ=F=RF+/XHEE) Ms. Qin Ling (resigned on 16 March 2023) —/6
2 Ri=E Mr. Liu Min 6/6
* BL Ms. Li Tao 6/6
FHTES Non-executive Directors
PR 4T Zr A Ms. Chen Hong 3/6
RiERAE(RZZE-=F"A-HEZ{T) Mr. Zhang Daoyuan (appointed on 2 June 2023) 3/6
BAFHITES Independent non-executive Directors
2 rAE(RZZE_=FA=-HFT) Mr. Liu Jin (resigned on 2 June 2023) 2/6
H BT (RZZZ=FAZHFT) Ms. Zhao Jun (resigned on 2 June 2023) 2/6
THRELE Mr. Li Liuging 6/6
BRERRF L+ Ms. Ou Yaqun 6/6
EEBAE(R_Z-_=FA-HHEZT) Mr Lei Chunyong (appointed on 2 June 2023) 3/6
B #rzt(R—ZT-=F,xA-HEZE) Ms.Zhou Lin (appointed on 2 June 2023) 3/6
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In general, the notices of meetings of the Board of the Company are sent
to all Directors through email and fax before the dates of meetings. In
order to enable the Directors to consider the issues to be approved in the
meetings with adequate time, the notices of regular Board meetings will be
sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to the convening of the meeting
while prior notification of the convening of ad hoc Board meetings will be
made to Directors in due course. In order to provide all Directors with a full
picture of the latest operating conditions of the Company, the management
representatives of the Company will report the latest operating conditions
of the Company and the implementation of the issues resolved in the last
Board meeting to all the Directors before the convening of the meeting.
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COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD

The Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee were
established under the Board. These committees perform supervision and
control of the Company based on their written terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor, to
review financial statements and making recommendations on the financial
reporting, and to review and supervise the financial reporting and internal
control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Liuging, Mr. Lei
Chunyong and Ms. Zhou Lin. Mr. Li Liuging is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and has the appropriate professional qualifications. The Audit
Committee shall meet at least twice a year.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s internal control during the
financial year ended 31 December 2023. The Group’s final results for the
year ended 31 December 2023 had been reviewed by the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee had
also reviewed this annual report, and confirmed that this annual report is
complete and accurate, and complies with all relevant rules and regulations,
including but not limited to the Listing Rules. There is no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the selection and
appointment of the external auditor. The Audit Committee held 3 meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

ERLZEGHEZERLEERNT The attendance of the members of the Audit Committee at the meetings is
as follows:
HE BTSRRI
Attendance/
Z8 Member Meetings held
TRERE(EE) Mr. Li Liuging (Chairman) 3/3
W Bkt (RZE-=FNA-HET) Ms. Zhao Jun (resigned on 2 June 2023) 1/3
Bl t(R-_E-_=F A _BFBET Ms. Ou Yaqun (ceased to be a member of
EZEEEZLE) the Audit Committee on 2 June 2023) 1/3
EERBAE(R-E_=F~A_REZFA Mr. Lei Chuyong (appointed to be a member
EZEZEEZLE) of the Audit Committee on 2 June 2023) 2/3
B Wt (R=—ZE—=FEA-_REETA Ms. Zhou Lin (appointed to be a member of
BZEEGEE) the Audit Committee on 2 June 2023) 2/3

RwRRIERERD B 20235 FEME
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Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and
management of the Board’s succession, to ensure that the candidates to
be nominated as Directors are experienced, high caliber individuals. The
Nomination Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lei Chunyong and Ms. Zhou Lin, and Mr. Zhang Yingcen, an
executive Director and the chairman of the Board, who is also the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once every year.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2023 for reviewing the structure of the Board, size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and other related matters. The attendance of the

BreaHmEReT members of the Nomination Committee at the meetings is as follows:
HEBITEERHE
Attendance/
£8 Member Meetings held
FREEE (EE) Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman) 2/2
W Fht+t(R-TE-=F,xA-AFT) Ms. Zhao Jun (resigned on 2 June 2023) 2/2
2 HeAa(R-E-=F,xA-HET) Mr. Liu Jin (resigned on 2 June 2023) 2/2

EEBAAE(RZ=FHA-BEZTA Mr. Lei Chuyong (appointed to be a member

BEZLZERZLE) of the Audit Committee on 2 June 2023) —/2

A #zt(R=ZZT=_=F~A-A¥ZThA

BEZELZEEZR)

Ms. Zhou Lin (appointed to be a member of

the Audit Committee on 2 June 2023) —/2
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Board Diversity

The Stock Exchange introduced certain amendments to the Code set out
in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules which are effective from 1 September
2013 in relation to the Board diversity. In order to achieve the diversity
of members of the Board, the Board will take into account a number
of factors including gender, age, cultural and educational background,
and professional experience. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee had been amended to set out its responsibility for overseeing the
implementation of the Board diversity policy. The Group has adopted the
policy on Board diversity which is summarized as follows:

(1) Election of members of the Board shall be based on a series of
diversified bases, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; and

(2) The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
diversity policy in order to ensure that the policy produces desirable
results.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the board
diversity policy on an annual basis. The diversity policy formally recognises
the practice of ensuring that independent views and input are made
available to the Board.

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company has met the
gender diversity requirement. Gender diversity at workforce levels (including
senior management) is disclosed in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (i) reviewing the
remuneration package of each Director and member of senior management,
and making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment
thereof; (ii) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual executive
Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable to them;
(iii) approving the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts; and (iv)
reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules.



HNE B S MBI IFITEER A
T REMLL AR —BRTEERRS
SR - AMR T EREFHES LR
FEZEeBFEL AR —REHE  UE

BIZARR B Z HENBCR o

BE_E-_=F+-_A=+—RIEE -

FHEEEBRITMANGE -

FHZEERBZEROFEERNT ¢

Z£E8

THEERRE (&)
Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Ou Yaqun and Ms. Zhou Lin, and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhang Yingcen. Ms. Zhou Lin is the Chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least
once every year for reviewing the remuneration policies of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2023.

The attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at the
meetings is as follows:

HERBITEERY
Attendance/

Member Committee Meetings held

W BT (EE)
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Ms. Zhao Jun (Chairman)

(resigned on 2 June 2023) 2/2
Mr. Zhang Yingcen 2/2
Ms. Ou Yaqun 2/2

Ms. Zhou Lin (Chairman) (appointed to be a
member of the Remuneration Committee

on 2 June 2023) —/2

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the ESG Committee include: (i) reviewing key ESG
trends as well as risks and opportunities ; and (ii) reviewing the annual ESG
report.

The ESG Committee comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. Xian
Zhenyuan and Mr. Liu Min, and one independent non-executive Director,
namely Ms. Ou Yaqun. Mr. Xian Zhenyuan is the Chairman of the ESG
Committee. The ESG Committee shall meet at least once every year.
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The ESG Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31 December
2023. The attendance of the members of the ESG Committee at the

KEZERLRERAT meetings is as follows:

HE " BITEEIE
Attendance/
£8 Member Meetings held
SIRIRAE A (/) Mr. Xian Zhenyuan (Chairman) 1/1
2 REAE Mr. Liu Min 1/1
2 YA (RZT=F A ZHEE) Mr. Liu Jin (resigned on 2 June 2023) 11

D”Eﬁﬁﬁi(ﬁ_gifixxﬂ REZE Ms. Ou Yaqun (appointed to be a member
BESGEZEEEXE) of the ESG Committee on 2 June 2023) —/1
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors entered into service contracts with the Company
for a term of three years and subject to termination by either party upon
giving no less than one month’s prior written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors of the Company who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company not terminable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation. Each Director shall retire at least once
every three years and such Directors shall include those who have assumed
the longest term of office since their last appointment or re-election.



BREKXE

KRB =F—A—BHE-F-=F+_
A=+—HBHH EBFER_T_=FRX
A=THEARKRFABAFKE - EFNHFE
REEHEIIMT

TEERKRE (H)
Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

GENERAL MEETINGS

For the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, the Board held
the annual general meeting on 30 June 2023. The attendance record of the
Directors is as follows:

HEBITRRAERE
Attendance/

5= Directors General Meetings held
HITES Executive Directors
FBMEIE () Mr. Zhang Yingcen (Chairman) -/
SRR ST A Mr. Xian Zhenyuan 1/1
= Rz+T(RZZTZ=F=H+/XHBEE) Ms. Qin Ling (resigned on 16 March 2023) /1
2 R&4& Mr. Liu Min 11
F BmL Ms. Li Tao 11
FHTES Non-executive Directors
R it Ms. Chen Hong 11
REREE(RZTE-=F/XA-HEZ(L) Mr. Zhang Daoyuan (appointed on 2 June 2023) 1/1
BIFHITES Independent non-executive Directors
2 HEERZZTZ=F/AZHBA) Mr LiuJin (resigned on 2 June 2023) /1
THRERAE Mr. Li Liuging 1/1
H OBELT(W-ZT-=FNA-HEME) Ms. Zhao Jun (resigned on 2 June 2023) -1
BREn B ir+ Ms. Ou Yaqun 1/1
EHEBAAE(WRZZE-_=F,XA-HEZ{) Mr. Lei Chunyong (appointed on 2 June 2023) 1/1
A #zt(RZTZ=%FHZ-RAEZE) Ms. Zhou Lin (appointed on 2 June 2023) 1/1
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The Company’s external auditor attended the annual general meeting held
on 30 June 2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The auditor to the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities
in the auditor’s report on the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may raise significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, therefore the Directors
continue to adopt the going concern approach in preparing financial
statements.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s audit expenses
amounted to RMB3,000,000. There were no significant non-audit service
assignments performed by the auditor of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining operation of the effective internal
control system of the Group. The Board performs annual review of the
effectiveness of all material controls of the internal control system, including
financial supervision, operating supervision, compliance supervision and
risk management system through the Audit Committee. Internal review
personnel are responsible for assisting the Audit Committee in reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal control system. Internal review personnel
perform internal review and other relevant review regularly. They report
the review results to the Audit Committee and provide the members of the
committee with advice to optimize internal control for the Audit Committee’s
consideration. During the year, internal review personnel mainly reviewed
the major risk management systems based on the internal control advice in
the report formulated by external audit institutions, and reported the review
results to the Board. With the support of the Board, the internal review
personnel carried out improvement for the operation of the Group. The Board
had conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Company and its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2023.

DIVIDEND POLICY

This policy aims to provide shareholders of the Company with stable
dividends and sets out the guidelines for the Board of the Company to
determine whether dividends are to be declared and paid, and the level of
dividend to be paid to the shareholders of the Company.

It is the policy of the Company to allow its shareholders to participate in
the Company’s profits whilst to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
Normally, the Company pays dividends twice a year, which are the interim
dividend and final dividend. The Board may declare special dividends in
addition to such dividends as it considers appropriate.
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In determining the frequency, amount and form of any dividend in any
financial year/period, the Board shall consider the following factors: (1) the
actual and expected financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”); (2) economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group; (3) the Group’s business strategies, including future
cash commitments and investment needs to sustain the long — term growth
aspect of the business; (4) the current and future operations, liquidity
position and capital requirements of the Group; and (5) any other factors
that the Board deems appropriate.

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
no less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, on a one vote per share
basis in the share capital of the Company, and the foregoing Shareholders
shall be able to add resolutions to the meeting agenda. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association, the number of
Shareholders necessary for putting forward a proposal at general meetings is
as follows:

(i) at least 2 Shareholders entitled to vote at any general meeting; or

(i) any Shareholder or Shareholders representing no less than one-tenth

of the total voting rights (on a one vote per share basis) of all the
Shareholders having the right to vote at the general meeting; or
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(iii)  any Shareholder or Shareholders holding Shares conferring a right to
vote at the general meeting being Shares on which an aggregate sum
has been paid up equal to no less than one-tenth of the total sum
paid up on all the Shares conferring that right.

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person, other than
a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless
notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the registration office no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least seven days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are posted on the website of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group has already set up the Investor Relations Department to be
responsible for investor relations management work and established various
channels for the communication with investor, including direct line and mail
so as to ensure smooth communication between the Company and investors.
In addition, in order to provide a full picture of the business development
and prospects of the Company to the media, securities analysts, fund
managers and investors, the Company held telephone conferences and
luncheons for them, organized visits to the Company from time to time and
answered their inquires in a timely manner.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with its
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage their
participation. The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions
for separate issues proposed at the general meetings. The Company will
continue to maintain an open and effective investor communication policy
and to update investors on relevant information on the Group’s business in a
timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirement.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Company reviews its shareholders’ communication policy on an annual
basis to ensure its effectiveness. After the review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy, the Company is of
the view that the policy is effective in providing channels for shareholders to
communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company and for
the Company to solicit and understand the views of the shareholders.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time put their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through the contact details as follows:

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited

4th Floor, Tian Lun Group Building

No.6 Huang He East Road

Zheng Dong Xin District

Zhengzhou City, Henan Province

The PRC

Email: ir@tianlungas.com

Telephone and Fax No.: 86 371 6370 7151

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond,
and his biography is set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

The company secretary of the Company Mr. Tam Tak Kei Raymond has
been informed of the requirement of the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
and he confirmed that he had attained no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2023.

MATERIAL CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

In order to (i) bring the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
in line with the relevant requirements of the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Listing Rules; (ii) to provide flexibility to the Company
in relation to the conduct of general meetings; and (iii) make other
miscellaneous and housekeeping changes, amended Articles were approved
by the Company’s shareholders at its AGM on 30 June 2023. Please refer to
the Company’s circular dated 8 June 2023 for details of the amendments.
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To the Shareholders of Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Lun Gas
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set
out on pages 84 to 271, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes,
comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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FHEBHENEERE

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill

FRRIFE I TEIRAEM T 17 RE 106 HAJEETEE
Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 106

BRETEE RN EFTNAEEZER
The Key audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
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ZEMBLAETHRESEHS THA(ZERESELE LA  Our procedures in relation to assessing potential
FEHRE B S ENESGEN) HENDES FMIERAY  impairment of goodwill included the following:

M2 - BESFEZRERH -

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of e TR E R B AR B ARSI 2 5%

goodwill was RMB2,736,579,000, which accounted for AT EReEEREERB e RENR AN
approximately 17% of the total assets of the Group. This B

represented goodwill recognised in a number of business obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
combinations related to groups of cash-generating units the design and implementation of management’s
(“CGUs") that were expected to benefit from respective key internal controls over the process, including
business combination and was subject to annual management’s preparation of the discounted cash
impairment assessment. flow forecasts;
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Assessing potential impairment of goodwill (continued)

FLEE TR R 17 RFE 106 RAVEEIHEK

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 106

BRETEE
The Key audit Matter
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In performing impairment assessments, management
engaged an external valuer to assess the recoverable
amounts of CGUs using value in use method by preparing
discounted cash flow forecasts. Management compared
the carrying value of each of the CGUs to which the
goodwill had been allocated with their respective
recoverable amounts to determine if any impairment loss
should be recognised. The preparation of discounted
cash flow forecasts requires significant management
assumptions and estimations, in particular the discount
rates, future revenue and future operating costs.

B 2B En RS ()

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BENETNAREZSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ZRRBITRAER N Z R I EEE X GHIR
ﬁ@ " AHEE IEI"%TE%%Fﬁiﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁﬂz%ﬂ%&%flfﬁ
CELBEITNEESIRE)

assessing management'’s |dentification of CGUs
and allocation of assets to each CGU with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards and our understanding of the Group’s
business;

HEEEERE
M
evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by
management;

BSNEREERT 2 BE ) - EEMEE
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Assessing potential impairment of goodwill (continued)

FLEE T RA R 17 RFE 106 RAVEEIHEK

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 106
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The Key audit Matter
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We identified assessing potential impairment of goodwill
as a key audit matter because the carrying amount of
the goodwill was material to the consolidated financial
statements and impairment assessments of goodwill
performed by management involve significant judgements
and assumptions that are inherently uncertain and could
be subject to potential management bias.
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BENETNAREZSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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comparing the prior year’s cash flow forecasts with
the actual performance of the CGUs for the current
year, in order to assess the reliability of historical
accuracy of management’s forecasting process and
whether there is any indication of management
bias;

SIABMHAREEZRR - BERMS2RBTE
R ER - LR AT EEREMRANMGE
TEZIREN - WiRAZEMEANITREESE
FfTEEMARIFMERANSGER - R EZEFNR
EHaIEMN

involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist us, on a sample basis, in evaluating the
appropriateness of valuation methodology used by
management with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards and assessing
the reasonableness of the discount rates by
considering whether the discount rates applied
were within the range adopted by other companies
in the same industry;
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AMEEE SR E (F

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill (continued)

BRI ETEIREZ RN T 17 RFE 106 AR & FHBE
Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 106

BRETEE RN EFTNAEEZER
The Key audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
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o challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions
adopted in the preparation of cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue and future operating
costs, on a sample basis, with reference to our
understanding of the Group’s business, historical
trends, available industry information and available
market data;

o FHEEIRERARRMA « RSN ARFHTIR X
BREDN - WEBHLERENEMEENT
2 UREEHFEEMNEERRENTR 0 &
evaluating management’s sensitivity analysis in
respect of the future revenue, future operation
costs and discount rates and considering the
resulting impact on the impairment assessments
and whether there is any indication of management
bias; and

. 2RVITEAEAZEXR - LR BHRERTA
BARBREN AN EENR 2 GBI
assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the impairment assessments of goodwill with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 75



B ZEEHRE ()
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KPMG

TITRZERBRBERBENRARR

Recognition of revenue from engineering construction services

BRRRFETEIRA RIS RE 121 BB E 7R
Refer to notes 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 121

BRETEE
The Key audit Matter
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The Group recorded revenue derived from engineering
construction services amounting to RMB1,044,910,000,
accounting for approximately 14% of the total revenue of
the Group, for the year ended 31 December 2023.

TREZERRBEBHRATIRBERAEZ GG TIED
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Revenue from engineering construction services is
recognised over time, based on the input method to
estimate the percentage of completion, by reference to
the actual costs incurred to-date relative to the estimated
total costs for satisfaction of the contract. Management
exercised significant judgements in estimating the
extent of progress in the satisfaction of the performance
obligations in the engineering construction service
contracts and the forecast costs to complete them.
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BENETNAREZSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Our procedures in relation to the recognition of revenue
from engineering construction services included the
following:

o A TR R MR EBHN R ARRBENBERA
BRi 2 BRET - BATAEITA UL
assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the process in the recognition of revenue from
engineering construction services;
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Recognition of revenue from engineering construction services (continued)

BRERF R EIRZ RIS RE 121 BB E 71K
Refer to notes 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 121
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The Key audit Matter
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We identified the recognition of revenue from engineering
construction services as a key audit matter because they
were significant to the consolidated financial statements
and their recognition involve significant management
judgements and estimations that are inherently uncertain
and could be subject to potential management bias.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BENETNAREZSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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obtaining an understanding with respect to the
accounting policies related to the recognition
and measurement of revenue from engineering
construction services and inspecting the
construction contracts on a sample basis
to assess the appropriateness of revenue
recognition accounting policies with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

AR A 2 - BB L B 2R A A AR B R Y
TBHEER  WARILLERIER AEE - HEREMT
BB RIIE B P B TR BAAR RN A 2 st iR B
challenging management’s estimations of the
expected future costs required to complete
individual projects, on a sample basis, by
comparing costs to be incurred with the most
updated budgets and by benchmarking with
comparable projects;
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Recognition of revenue from engineering construction services (continued)

FLBGE N RA RN E S RFE 121 BEAE R

Refer to notes 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 121

BRETEE RN EFTNAEEZER
The Key audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
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selecting samples from the total actual costs
incurred up to year end to inspect underlying
contracts with sub-contractors, supplier
invoices, bank records and third-party engineers’
certification of work completed, where applicable;

o RIREAFEHRED TAIE B M ERKATIEFK
VR —FEHIERNTRAETE L - UeHEEEE
JE st TR e e R - R
assessing the accuracy of management’s historical
forecasts by comparing the actual costs and gross
profit margins for projects completed during the
current year to forecasts made in the prior year;
and

J BRIBSH AT BITE NEKANEZSIEENE
R - EFEtE ST LB D LA R E R H U
Ao
recalculating the percentage of completion and the
corresponding revenue recognised based on the
updated estimated total cost for satisfaction of the
contract and actual costs incurred to date.
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BYZEENHRE (F)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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BYZEENHRE (F)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Choi Chung Chuen.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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ArEiEEmR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(EFEMBARETT (K= HHH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+-—A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E_= —E-_F
2023 2022
B = AR¥ET T AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

PN Revenue 5 7,725,448 7,542,859
SHERK A Cost of sales 8 (6,272,601) (6,149,950)
EF Gross profit 1,452,847 1,392,909
7 EERCAR Distribution expenses 8 (87,802) (77,187)
THE A Administrative expenses 8 (237,830) (233,639)
SRREHEER Net impairment losses on financial

BEEIEFEE assets and contract assets (67,397) (64,293)
H b zs Other income 6 21,445 23,413
HAbEE — 558 Other losses — net 7 (43,571) (104,395)
K FHE Operating profit 1,037,692 936,808
B e Finance income 9,429 11,541
755 A Finance expenses (391,241) (324,955)
WISER — 58 Finance expenses — net 10 (381,812) (313,414)
JEREtE N A RAENESESE  Share of results of associates

and a joint venture 11(b) 60,146 46,730

BR Fr 15 8 5 K58 Profit before income tax 716,026 670,124
TSt & A Income tax expense 12 (209,749) (200,852)
FERNE Profit for the year 506,277 469,272
FEEER Profit attributable to:
— RARAEIfBEE — Owners of the Company 479,562 444 598
— FEAE R — Non-controlling interests 26,715 24,674
FEFE Profit for the year 506,277 469,272
BRER Earnings per share
— GREARREFEF — Basic and diluted earnings per share ~ 13(a) 0.49 0.45

RRRRIERER AR 2023FFEHRE



cEEmkEMZEKRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(BB BARKETIT(BIEEH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+T-A=1+—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—EC=HE =B
2023 2022
B &E ARET T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Hih 2 E W= Other comprehensive income
BRI eET7HEE Item that will not be reclassified
1Bz i) IE B to profit or loss
NAREBEFEEHE Changes in the fair value of equity
SFAEMEEEEZ investments at fair value through
HRREAREBEES other comprehensive loss 27 (13,500) (9,600)
AEEHMEEUE Other comprehensive loss for
HBRTE the year, net of tax (13,500) (9,600)
AREERHEINFHELE Total comprehensive income
for the year 492,777 459,672
BER : Attributable to:
. VNG iv e — Owners of the Company 466,062 434,998
— JEFE IR A — Non-controlling interests 26,715 24,674
492,777 459,672

3
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wra MR R R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(RFELLENRETFTT (B HZEH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

Rt+t=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E_= —E-_F
2023 2022
s AR%T T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FIRBEE Non-current assets
TEE - BENMEE Property, plant and equipment 14 3,756,751 3,646,105
EREEE Right-of-use assets 15 265,252 268,115
A E i E Investment properties 16 38,663 41,576
mREE Intangible assets 17 4,859,397 4,980,409
T ARG E Investments accounted for using
the equity method 11(b) 866,050 801,015
EIETIEEE Deferred tax assets 30 8,038 18,044
WAREEFER Financial assets at fair value through
Hitzml et &EE other comprehensive income 19 41,800 59,800
AR BEFEREE Financial assets at fair value through
B mEE profit or loss 23(a) 11,057 80,687
HIERBEE Other non-current assets 21 98,800 80,891
9,945,808 9,976,642
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 180,839 129,260
SHEBE Contract assets 5 2,141,420 2,667,764
LA B SN L A JRE U R Trade and other receivables 20 2,084,010 1,644,577
NARBEFEAER Financial assets at fair value through
HEfzmBaEnemEE other comprehensive income 19 14,328 10,899
AR BEEBEESES):T A Financial assets at fair value through
BENEREE profit or loss 23(a) 160,567 54,712
HeRReEFEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 964,310 1,340,135
R HIR Restricted cash 24 199,242 134,745
5,744,716 5,982,092
EEHEE Total assets 15,690,524 15,958,734
= EQUITY
BERAQBFEE 2ER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
R& R Share capital 25 8,264 8,511
BIFEK Treasury shares 25 (73,233) (158,925)
R4 B Share premium 25 81,317 341,096
H& Reserves 27 979,170 877,666
Bl Retained earnings 27 4,804,155 4,439,597
5,799,673 5,507,945
FEEHI MRS Non-controlling interests 312,148 314,725
HERER Total equity 6,111,821 5,822,670

RRRRIERER AR 2023FFEHRE




e E (&)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
(ZBEEMBARKETF T (BIESEHH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-=F =B F
2023 2022
B 5E AR#ET R AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
afE LIABILITIES
EREBERE Non-current liabilities
BN Borrowings 29 3,113,873 4,287,778
HEARE Lease liabilities 15 6,407 6,886
EEFIITBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 30 735,906 745,495
IR ES Deferred income 18,951 11,387
3,875,137 5,051,546
REBEE Current liabilities
JE 1~ BR 0 R0 EL b A~ R Trade and other payables 28 980,052 1,161,991
EHAEE Contract liabilities 5 612,176 575,851
PR Dividend payables 29,553 6,837
EHMEHEE Current income tax liabilities 391,157 414,422
R Borrowings 29 3,687,581 2,915,286
HEAR Lease liabilities 15 3,047 1,569
UARBESZHHZS)E A Financial liabilities at fair value through
BENERas profit or loss 23(b) — 8,562
5,703,566 5,084,518
BERE Total liabilities 9,578,703 10,136,064
BRERZNEE Total equity and liabilities 15,690,524 15,958,734

BEEeN_ZT_NF=A-_+N\BREL

AFAIEE o

2024.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March

[y A
Mr. Zhang Yingcen
EF

Director

FREF271 ENMEB AT B REN —

2By e
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Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
EF

Director

The notes on pages 92 to 271 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(EFELBARETT (K= H5A))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BEINVALRAS
Attributable to owners of the Company
i ERR i G e BE i B
Non-
Share Treasury Share Retained controlling Total
capital shares premium Reserves eamings Total interests equity
ARETT  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RNB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(RzE25) (Kizk25) (Kizk25) (sx27) (3x27)
(Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 27) (Note 27)
RZE-ZE-B-AMER  Balance at 1 January 2022 8,466 (200,697) 528,133 736,819 4,145,458 5,218,179 310,195 5,028 374
kil Comprehensive income
REFIE Profit for the year - - - - 444 598 444 598 24,674 469272
ﬁﬁbé@% Other comprehensive income
AT EESEAEY Financial assets at fair
AR EY gAY value through other
SREE comprehensive income = = = (9,600) = (9,600) = (9,600)
2ENGAE Total comprehensive income - - - (9,600) 444,598 434,998 24674 459,672
HERfAENANEE Transactions with owners in
WEHETNRA their capacity as owners
i Appropriation = = = 150459 (150,459) - - -
YENBARRMER Acquisition of additional
interests of a subsidiary - - - (12) - (12) (681) (693)
SERRRAHEED Non-controlling interests
ks arising on merger within
the Group - - - - - - 192 192
BfRA(R3E31) Dividends paid (Note 31) = = (223,081) = = (223,081) = (223,081)
B R Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests — - - - - - (19,655) (19,655)
TriAmeE (B 25(b) Repurchase of shares
(Note 25(b) = (255,911) = = - (255,911) = (255,911)
HRERH (3 25(a)) Issuance of shares upon
placement (Note 25(a) 403 - 333,369 — - 333,772 - 333,712
TRl (RsE 25(a)) Cancellation of shares
(Note 25(a)) (358) 297,683 (297,325) = - - - -
45 41,772 (187,037) 150,447 (150,459) (145,232) (20,144) (165,376)
imk k3 Balance at
TZA=T-ANES 31 December 2022 851l (158925) 341,0% 877666 4439597 5,507,945 314725 5802670
FIR2EEFE 271 EMEBATIEMEN  The notes on pages 92 to 271 form part of these financial statements.
— &k o
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REERBER (E)
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
(2FREN BARET T (BRIFZEHH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

ERNELARAE
Attributable to owners of the Company
e Efl R fife BEkE BF  FEitES bRg
Non-
Share Treasury Share Retained controlling
capital shares premium Reserves eamings Total interests Total equity
ARETE  ARETT  ARBTn  ARETR  ARBTR ARETn ARETn ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RNB'000
(Hit25) (Kizk25) (Kizk25) (Rk27) (3x27)
(Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 27) (Note 27)
HoBoZE-B-ANER  Bdcedtlnan203 85I (88925 ML0% G666 4430597 SS9 3475 586N
kil Comprehensive income
REFE Profit for the year - - - - 479,562 479,562 26,715 506,277
Hp2EdE Other comprehensive income
AT EESEAEY Financial assets at fair
A2 EY gAY value through other
LHEE comprefiensive income - - - (13,500) - (13,500) - (13,500)
2ENREE Total comprehensive income - - - (13,500) 479,562 466,062 26,715 492,717
RERFAENAFAEN  Transactions with owners in
SHEMNRS their capacity as owners
flE Appropriation - - - 115,004 (115,004) - - -
EARA (3E31) Dividends paid (Note 31) - - (171,135) - - (171,135) = (171,135)
BRI ER R Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - (20,988) (20,988)
TriAmeE (R 25(b) Repurchase of shares
(Note 25(b)) — (3,199) — = — (3,199) = (3,199)
Tinstss (it 25(a) Cancellation of shares
(Note 25(a)) (247) 88,891 (88,644) - - - - -
RENBAR (M 11() Disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 11(a)) - - - - - - (8,304) (8,304)
. Balance at
tZB=1-BfEs 31 December 2023 8,264 (73,233) 81,317 979,170 4,804,155, 5,799,673 312,148 6,111,821
F92EHEF 271 EMFEEBAYIZMEA  The notes on pages 92 to 271 form part of these financial statements.
—&#B5 o
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meRERER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(EFEMBARETT (K= HHH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+T-A=1+—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—EC-=F =B
2023 2022
{iFza ARET T AREBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
RETHEENESRE Cash flows from operating activities
EETEBELEMNIRS Cash generated from operations 32(a) 1,247,868 900,005
BT TSR Income tax paid (228,097) (210,782)
KL BB E LIRS F 5 Net cash generated from
operating activities 1,019,771 689,223
RETBEENRESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BETHE = M&RE Purchases of property, plant and
equipment (312,101) (385,543)
THETFERFRIEE N Increase in lease prepayments (5,835) (4,850)
BRETEE - MEX Proceeds from disposal of property,

RABFTSRA plant and equipment 32(b) 17,198 9,351
BEEFEAE Purchases of intangible assets (5,712) (6,209)
BEUAAEBESEEHE Purchases of financial assets at fair

FTABENEREE value through profit or loss (66,621) (119,484)
REEE RN BINIRE Investment in an associate (4,889) (800)
BEUAABESTEBESSH Proceeds from disposal of financial

FFAEERN SR EEMS assets at fair value through

I8 profit or loss — 80,112
BEEEREARNIEERT Proceeds from disposal of investments

BEE accounted for using the equity method — 20,192
B B M B A BIFT{S 5I8 Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 7,560 —
I REMT B R Rl E AR Net cash outflow for the acquisition

RE R FEE of subsidiaries (4,523) (116,735)
IR GIE 225 Changes in restricted cash 14,725 58,705
2 Uk F Interest received 9,429 11,460
SNGE T B - & H RN A =45 2R Settlement of forward exchange

BHINEE instrument, cross currency swap and

interest rate swap contracts 38,576 (12,100)
KB EEFTAMIE & /558 Net cash used in investing activities (312,193) (465,901)

RRRRIERER AR 2023FFEHRE




GERESRER(E)
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
(ZBEEMBARKETF T (BIESEHH))

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—EC-=F B —
2023 2022
PiEE ARET T AREBT T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
REEEEENESRE Cash flows from financing activities
EFRFTSF0E Proceeds from borrowings 32(c) 2,943,430 3,602,314
BEER Repayments of borrowings 32(c) (3,431,731) (2,938,260)
B F B Interest paid (374,479) (292,531)
BENmEER Financing expenses paid (20,852) (18,244)
AR B ER 2 A RO ARF Dividends paid to Company’s
shareholders (152,687) (223,081)
PR HIER & B E) Changes in restricted cash (22,693) (70,627)
W BE BB A Rl sE S ME RS Acquisition of additional interests in
a subsidiary — (693)
B3R Sl R = AR Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests (16,720) (19,351)
%17 o1 8% Repurchase of shares (3,199) (269,421)
HEBBEINFIE Payments related to lease liabilities (3,855) (4,539)
TRIER (D HARE ST 2135 1T AR (D Proceeds from issue of shares pursuant
Fria=oa to share option scheme — 333,772
mEES (FTH) EED Net cash (used in)/generated from
IREER financing activities (1,082,786) 99,339
HERHRSLEEYWORY),  Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
¥ nEEE cash equivalents (375,208) 322,661
FUREMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 24 1,340,135 1,014,978
Re KRS EEBYIE L EE Exchange losses on cash and cash
equivalents (617) 2,496
ERBERBALSEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 24 964,310 1,340,135

F£ 92 HEF 271 AWK B AR BREKH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(EEBARIETTE (RIEBEHP)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

REE-KREHR

RimARIERER AR ([ARE )
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BIRAR-_E—ZTFHA_+H
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1

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated on
20 May 2010 in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (2010
Revision) of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability. The Company is an investment holding company and
was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10 November 2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the engineering
construction service by providing residential, commercial and
industrial users with gas pipeline and infrastructure laying and
installation and transportation, distribution and sales of gases
including natural gas and compressed natural gas (“CNG”) and
production and sales of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) in bulk and
in cylinders in certain cities of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC™).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.1

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Material accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2.2.1 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current accounting period reflected in these financial statements.

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2

2.2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
associates and a joint venture.

Subsequent to 31 December 2023, the Group has successfully
obtained a three-year syndicated loan of HKD869 million and a
foreign currency loan of USD40 million (equivalents RMB1,073
million in total) and another three-year loan of HKD200 million
(equivalents RMB182 million in total) to repay the USD168 million
syndicated loan (equivalents RMB1,196 million) due February
2024, together with the consideration of future operating cashflows
generated by the Group’s operations and the Group’s ability to
maintain reasonable financing costs through appropriate financing
portfolio, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that the Group
has sufficient funds to meet its working capital commitments,
expected capital expenditure and debt obligations. As a result, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative instruments), which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4.

It also
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2.2

2.2.1

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) to these financial statements for the current accounting
period:

— HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

— Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors: Definition of accounting
estimates

— Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making materiality
Jjudgements: Disclosure of accounting policies

— Amendments to HKAS 12, /Income taxes: Deferred tax related
to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction

— Amendments to HKAS 12, /ncome taxes: International tax
reform — Pillar Two model rules

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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2 EESHBEK(E 2

2.2 HBBROEREE(E) 2.2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

2.2.2 K5 [ 5f FK BRAN B9 T 2E R B2 S 2.2.2 New standards and amendments not yet adopted by the Group

‘%7'

ANER B M R IR AT AN A T E R
MARZZE=Z=F+=-H=+—8H
E’wfiiﬁﬁéﬁ%lJ;amE’J%ﬁaTanrﬁ
/H\IJ * l:l /EE‘H nzjﬂ:Dn%*ﬁ";Z:—"—f
ZE?'\'J BE] R BT EHAE

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting
standards and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting periods and have not
been early adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments or
interpretations are not expected to have a material impact on the

l%‘ﬁﬁiiﬁX#ﬁziﬁﬂb{&—ﬁEEE’ﬂ Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
KRR GEEEAZE future transactions.

FEUT HESR 2 2B IR I

SHHBEEX

Effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after

(BEBGERDSE 15K (BFIAN) — [HBEESE - B nE R EE 7] —E-E—A—H

([—FE=FFET2))

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of liabilities as 1 January 2024

current or non-current (“2020 amendments”)

(BRGERDE 1 (BRIA) — [ HHZIH - MR ngEE] “T-pmE-A—H

([ZF==FET2))

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Non-current liabilities with 1 January 2024

covenants (“2022 amendments”)

(BRIBREELDFE 165 (BFTK) —/HE - ERHENHEERE) —T-_MFE-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback 1 January 2024
(BRGHENE TR — [HenE k) ROEBIBHREERDE 7 5 (Ea14) — —ZT_MFE—-A—H

[2BTA : KF - REBHEZH)

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows and HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: 1 January 2024

Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements

(BRGTERDSE 215 (BRI R) — [EXEE T E - = A L1 “Z-h¥—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: Lack of 1 January 2025
exchangeability
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2

2.3
2.3.1

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entities and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entities. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (refer to Note 2.4).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively.

2.3.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case
where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting (see Note 2.3.4 below), after initially being recognised
at cost.
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2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

2.3.3 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and
obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group has a joint venture.

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
(see Note 2.3.4 below), after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet.

2.3.4 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the other entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

2.3.4 Equity method (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.11.

2.3.5 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRS.
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A s =
2 EESTEBXRGE) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
23 EHRAIRERSTTERE 2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(%&) (continued)
2.3.5 BEREZZE (E) 2.3.5 Changes in ownership interests (continued)
i —E G & D FE ok R R If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
BREEDRBRE ERZESIE reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only
A B 7 BRI AM 2 E KR a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
BRNSEERS —ELOINEEN other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
NEEEEZ (WEA) - appropriate.
24 EBEHt 2.4 Business combinations
REBERABESFABA XK The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
EHAR  THREGEEEERT business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
By HMEE - BE —HMNEBEAA or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
EERHRERRE : acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:
= FregEEEmM A RER = fair values of the assets transferred,
— WU B 2 s 2 R HE B AFTEE — liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
=L business,
_— AREE B BT A — equity interests issued by the Group,
—  SBHEEBTHMEAEMAE —  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
EXBENAAEE &k consideration arrangement, and
= K88 A B EAR] SE BT T R IR —  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

AEZHAEE -

EEBEHPFEERAIZREE Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
IAKRFTERENEERKERE B assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
EUERBEHHNAAEEE measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
(D HBIIMERERIN) o REE LAE Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
BN BE LA - FR2 A A B A SRR IEIE on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the
Il 1 R R PTG A U B £ BB AT Rk B & non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
R E LIRS F 8 net identifiable assets.

(EREE e Falt

HE BB AR EE AR S 8 o Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.4

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the

— consideration transferred,

— amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,
and

— acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity.

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value
as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing
could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.
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2.5

2.6

2.7
2.7.1

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the steering committee that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

2.7.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.7.2 Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in profit or loss on a
net basis within “other losses — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.7.3 Group companies

The results and financial position of Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

— income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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A . =
2 EESTEBXRGE) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7 HNEFE(E) 2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.7.3 EFRA(E) 2.7.3 Group companies (continued)
BESINETBELENRNERANE Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
BERBRBZBINETENEENS foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
&+ WIZAIRERIGBE o« EERIE and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
HEBRAEMZEBER AR - arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.8 TBHE- - BERRE 2.8 Property, plant and equipment
NEIE - BB R B AEEE L AR Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
ZEHTEMEREBEYRE - B accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
SRABEEEZEEE EEEN includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
MR o the items.
BERARNRBERAEEANE BT Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
PREAZZIE B B B R RS EF %= recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
Mme%18 B MK ANBER] et =0+ probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
BIECEENREBENERA— will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
HEBEE(ER) - (ERBMLE reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
EANRMN A FERAEENE separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
FHARR IETER - FTEHMAEEE maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
REEAMNREHEARERAS in which they are incurred.
8 o
TER NG R EAFENER Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
FETE - BEMRAIERKAR0% - 5% their cost, net of their residual values at a range of 0% — 5% of the
IR E s EE R THY cost, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
—  BF 20-30F —  Buildings 20-30 years
— R 5-10%F —  Equipment and machinery 5-10 years
— MREE 16-30 4 —  Gas pipelines 16-30 years
_— MARBEREEH 3-84F — Office equipment and motor vehicles 3-8 years
BEMNFSREENMFERAFHES The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
EEEABERBETR - REH adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

£
BRI o

EEEMEREEBRNHEMET T An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
E{EE - HRAEEENRHRZER recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
e &5 (f1sE2.11) ° estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP"”) represents buildings, gas
pipelines and equipment and machinery under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs
of construction of buildings and costs of plant and machinery. No
provision for depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for intended use. When the
assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred to
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated above.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office buildings, are held
for rental yields and are not occupied by the Group. Investment
properties are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write-
off the cost of the assets to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives of 25 years.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amounts. These are recorded within “other losses —
net” in profit or loss.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
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2

2.9

2.10
(a)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, the transfer does not change
the carrying amount of the property transferred, nor does it change
the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquirees and the acquisition date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquirees over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.10
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Operating rights for city pipeline network and gas station

Operating rights for city pipeline network and gas station represent
the rights for distribution of gas in certain cities or districts in the
PRC, and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any. The cost incurred for the acquisition of
operating rights is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives (10-50 years).

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3-5
years).

Network

Network acquired in a business combination is the distribution
network of pipelined gas and is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The network is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over the estimated
lives of 25-30 years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
contractual customer relations have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives (23-
25 years) which are determined by the length of the adjusted lengths
based on the existing sales contracts with its customers while taking
into account the possibility of renewals by the management.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EEETBXRGE) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 keWMEERE 2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets
FASGTRENEERELEE Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
BEEN  BEFETRENR - not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
NEEEHHRNIERE SRR or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
BE IR R ERT - 1T SARR(E A that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
Ao HbBEERBEHHRABER whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
BB R R BRI (B (B Al B A A UK B B carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
ETRENR - tEERMEESR recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
HH [ Bl & REA) & FE AR R B B exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
BB SBEAEENAAEE higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
HBRSHER A AEERME < H the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
Bas A%k - R RER @ EE lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
H4% ] S8 37 5 Bl 3R 2 AR (K which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
BRn#H - ZIRERALEAMEE or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
SEEMAEGCREELE L) WRE that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
MARKEERBILFANR o HIER impairment at the end of each reporting period.

B RMEE (HRBRI) BRE
B4R 58 R B L 0 T A i
TR -

212 RERHMMERMEE 2.12 Investments and other financial assets
2121 7 ¥ 2.12.1 Classification
REEZUATHEENECMEE the Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
HEITHH - categories:
— REBUAAREEE2(BEHE —  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
FErr ARt 2 mEskia through other comprehensive income or through profit or
m) MEMEE & loss), and
— NESEK AT EN SR E —  those to be measured at amortised cost.
E=o
ZABRHANEREECREERN The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
FBHEAARZEENERRESR managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
SRR - flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2

2.12
2.12.1

2.12.2

2.12.3

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EESTBEGE 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.12 RERHMWEREE () 2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2123 FrE (&) 2.12.3 Measurement (continued)
EHFEITA Debt instruments
BERLANBEAZIANAEH Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
ERZEAENEBEAURZEE Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
WESRERE - AEBKEBKT characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
BB =145 into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:
— DESBERAEE - HREE —  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
NEBmMERBEERENE contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
E REFRBSREER payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
REARSAF SR I - Y cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included
ZEENEENR AT E © % in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
EEREENNEWMANE Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
BRAEEETE - st A in profit or loss and presented in “other losses — net”
Z o RIFFERES E A MRS together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
B REREAT ABRE - W losses are presented as administrative expenses in profit or
b 5 RIS B R —RZIRE loss.

[EAbER — 8] 5 R
BEERERGETIIRAIT
Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.12.3 Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income: Assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other losses —
net”. Interest income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in “other
losses — net” and impairment expenses are presented as
administrative expenses in profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within “finance
expenses — net” in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EBEEEITBE(E) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.12 RERHEMESRMEE () 2.12 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2123 51E (&) 2.12.3 Measurement (continued)
#mT A Equity instruments
REELRAAEBEEMEERKE The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
EITREE - WRAEEERE value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
BEESERIRENALEBENSEMN value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
BRETAEMEEYE @ BIE4RI1E income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
BRZBERER T2 AAER gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
FIBFEAREDEEER - HRK the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
F - B AREEE S WERF B 4E recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to
I - ZERE KA A VE R HAD receive payments is established.
Wasimat AfBz o
HRUAAABETEAHEEFHA Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
BaefEE  EAREEES) profit or loss are recognised in “other losses — net” in profit or
PIRREEAR [ EMEEE — F loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
B (wEA) - SRUAARER losses) on equity investments measured at fair value through other
FrE R AELMEAEKEN comprehensive income are not reported separately from other
BmEE  HREEE (A KRBE changes in fair value.
EiEsEE) TEEM AR EEEH
BEIR o

2124 BifE 2.12.4 Impairment
HR AR AT EMARAEE The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
FrEBEEBE ALMEAEKERD losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
B TR AEBEGEBHERE cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The
A BT RE (ERTA © B T VEEUR impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
REGRREREEEZIEM - a significant increase in credit risk.
R FE AR RN E A EIGR - AR & For trade and other receivables, the Group applies the simplified
EHAC(E BT BmEERDFE IR approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
AR TE - VSRR losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables,
EREVGREBAFERNESEARE see Note 3.1(b) for further details.

K FRMES. 1) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.13

2.14

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet where the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,
such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability
at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured
at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
or joint ventures are provided for no compensation, the fair values
are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment.

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

113



3% R MR (&)

ER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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2.15

2.16

2.17

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, including in “other losses — net”.

Inventories

Inventories, including materials for gas pipelines and consumables
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sell.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 2.12 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade receivables and Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2

2.18

2.19

2.20

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, that are convertible
to known amounts of cash and while are subject to an insignificant
risk.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back or a share-
based payment plan, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company as treasury shares
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
owners of the Company.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EBEEEITBE(E) 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.21 X 2.21 Borrowings
BRIRARBELINBREENIS Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
B R RVIRTER o (B ERIREE costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
ATIEREIB R (IR B A ) 8 cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
fE BB EMNEMEEFAERRE and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
EREFEAE R ET A o period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
R B EREER R E B Wb (D Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
e mESLRAERIR - ZE transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
BEREEFNRSBH - £1b15 some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
AT BREEEEFIRNAL - is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
R A BEFRI NS R ERE evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
EREgRAEHER  MZERE drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
MMEtE B RENE © RS TERZ services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
1% 75 BER) Bb & KA S AR S o relates.
RIEASERAIEKGEREBENEE Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
BEE#EREHED 12 A - BAY an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
BRDERREEE - 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.22 B 2.22 Borrowings costs
BEEGBRIE  BRFEESE General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
BEE(EVARK —BREHEE acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
MEETEEABNHEENEE) B are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
—MEBTEERKNAE  MAZEE ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
ENKAN  BEEEEAB LHEZ assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
HEAFEFERENIEERIE ° intended use or sale.
MEEENR  BEFEEREERN Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
I ER R IR R A9 1R B A - borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
FEB & ERENMEME R AFH deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
FiT 7 H b & SR AN E B2 A BRI RO 48 All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
PR © in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.23

2.23.1

2.23.2

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Current and deferred tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Group’s entities operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences;

temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture to the extent that the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future;

taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition
of goodwill; and
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2

2.23
2.23.2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Current and deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

— those related to the income taxes arising from tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two
model rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control
the reversal of the temporary difference for associates and joint
ventures. Only when there is an agreement in place that gives the
Group the ability to control the reversal of the temporary difference
in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable
temporary differences arising from the associates’ and joint ventures’
undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred taxes balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2

2.24
(a)

(b)

2.25
(a)

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC contribute on a monthly basis
to various defined contribution retirement schemes managed by the
PRC Government. The contributions to the schemes are charged
to profit or loss as and when incurred. The Group’s obligations are
determined at a certain percentage of the salaries of the employees.

Housing fund and other benefits

All full-time employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
entitled to participate in various government-sponsored housing
and other benefits funds. The Group contributes on a monthly basis
to these funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees. The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited
to the contributions payable in each period.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for

example, the requirement for employees to save or holding
shares for a specified period of time).
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 EESTBEGE 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.25 IR AERNIT(E) 2.25 Share-based payments (continued)

(a) UEZBENRGZNIXE (a)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)
(%)

EEERERR - AEBKIERS At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
RS RT L TR AR ml 1T RE A ERRE 2K of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
BEfEE - AREEEBEPERE service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
REEEFT (F) RE - W estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
wIEFEFE AR - to equity.

gtoN - ERLFRT - EEATBE In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services
i BB 2 AT RS - B in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value
HEIW A R EEMERREF G is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the
R B A2 B A RO B S VB period between service commencement period and grant date.

&t e

TEHAREIT R RS - RARIBEITHAR © When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
WK BRHNGMEEERBR proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs
SR EF AR (R E) are credited to share capital (and share premium).

(b)) ZEEAURGHBEBRNKXS (b)  Share-based payment transactions among Group entities
ARREERNBAFTNEERT The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to
Higm T ARHEE  BERELRK the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
A WHEBRBNAAEE 2 a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received,
ERHAMAREERFE  WES measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
FHAER - (EREMBARIRE over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
HIIE 0 - SARFE S B A Rl AR B YR undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
#=HER ° entity accounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2

2.26

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

The Group derives its revenue primarily from sales of gas and
engineering construction service. Revenue is recognised when or as
the control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws applicable,
control of the goods and services may be transferred over time or at a
point in time. Control of the goods or services is transferred over time
if the Group’s performance:

— provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer; or

— creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

— do not create an asset with an alternative use of the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to
the contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable, and represents amount receivable for the goods and
services transferred to the customers stated net of value added taxes.

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

121



AR e RS R R M EE (AF)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(TRREMBARETIT(FHFFEEHH))
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2

2.26

(a)

(b)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for the
Group’s activity described below:

Engineering construction service

Revenue in respect of the engineering construction service, including
gas pipeline connection and engineering construction, is recognised
over time, by reference to completion of the specific transaction
using input method which recognises revenue using costs incurred
relative to total estimated costs to determine the extent of progress
toward completion. The Group recognises revenue over time only if it
can reasonably measure its progress toward complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation. However, if the Group cannot reasonably
measure the outcome but expects to recover the costs incurred in
satisfying the performance obligation, then it recognises revenue to
the extent of the costs incurred.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion
are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or
decreases in estimated revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss
in the period which the circumstances that give rise to the revision
become known by management.

The customers are required to pay in advance for certain contract
amount based on a payment schedule. If the services rendered by
the Group exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If
the payment exceeds the services rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

Sale of gases

Revenue from the sale of gases, including pipelined gases, CNG and
LNG, are recognised at the point of time when control is transferred
to the customer, which generally coincides with the time when the
gas is delivered to customers and title has passed, and is based
on the gas consumption derived from metre readings. Payment of
the transaction price is due immediately at the point the customer
consumes the gas. Payments received in advance that are related
to sales of natural gas not yet delivered are recognised as contract
liabilities and deferred in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2

2.26
(c)

(d)

2.27
2.27.1

2.27.2

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

Service income

Service income represents income from engineering and consulting
services provided to customers and is recognised when services are
rendered.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares;

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing

costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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2

2.28

2.29

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is
established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of an investment.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.29

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

— fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable;

— variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

— payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2

2.29

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

— where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

— uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group,
which does not have recent third-party financing; and

— makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
— the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
— any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

— any initial direct costs; and
— restoration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.29

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group leases lands. All land in the PRC is state-owned or
collectively-owned and no individual land ownership exists. The
Group acquires the right to use certain land. The premiums paid for
such right are treated as prepayment for the lease and recognised as
right-of-use assets.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
16). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised
as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based
on their nature.

2.30 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
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2

2.30

2.31

2.32

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. Government grants relating to
property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred government grants and are credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
“finance expenses — net”.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes,
see Note 10 below.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims and make good obligations are recognised
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.
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2 BHESTBE(E 2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

234 REEBRIABEE(E) 2.34 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)

B EEREBENEIAMEER A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
BEEE  HFEEBBITTEMH and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
7N E% B 42 1) A0 118 25 BUE 1 1 TE R 2K occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
FIEMBEENTBETUEE - the control of the Group.
KBEETTHER - BRLERNS A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
AJ B2 AR TR AR & BT TS 3Rk MO BT o the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic
BEEEABELEMNZRA benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
W B EERRREE - recognised.

2.35 @S 2.35 Related parties

(@) WEBLATAL:  BlaZ ALk (@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
ZATHII R R ASEE N to the Group if that person:
i
(i) 7 il o A 2 ) AN B2 (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
;
(i) HEAEEEEAFE (i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
77+ 3k
(i) RALEHAREEE (iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the
NAINEAREEA Group or the Group’s parent.
g -
(b)  WAFFE THMEMGREE - EM (b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
FERERNSERBEES conditions applies:
(i) ZEREAEERE (i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
il SN QIE=SS3/N group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
CIRNNE ) =GR R fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
eGSR S dink =
Bit) o
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.35 Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.35 Related parties (continued)

3.1

(b) (continued)

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

(viii)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by Group finance department under
the policies approved by the Board of Directors. Group finance
department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, concentration risk, credit risk, and use of non-
derivative and derivative financial instruments, and investment of
excess liquidity.
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(a)
(i)

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar (“USD”)
and HK dollar (“HKD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
Management has set up a policy to require the Group companies to
manage their foreign exchange risk against their functional currency.
The Group companies may mitigate the foreign exchange risk through
entering into foreign exchange forward or cross-currency swap
contracts. See Note 23 for detail information.

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 3%
(2022: 1%) against the USD with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year then ended would have
been approximately RMB51,444,000 (2022: RMB20,564,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of USD-denominated bank borrowings, restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/strengthened
by 3% (2022: 1%) against the HKD with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year then ended would
have been approximately RMB11,493,000 (2022: RMB4,093,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of HKD-denominated bank borrowings, restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents.
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(a)
(ii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings and bank
deposits. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s
borrowings of RMB5,322,614,000 (2022: RMB5,682,599,000)
bore interest at variable rates and borrowings of RMB1,478,840,000
(2022: RMB1,520,465,000) at fixed rates.

As at 31 December 2023, if interest rates on borrowings at variable
rates had been 0.3% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit before income tax for the year would have been
approximately RMB15,968,000 (2022: RMB17,048,000) lower/
higher, respectively, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

As at 31 December 2023, if interest rates on all interest-
bearing bank deposits within cash and cash equivalents had been
0.3% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit
before income tax for the year would have been approximately
RMB2,893,000 (2022: RMB4,020,000) higher/lower, respectively,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income earned.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group arise from cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade and other receivables, contract assets, financial
guarantee contracts, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and at fair value through profit or loss. The
carrying amounts of these balances (excluding financial guarantee
contracts) represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to these financial assets.

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an on-going basis.

The Group generally requests advances from customers in relation
to the engineering construction service, and grants credit periods up
to two months to the customers in relation to the transportation and
sales of gases business. In circumstances of credit sales, to manage
the credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers.

Significant concentration of credit risk primarily arises when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers. As at 31
December 2023, of total trade receivables and contract assets of
RMB2,119,416,000 were due from the Group’s largest customer
Henan Yutian. The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk
in respect of the trade receivables and contract assets through
exercising influence over its financial and operating policy decisions
and reviewing its financial positions on a regular basis.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

— cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash;

— trade receivables for sales of gas and engineering construction
service;

— contract assets;

— other financial assets at amortised cost; and

— notes receivable at fair value through other comprehensive
income and amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, all of the
Group’s bank deposits are deposited in the major reputable financial
institutions in the PRC which management believes are of high credit
quality and do not expect any losses from non-performance by the
counterparties.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work
in progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022 was determined as follows for both trade receivables
and contract assets:
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3 MBEREEGE) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.1 HB¥EBEZEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) EHEEE) (b)  Credit risk (continued)
(i) EHEEREE) (i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
JEWARF NG #IEE (FE) Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)
TRERTEGEAETNRERS The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has
INE R EWRRNENEER been recognized for trade receivables and contract assets other than
TRHEREXEHER related party under the simplified approach:
-EUT  -EEME WEE=E ZEERE mERE &t
Less than
ZEZZF+ZA=1—H 31 December 2023 lyear 1to2years 2to3years 3todyears Over4 years Total
BHERRRE Expected loss rate 2.66% 21.38% 31.50% 7532%  100.00%
REA&%E — YIRS Gross carrying amount —

(AREFT) trade receivables (RMB'000) 477,737 34,636 13,346 5,110 19,587 550,416
RREE — ANAE Gross carrying amount —

(ARETT) contract assets (RMB'000) 26,926 = = = = 26,926
BABEARSTR) Loss allowance (RMB'000) 13,422 7,405 4,204 3,849 19,587 48,467

—EUT  —FEME  WEER=F FEEF M F &5t
Less than
“Z-"F+-A=1+—H 31 December 2022 lyear 1to2years 2to3years 3todyears  Over4 years Total
EHEREAR Expected loss rate 2.85% 19.48% 28.29% 68.66% 100.00%
RAEEE — IR Gross carrying amount —

(ARETT) trade receivables (RMB'000) 461,472 23,794 8,200 5,606 16,557 515,629
REEE — ANEE Gross carrying amount —

(AR%ETT) contract assets (RMB'000) 34,337 = — — — 34,337
BXBEARETT) Loss allowance (RMB'000) 14,116 4,636 2,320 3,849 16,557 41,478
REBSBEFTMG T ETERAME The Group individually assessed the credit risk of trade receivables
I B # A R #1,114,588,000 amounting to RMB1,114,588,000 (2022: RMB450,034,000)
T(Z T Z—F: AR ¥ and contract assets amounting to RMB2,119,416,000 (2022:
450,034,00070) & HEEAR RMB2,695,196,000) due from Henan Yutian. Considering financial
#2,119,416,000 (= == 4F : background and good creditability of Henan Yutian, provided for
AR #2,695,196,0007T) #1= F accumulated loss allowance amounting to RMB126,029,000 (2022:
R - ZEREIEBRRNIES = RMB65,621,000).

RRIHEE - REFAHRRERBEA

AE#65,621,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)
FE W AR RN
BREEEES
Provision for trade

Receivables and
contract assets

ARET T

RMB'000

MN-_E-_—_F—H—H At 1 January 2022 42,798
FEW AR A& KB ERE Net provision for impairment of trade receivables and

S FEE contract assets 64,301

M-ZT-—F+=-F=+—H At 31 December 2022 107,099
FEUEBR KA & K& ERE Net provision for impairment of trade receivables and

A HER contract assets 67,397

M-ZZE-_=F+"H=+—H At 31 December 2023 174,496

ETFEADKNAERNE &
WHRAR A A N B ERE PR - T
FHEA KRS EERNEREERE
AR BN BIERNGE RS
RAIZIRAE RHEEITNK -

FEM R A G # B ERRERIRE
RENBPINBRITHER - RE
Y IB i) 2 B 3 & BB P R AR R A
A -

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and
a failure to make contractual payments.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets are
presented as administrative expenses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost mainly include other
receivables. Other receivables are measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, other receivables
including security deposit, which were performing. The Group
believes the loss allowance for other receivable as a result of applying
the expected credit risk model was immaterial.

Notes receivable at fair value through other comprehensive income
and amortised cost

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, majority of the
notes receivable were bank acceptance bills (see Note 19 and Note
20), which were accepted mainly by large state-owned banks or
national commercial banks. The Group believes these banks are of
high credit quality.
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(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

During the year, the following losses were recognised in profit or loss
in relation to impaired financial assets:

—E-=F —E-_F
2023 2022
AR¥ET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BB ETE Impairment losses
— R FE A — movement in loss allowance for
BEBRIEES trade receivables and contract assets 67,397 64,301
— HMSmEEME  — Impairment losses on other financial assets
E518 = (8)
SRR EHEER Net impairment losses on financial and
BB EFEE contract assets 67,397 64,293

AEB R RAREHEM G ER
HERRAR KM A SERRE
BEMNS0%  [AEEREXRME
R BRREHRRER - HEM
TR\ ez B % Ak ] 70 2N S [ 900 g 7R
EXfmESKRMOHER  FRHE
35(f) °

AEBEERYHEREOHISE
EEREIE -

The Group granted financial guarantees to Henan Yutian with
maximum exposure to credit risk as the 50% carrying amount of the
loans, counter-guarantee to one shareholder of Henan Yuzi Tianlun
Fund with maximum exposure to credit risk as the value of the shares
in Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund, see Note 35(f) for details.

The Group expects that no material liabilities will arise from the
financial guarantee contracts.
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3.1
(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of undrawn borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations, mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows, and
meet its financial obligations when they fall due. The Group expects
to fund its future cash flow needs through internally generated cash
flows from operations, borrowings from financial institutions, as well
as equity financing through shareholders when necessary. The Group
also reviews the utilisation of borrowings and ensures the compliance
of loan covenants.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.

—E0R —FZWE WERRE RENE
AEE Group Less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
RZZ==F+-A=1+—H At31 December 2023
RITER Bank borrowings 3,943,711 2,159,222 1,186,559 9,201
Hinfasn Other borrowings 480 480 1,440 3,599
HEEE Lease liabilities 3,440 2,396 3473 1,224
EREFME ERZ  Trade and other payables? 682,745 = = =
SREEAE Total financial liabilities 4,630,376 2,162,098 1,191,472 14,024
M=E-~F+-A=F—F At 31 December 2022
BIER Bank borrowings 3,240,121 1,703,647 2,887,300 28,630
HivfEsn Other borrowings 534 530 1,561 4,192
MEAE Lease liabilities 2,085 2,370 3,628 2,052
EREEHAMEMERNZY  Trade and other payables?” 926,503 - — —
AR BETE BEZH:TA Financial liabilities at fair value through
BRNERAR profit or loss 8,562 — — —
ERARSE Total financial liabilities 4,177,805 1,706,547 2,892,489 34,874
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)  Liquidity risk (continued)

@ Trade and other payables include notes payable, trade payables,
amounts due to related parties, contingent considerations, interest
payables and other payables as stated in Note 28.

0 As at the balance sheet date, the Group’s financial guarantees
provided to related party (note 35(f)) are analysed below based on the
maximum amounts and the earliest periods in which the guarantees
could be called:

—FHR —B=%F —BESF BEHE et
Within 1 year 1to2years 2to5years Over5 years Total
R-B-=F At 31 December 2023
+=A=t+-8
WIS HELR Financial guarantees 248,782 — — — 248,782
A At 31 December 2022
+=—A=+—R
WIS HEIR Financial guarantees 272,248 — — — 272,248
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3

3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
risk on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including “current and non-current borrowings” as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet) add lease liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt. The Group aims to
maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022
were as follows:

R+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E_= —E-_F
2023 2022
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AafE R (Bt 29) Borrowings (Note 29) 6,801,454 7,203,064
HESE (P 15) Lease Liabilities (Note 15) 9,454 8,455
B M NIFEEMBY)  Less: cash and cash equivalents
(M‘JEE 24) (Note 24) (964,310) (1,340,135)
W ZREIRE Less: Restricted cash
(Pff5E24) (Note 24) (199,242) (134,745)
(v dex:l Net debt 5,647,356 5,736,639
HarEs Total equity 6,111,821 5,822,670
BB Total capital 11,759,177 11,559,309
BEESMELE Gearing ratio 48% 50%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3

3.3

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried at
fair value as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 by level
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy as follows:

= Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3 BREKRER(EZ) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.3 ARBEME(E) 3.3

TRETAEBE_T_=F1+_
A=+T—BRARBEAENEE

Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2023.

MafsE -
E1E FE2E E3E Mt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARET ARET T AR®T T AR¥T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
AR EETEBEE Financial assets at fair value
T AHM2EE  through other comprehensive
HEREE income
— MRITEIELET  — Unlisted equity securities
Tt 5 in gas industry — — 41,800 41,800
— RREE — Notes receivable — = 14,328 14,328
e Subtotal — — 56,128 56,128
LUAREEFERHE  Financial assets at fair value
FE)ET A through profit or loss
— QX EHEREIFI  — Cross currency swap and
XS4 interest rate swap
contracts — — 89,587 89,587
— 48O FRi= 2R — Total return swap — — 82,037 82,037
et Subtotal — — 171,624 171,624
BEEHAE Total assets — — 227,752 227,752
afE Liabilities
HAbFERR Other payables
— S EYE — Contingent consideration — — 9,993 9,993
BEHE Total liabilities — = 9,993 9,993

146 XRGMREERERAT 2023FEFEHE



SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

3 WKERERGE) 3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.3 QAREEMEE) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
TREMMEEE T _F+= The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
A=+ HERARBEFENEE are measured at fair value at 31 December 2022.
MEME -
F1E F2E F3E HBET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETT ARETT ARETIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets

A AREEE 2 BEE Financial assets at fair value
Bt AH 2 ®EIkz  through other comprehensive

HNERMEE income
— WETEIELET  — Unlisted equity securities
Tt 5 in gas industry — = 59,800 59,800
— EWEE — Notes receivable — — 10,899 10,899
Nt Subtotal — = 70,699 70,699

A AREES 2 BES Financial assets at fair value
T AIBMEFE  through profit or loss

=
— XX EHEHIFT  — Cross currency swap and
FRIEEIEH interest rate swap
contracts — — 88,187 88,187

— AR RS — Total return swap — = 47,212 47,212
et Subtotal — — 135,399 135,399
BEHAE Total assets — — 206,098 206,098
af Liabilities
HABRERI5R Other payables

— S EHE — Contingent consideration — — 14,516 14,516

— iR HAGNE T B — Forward exchange instrument — = 8,562 8,562
EEHAE Total liabilities — — 23,078 23,078
FAEL 2 3EZHWEEAEE There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
% o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The valuation
technique used to value the unlisted equity securities is market
approach and the valuation technique used to value other financial
instruments is discounted cashflow.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
NAEEME(E) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
HEEIBANLHMT A (&) (c)  Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
TRENME_ZTE-_=F1+=A The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for
=T HLEFEFIEcHIAN the year ended 31 December 2023.
) o
FLmgR REINE A
#% REHE EWRE IR B
Unlisted Forward Total
equity Contingent Notes exchange retumn
securities  consideration receivable instrument swap
ARBTR ARBT T ARBTR ARBT R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N-Z-=%—F—HH)  Balanceat 1 January 2023
e 59,800 (14,516) 10,899 79,625 47,212
#E Additions - - 196,558 - 62,589
STABRMAAEESEE  Changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss — — (1,051) 48,538 (27,764)
Rl gl Net losses transfer to other
RS comprehensive income (18,000) — - — —
RE Disposals - — (192,078) — —
BEY s,/ (WE) Cash paid/(received) = 4,523 = (38,576) =
W_E_=% Balance at 31 December 2023
TZA=t—AMER 41,800 (9,993) 14,328 89,587 82,037

o ERRSEEEHH — 85 o
REEEE 30 RAEIHEH

AR

As part of cash management activity, the Group purchases short-term
bank financial product with maturity date within 30 days.
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3 HBERERE(E 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.3 QAREEMEFE) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(c) HEFIEAWEMIA(E) (c)  Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
TRBREBEEZE-_ZT-_—_F+=A4 The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for
Tt HILEFEFIEEMIAN the year ended 31 December 2022.
RITIRE FEmiER 2 ap
w0 Eetn HEHE EYEE SNETA T
Bank Unlisted Forward Total
financial equity Contingent Notes exchange return
products © securities  consideration receivable instrument swap

ARBTR  ARETE  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

WZEZZ% Balance at
—A—-AREH 1 January 2022 30,000 72,600 (180,700) 6,747 (30,269) -
G4 )= YN Acquisition of subsidiaries
i Additions 50,031 — — 153,372 — 62,531
STABRNAAER  Changes in fair value
B recognised in profit
o loss 81 = 49,449 (566) 97,794 (15,319)
HEEMPTYEER Nt losses transfer to
BiEFE other comprehensive
income — (12,800) — — — —
RE Disposals (80,112) = = (148,654) = =
Rexft Cash paid = = 116,735 = 12,100 —
S Balance at
+-RA=1+—A 31 December 2022
0 — 59,800 (14,516) 10,899 79,625 47,212
® EREeEREEHMN —IH - o As part of cash management activity, the Group purchases short-term
A& B E 30 A2 HIRY 42 B bank financial product with maturity date within 30 days.

EHEmM °
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(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2.11. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 17).

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs is not lower than the carrying amount even if taking into
account a reasonably possible change in key assumptions on the
calculations of recoverable amounts of CGUs.

Income taxes

The Group’s subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subject
to corporate income tax in the PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

151



o)

b S E L EEC D)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

(b)

(c)

BT ET R A
(4&)

FRiS®t (&)

& IR JE 78 /3 P BE A AR KRR TR A
TR E R IAEE - RlE
BRABRETERZENBEBR
FEERAEE - MIAMER A
TR AERERFEMEFTESH
B HEE N IR & E N P & A #E

e

BEERAEABRDRERNE R ER
R EN—AXST  AEExL
A XA G LASNR E A P HE R E b
BENBEMIIBCEFEZREN
FEBRRVANBIIER - T TEE
SrtiEs - AIAERHR -

THE BERRBUAKE
FEEz T AFHENGRE
=]

THE  BEMRBAREBTEE
T E ST N B A AT E R
HNIREREEENE M - I
REEBMIFREE - ~AEEER
FHETHE - BMEMRBEALE
FMEENSREERATAFH - Mk
BEHERRRE MG - RERERG
A ERERBHGAREZFR
ZITESEIHERBREE -

152 XGRKERERAT 2023EEEHE

4

(b)

(c)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised as management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets and income
tax expense in the period in which such estimate is changed.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except that the temporary differences
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, or arise from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated
or amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group assesses annually the residual value and the useful life of
the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and if the
expectation differs from the original estimates, such differences from
the original estimates will impact the depreciation or amortisation
charges in the year in which the estimates change.
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4

(d)

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in the tables in Note 3.1(b).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the senior executive management team on
monthly basis that are used to make strategic decisions.

The senior executive management team considers the business from
a “product” perspective only, as geographically all the products are
provided within the PRC, which is considered as one geographic
location with similar risks and returns.

The reportable segments derive their revenue and profit primarily

from sales of natural gas in cylinders, sales of natural gas in bulk
and engineering construction services.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The senior executive management reviews business performance
according to the types of end-users who use its products. For sales
made to residential customers, industrial and commercial customers,
and transportation customers is classified as sales of natural gas in
cylinders; whereas for sales made to city gas enterprise customers
for direct supply and wholesale purpose, and gas source trading
customers is classified as sales of natural gas in bulk. The revenue
from rental income of investment properties, value-added business
and other miscellaneous income, has been reviewed by the senior
executive management team, and its results are included in the
“all other segments”. Business segments are classified as: sales of
natural gas in cylinders, sales of natural gas in bulk, engineering
construction services and other segments.

The senior executive management team assesses performance of
the operating segments based on segment results which represent
the profit before taxation earned by each segment without allocation
of other income, other losses — net, finance expense — net, share
of results of associates and a joint venture, unallocated corporate
expenses such as central administration costs and directors’ salaries.

The Group does not allocate assets and liabilities to its segments, as
the senior executive management team do not use these information
to allocate resources to or evaluate the performance of operating
segment. Therefore, the Group does not report a measure of segment
assets and liabilities for each reportable segment.



e SRR M EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PEER (&

BE—_T-_=F+-_A=+—HIL
FE RAREHSHBRASRITERE
B BRI S BEELT

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment information provided to the senior executive
management team for the reportable segments for the year ended 31
December 2023 is as follows:

AR AR IRZH fig
FERE i34 RER% Ral  APEHE ) &t
Sales of Salesof  Engineering Inter-
natural gas  natural gas  construction All other segment
in cylinders in bulk services segments  elimination  Unallocated Total
AEETR ARMTr AR%Tn ARETn ARMTr ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
LON-E: Total revenue 5120,000 1,028,653 1,044,910 941,384 (409,499) — 7,725,448
AHRMA Inter-segment revenue = = — 409499 (409,499) = =
REMIMPRPHMA External revenue 5120,000 1,028,653 1,044,910 531,885 - — 7,725,448
BB AR Timing of revenue recognition
5 At a point in time 5120000 1,028,653 - 529,683 - — 6,678,336
E-RERER Over time - — 1044910 2,202 — — 1,047,112
A Segment profit 421,759 73,816 479,630 193,525 - — 1,168,730
AORER Unallocated expenses (41,515) (41,515)
SRRANEEN Net impairment losses on financial
EFETE assets and contract assets (67,397)  (67,397)
Al Other income 21,445 21,445
AfhEl — 5% Other losses — et (43571)  (43,571)
Fa-ilY] Operating profit 1,037,692
YER — 58 Finance expenses — net (381,812) (381,812
EEBENARAECFEE  Share of results of associates
and a joint venture 60,146 60,146
BREEHANE Profit before income tax 716,026
frEnER Income tax expense (209,749)  (209,749)
EEFE Profit for the year 506,277
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5 9EE(E 5

BE—_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HIL
FE  RAREHSHBRASRITERE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment information provided to the senior executive
management team for the reportable segments for the year ended 31
December 2022, is as follows:

AAR AAE  TERE iz)
TEXR  MERE k% Ead  HEmEHE AAE &t
Sales of Sales of  Engineering Inter-
natural gas  natural gas  construction Al other segment
in cylinders in bulk services  segments  elimination  Unallocated Total
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Nt Total revenue 4,905,179 825,907 1,408,858 834,517  (431,602) — 7,542,859
AHERA Inter-segment revenue = = — 431602 (431,602 = =
RERIMIEPRIA External revenue 4,905,179 825,907 1,408,858 402,915 — — 7,542,859
AR Timing of revenue recognition
PR At a point in time 4905179 825,907 — 399,98 - — 6,131,054
E-REER Over time - — 14083858 2,947 — — 1411805
DA Segment profit 314,584 61,946 599772 137,479 = — 1113781
F*PEER Unallocated expenses (31,698)  (31,698)
PRRENEER Net impairment losses on
HEFRTE financial assets and
contract assets (64,293)  (64,293)
Htolis Other income 23,413 23,413
HivEE — 58 Other losses - net (104,395)  (104,395)
FpE Operating profit 936,808
YRBH— 78 Finance expenses - net (313,414)  (313,414)
FEEMARTIRASAEEE  Share of results of associates
and a joint venture 46,730 46,730
BR AT SR AR Profit before income tax 670,124
FERER Income tax expense (200,852)  (200,852)
EERIE Profit for the year 469,272
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The principal subsidiaries of the Company are domiciled in the PRC.
All the revenue from external customers are derived from the PRC,
and all the non-current assets are located in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue of approximately
RMB397,364,000 and 5% of the Group’s total revenue, is derived
from a single customer, Henan Yutian, which is a joint venture of
the Group (2022: RMB751,669,000 and 10%) (Note 35(b)). The
revenue is attributable to engineering construction service and sales
of natural gas in bulk (2022: engineering construction service and
sales of natural gas in bulk).

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related
to contracts with customers:

Rn= E:_E RZE-—F
+T=A=+-— +=—A=+—8

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

ARET ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

MAEHNEE Current contract assets 2,146,342 2,729,533

R B BHE Less: Loss allowance (4,922) (61,769)

BRBEEET Total contract assets 2,141,420 2,667,764
aRAa%E Contract liabilities

TREE N AR Engineering construction service 371,538 386,041

RAARTSEET Sales of natural gas in cylinders 218,121 189,754

RARBLIE TS Sales of natural gas in bulk 22,517 56

S4B ERsE Total contract liabilities 612,176 575,851
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5 Z®ERGE 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BHNAEEH Movements in contract liabilities
—ZE== —E- 4
2023 2022
AR%T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—A—BM&sH Balance at 1 January 575,851 592,003
HERNERY AFT A  Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
VEHBEMERY recognising revenue during the year that was
aHhaERL included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the period (529,113) (533,441)
A T2 K2 & AR A Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing
RARHETEA in advance of engineering construction and sales
T8 YR IA T B 2 A of natural gas activities
B XA EIE N 565,438 517,289
Rt+=-—A=+—HH Balance at 31 December
#EER 612,176 575,851
R-ZE-_=F+-_HA=+—H' K As at 31 December 2023, majority of the contract liabilities will
HomeaaEEn —FREEA become revenue within one year.
WA o
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5 28MERGE 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(i) COEIHESYEBEEBHUW () Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
A
FUMEHNBEEEEFELKEER The following table shows the revenue recognised in the current
W AR SEEUNT reporting period related to carried-forward contract liability as of
January 1:
BZE+-A=+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-=F -4
2023 2022
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TR MR Engineering construction service 341,996 373,485
RARTE X Sales of natural gas in cylinders 187,061 156,819
RARHLEEZTS Sales of natural gas in bulk 56 3,137
529,113 533,441
6 Hfttlhz= 6 OTHER INCOME
BE+-A=1t—RHILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E_= —E- 4
2023 2022
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
TR T 45 B Government grants in relation to
— MHIARE — Tax refund 1,554 2,977
— B ESEEEI N — Subsidies for local investment rewards and
HAbAEED other incentives 19,891 20,436
21,445 23,413
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7 Hitg e

REE 7 OTHER LOSSES — NET

BE+T-A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR%T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BETEE MENK  Gains on disposal of property, plant and

BAEFE equipment (Note 32(b))

(KF7E32(b)) 6,889 2,555
Se RBNE Penalty and overdue fines (1,972) (1,031)
SEEHBAEEES) Changes in fair value of contingent consideration — 49,449
b 5 B8 558 Net foreign exchange losses (76,695) (245,598)
LAREBESEHRHE  Gains on financial assets and financial liabilities

FEET ABEM at fair value through profit or loss (Note 23)

TEE EE

(MtE23) 20,774 82,475
Hith Others 7,433 7,755

(43,571) (104,395)
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REEOENER 8 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BE+-—A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-=F —E-F

2023 2022

AR¥T T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FEREMB X EFES  Raw materials and consumables used 5,463,931 5,278,145
T8E  HEK Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

REITE (MizE14) (Note 14) 212,544 202,174
BB R ETE Depreciation on investment properties (Note 16)

(MizE16) 2,734 2,685
| EE#SS (MEE17) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) 126,315 122,796
EBRFER (M3E9) Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) 302,003 307,911
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15)

(Pff¥zE15) 13,188 11,401
THERBRENKTER Engagement of construction and design services 308,002 357,880
MABRARERE Office and travelling expenses 57,167 66,570
BT Maintenance costs 37,364 37,339
BERHFE Energy consumption 31,811 35,363
I8 Taxes 25,597 24,057
2 Gl Auditors’ remuneration

— RS — Audit services 3,000 3,550
=SEEH Advertising expenses 3,313 2,105
WS E45 8L E(E  Licensing fee for the exclusive operating rights

==E=3 for city pipeline network 1,100 1,100
HE Miscellaneous 10,164 7,700
SHERA - DAk AN K Total cost of sales, distribution expenses and

THRERE administrative expenses 6,598,233 6,460,776
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9 EERMNEH 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BE+T-A=1T—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—EBE-=F —E-_F

2023 2022

ARBTT ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

T & R 5 Wages and salaries 228,960 231,750
RIRERRA — Pension costs

ERFaTE] (a) — defined contribution plans (a) 26,035 25,014

ftEREES Social security benefits costs 23,695 25,367

HAth Others 23,313 25,780

302,003 307,911

(a) REE-_ZT-_=F+-HA=+—H (a)  During the year ended 31 December 2023, no forfeited contributions

IEFEERE - ANEETES AR were utilised by the Group to reduce its contributions for the current
WERAINRERFEEHRI(ZF year (2022: Nil).

TTF |

R-B-_=%+-_HA=+—8" As at 31 December 2023, no contributions were payable to the fund
AREE YW B % IRE S AR at the year-end (2022 RMB241,000).

B(ZZZ-——%: AR%241,000

JT) °
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9 REEBNERE) 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(continued)

(b) BENuUESHFMAL (b) Five highest paid individuals
BE-ZT_=F+-_HA=+—H1F The five individuals whose emoluments were highest in the Group
FE - AEBRNESHFALEE for the year ended 31 December 2023 included four (2022: four)
WEER(ZZ-_FF : OF) - directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in
ZEEENHEE RN E38 Note 38. The emoluments payable to the remaining one individual
FoHE—T-_=F+_H=1— for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: one) are as follows:

AIEFEE  IHFHT—R(ZZ
TFE —H) AL ¢

BE+T-A=1+—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-=F B F
2023 2022
AR®F T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HARF @ MER, Basic salaries, and allowances 239 356
BIREFI R Pension and other social benefits
H 2 F 48 17
287 373
RAF EMA TS BRATE The emoluments of the above individuals fell within the following
: bands:

BE+t-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E2=-= —E- 4
2023 2022
L £7%%1,000,0007t Nil to HKD1,000,000
(HEARE (approximate to RMB906,200)
906,2007T) 1 1
AEEWERRALRSHA LI No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
EATBN & 1E & DN A ZS & B sk 0 A B individuals as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
) SR ED Sk BB (S o compensation for loss of office.
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REE 10 FINANCE EXPENSES — NET

BE+T-A=1+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December

10 HBEH

—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR%T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
g e Finance income
— SRITIFRAIERTT — Interest income from bank deposits and
BRI mMAF S bank products
WA (9,429) (11,541)
HiEER Finance expenses
— [ERFEER — Interest expense on borrowings 398,177 331,375
— HEAE — Leasing liabilities 507 560
— EA — Others 9,865 9,105
B ABREEEAN  Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets
b (17,308) (16,085)
391,241 324,955
381,812 313,414
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11(A) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

ARENEEMBARIMTRES 2023:
HRELNER/ BB/
£ WHRAH EEERER BARx  BEENER TERBAGEY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
UARRERAD ([ UAER]) iBERREE/ ERETAT T 100%*  REBERES
“ZE=E+ANA RANERA
Upsky Holdings Limited (“Upsky Holdings”) ~ BVI/ Limited liability company 7 100%**  Intermediary holding
8 July 2003 company in BVI
KaFecRaRAR ((KefaR]) Bt/ EREfAA = 100%  REERNBRAE
“T-ZERATA
Tian Lun New Energy Limited Hong Kong/ Limited liability company — 100% Intermediary holding
(“Tian Lun New Energy") 10 May 2010 company in HK
BETARMERARAR (ETER) 8/ BRAEAR 15,000 100% RARERREBARRHER
“2-ZFRAT=R MEEERRAIRZE
Hebi Tian Lun New Energy Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 15,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Hebi New Energy") 13 May 2010 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
TEXRRREEARAR ((TEARRR)) $8/ EREfAA 1,920,060 100%  RPEREREERARHER
“ERCET--H NAEERREIRE
Henan Tian Lun Gas Group Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 1,920,060 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Henan Tian Lun Gas") 1 November 2002 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
BENXREANAARAR(BRXGER) $8/ ERETAT 10,000 100%  RREHERERAR
ZEREETAZTAR
Hebi Tian Lun Vehicle-use Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC

(“Hebi Tian Lun Vehicle")

29 October 2007
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11) B EIRE (&)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EETRE BARE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASEHY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
FEMARBRERAR ([FEXR]) hE/ BRERAA 135,000 100%  RPEREEERARHER
“ER=EAAZTAA MREERRAIRTE
Xuchang Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 135,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Kuchang Tian Lun") 29 September 2003 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
FETARERMRARAR e/ ERREAT 10,000 100%  RREHERERAR
(FEXmER]) “BZ\FNATZH
Xuchang Tian Lun Vehicle-use Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Kuchang Tian Lun Vehicle") 12 September 2008
il ERRRIAERA e/ BRERAA 15,000 0%  RPERREBRARHER
(NE:7N:1) “ERHELATIR MREERRAIRTE
Zhengzhou Shangjie Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 15,000 90% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Shangjie Tian Lun") 18 July 2007 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
AETARRARAR ([ HEAR)) e/ ERREAT 30,361 BI%  HRPEREEEANAHER
“BR=ER AT MREERRATRLE
Baiyin Natural Gas Limited (“Gansu Baiyin") ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 30,361 98.97% Sales of pipelined natural
16 June 2003 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
ARTEBRRARLR (ARER]) e,/ BREFAT 8,500 100%  REEREREAAR
ZZENETATRA
Baiyin Wantong Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 8,500 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Baiyin Wantong") 15 October 2009

166 XGMREBEREMRAT 2023FEFEHE



11() ffE A BRE (42

SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
EERE A RS ARAR e/ BRRTAH 140,000 100%  RPEREREERARHER
(EuE) ZZTRE-AZ TR MREERRAIRLER
BERARHE
Jilin Zhongji Dadi Gas Group Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 140,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Jilin Zhongji") 25 March 2005 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
and sales of CNG in the
PRC
AmARRARAR ([hAax) e/ BREEAT 24,000 100%  RREEEEERAR
ZTE\ELANR
Jiutai Dadi Gas Limited (“Jiutai Dadi") PRC/ Limited liability company 24,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
8 July 2008 gas in the PRC
ERTAMRRARAR ([BRAM)) e/ BREFAR 10,000 100% KRR HEEERAAR
“ERETACTSA BERAR
Panshi Dadi Gas Limited (“Panshi Dadi") PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
26 October 2006 gas and CNG in the PRC
ARTASRRARAR [ARAH)) e/ ERREAT 12,000 100%  RPEEERERARR
ZZE\§-A=THA EERER
Da'an Dadi Gas Limited (“Da'an Dadi") PRC/ Limited liability company 12,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
25 January 2008 gas and CNG in the PRC
AT ARAARERA ([RAAS]) e/ BRRTAH 6,000 100%  RHEHERERAR
e v =
Baicheng Dadi Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 6,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC

(“Baicheng Dadi")

23 March 2006
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(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11a) B ATIRE (i) 11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
BREEMEERAR ([AEZAD)) e/ BREMAA 16,000 100%  ROEEEEERAR
“EENEAAZTH
Zhenlai County Dadi Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 16,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Zhenlai County Dadi") 30 September 2009 gas in the PRC
BREALRARAD ([ BREAD]) e/ BREEAT 10,000 100%  RREEEEERAR
“ERRET—A=1H
Tongyu County Dadi Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Tongyu County Dadi") 30 November 2005 gas in the PRC
BEETARBRERAR ((EEXR]) e/ BREFAR 20,000 100% MERREEARRHER
“ERNET-ANA MREEEREIRTR
Puyang Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Puyang Tianlun") 9 November 2009 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
TR RRARAR ([RHL A1) e/ BREEAT 13,000 100%  RPEEEEERAR
ZERtE-ATRA
Dunhua Dadi Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 13,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Dunhua Dadi") 15 January 2007 gas in the PRC
ERTAMEIEAERAR (EHAL])  $E/ BREEAR 5,000 100% RRERE TR R
Z2E-E-RtA il
Jilin Dadi Technology Consultancy Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 5,000 100% Engineering design and
(“Jilin Dadi") 7 March 2002 consulting services in the
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11) B EIRE (&)

e SRR M EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
TSR RIRERAR (HERR]) e/ BRRTAH 10,000 100%  RPEREREERARHER
I s MREERRATRLE
Xinye County Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Xinye Tian Lun") 2 November 2011 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
AEGRRRERAA (TEgR]) e/ ERREAT 33,330 100%  RHERREEXRRHER
“BRRE-ARE MREEEREIRZER
BEANRHE
Henan Luyuan Gas Limited (“Henan Luyuan”) ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 33,330 100% Sales of pipelined natural
6 January 2005 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
and sales of CNG in the
PRC
BEARIAERAR (TERE]) e/ BRRTAH 41,000 100%  RPEREREERARHER
“2——5 A THA MREERRATRTE
Song County Tian Lun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 41,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Henan Songxian”) 24 June 2011 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
BETERTERRARAR(HEGRER) $8/ ERREAT 1,060 100%  RREHERERAR
“ERNEN\ACTIA
Shangqiu Luyuan Vehicle Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 1,060 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC

(“Shanggiu Luyuan Vehicle")

22 August 2006
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(TRREMBARETIT(FHFFEEHH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11() B EIRE (&)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
AORERRERAA (DROZE]) hE/ BREMAA 13,500 100%  RPEREREERARHER
“2——5-f5B MREERRATRLE
Dongkou Senbo Gas Limited (“Dongkou Senbo”) PRC/ Limited liability company 13,500 100% Sales of pipelined natural
6 January 2011 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
RAEARARERLA ((FHEA]) e/ ERREAT 30,000 100%  RPEREEERARHER
“BEMETAZTI\R MREERRAIRLE
Kaifeng Xi'Na Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Kaifeng Xi'Na") 28 October 2004 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
B RN ARAR ([EEHR ) e/ BREAAA 10,000 80%  RPEREEERARHER
“2-—FRANA MREEEREIRTR
Cao County Zhongtian Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 80% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Caoxian Zhongtian") 9 May 2012 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
B RERAA ([BERK]) e/ BREEAT 12,000 80%  AMMERREERNRHER
ZRREMAZ T MREERRAIRZE
Shan County Zhongtian Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 12,000 80% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Shanxian Zhongtian”) 27 April 2006 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
BEEZRRIRARAR (ERAR)) hE/ BRERAA 30,000 100%  RPEREREERARHER
ZE-Z5-AiA MREERRATRTE
Guangyi Luzhai Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Luzhai Tianlun") 6 January 2012 gas, construction and
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11) B EIRE (&)

SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
FEXRERERHAERAD(HERR]) HE/ BREMAA 10,500 0%  RPEHEREANR
“Z-ZERf=1-R
Xingtai Tianlun Yunyu Vehicle Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,500 70% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Kingtai Tianlun”) 31 May 2012
DRRERRERAA ([ERAR]) e/ BREEAT 30,000 100%  RRERREERARHER
“E-Et-A=1A MREERRAIRZE
Gulang Tianlun Gas Limited (“Gulang Tianlun")  PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
30 November 2012 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
ENREERGIAARAR(RERR])  HE/ BRERAA 10,000 0%  ReERERRRIRY
ZE-ETZANA %
Jilin Changling County Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 70% New energy technology
(“Changling Tianlun”) 4 December 2013 development services in
the PRC
RREEAARERARAA(RAEE]) #E/ BREFAR 10,000 80% MERREEARRHER
Z2TR5 AR MREEEREIRTR
Dongming Wanji Natural Gas Industrial Limited  PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 80% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Dongming Waniji") 3 June2005 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
TEMEARRRARAR ([TREA) e/ BREEAT 30,000 100%  RREREREERARHER
“2R-E-AZ 1A MREERRAIRZE
Heze Guanghe Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural

(“Heze Guanghe”)

24 January 2002
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11a) B ATIRE (i) 11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
ERERARIRARLA ((EBAR) hE/ BRRTAH 10,000 100%  RPEREREERARHER
“B-=E+-ACT+H MREERRATRLE
Guangxi Guanyang Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Guanyang Tianlun”) 27 November 2013 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
G LR X REARRARAA e/ ERREAT 10,000 100%  RREHERERAR
([ HExmER]) “B-=EMATIE
Zhengzhou Shangjie Tianlun Vehicle Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
Limited (“Shangjie Tianlun Vehicle") 18 April 2013
EARARRERAR ([ ZRAR]) hE/ BRRTAH 160,380 100%  RPEREIRRRE
“Z-=E-f=1MA 5
Yunnan Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 160,380 100% Engineering design and
(“Yunnan Datong") 24 March 2013 consulting services in
the PRC
LEENBRARARLA([2EAE)) e/ BREFAR 37,380 100% RAERREBARRHER
ZERLETZACT-H MREEEREIRTR
Huize Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 37,380 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Huize Datong”) 21 December 2007 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
EEXRARRERAR (EEAR]) e/ BREEAT 30,000 100%  RREREREERARHER
“ZENE-ATHA MREERRAIRZE
Gejiu Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural

(“Gejiu Datong”)
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gas; construction and
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11) B EIRE (&)

SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
BEEABRARARAR ([EEAR)) hE/ BREMAA 33,000 100%  RPEREREERARHER
“2-SENAZR MREERRATRLE
Guangnan Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 33,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Guangnan Datong”) 2 September 2010 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
AOERBRARARAR ([T0KE) e/ ERREAT 26,000 100%  RPEREEERARHER
“B-=EAAZTHH MREERRAIRLE
Hekou Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 26,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Hekou Datong") 24 September 2013 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
RUERBARRERAR ([BILAR]) e/ BREFAR 26,000 100% RAERREBARRHER
“2——%RfA+1H MREEEREIRTR
Yanshan Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 26,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Yanshan Datong”) 10 May 2011 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
ARBRARERAR (AITAR)) g/ BREAAA 10,000 100%  KPEREEERARHER
“ETNEN\AZTEA MREERRAIRZE
Honghe Datong Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Honghe Datong") 25 August 2009 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
RRGERRIRRARAR (HEXR)) hE/ BRERAA 10,000 100%  ROEEEEERAR
S e
Weishi Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural gas
(“Weishi Tianlun”) 30 July 2013 in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11() B EIRE (&)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
EHFERRIRARAR ([ FRAR)) hE/ BREMAA 16,000 100%  RPEREIRRRE
ZE-ZEN\AZ17A it
Jilin Yitong Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 16,000 100% Engineering design and
(“Yitong Tianlun”) 26 August 2013 consulting services in
the PRC
BAERARAR(EAER) hEEE/ BREFAT 610% 100%  RESREARRRERS
Z3-ZF5AT=R
Hong Kong Xin Rong Limited (“HK Xin Rong")  Hong Kong/ Limited liability company 610 100% Trading of natural gas
13 June 2013 equipment in HK
NETHERRREBRRARAA e/ ERREAT 30,000 0%  APEREREBRARHER
([ zEH5)) “ZZ\ETATHR MREERRAIRLE
Shantou Chaoyang District Minan Pipelined PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 90% Sales of pipelined natural
Gas Limited (“Shantou Chaoyang") 15 October 2008 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
IETHERRRRERAR (ERE])  +E/ BREFAR 17,250 90% RAERREBARRHER
—NABERAZTEA MREEEREIRTR
Shantou Chenghai Gas Construction Limited ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 17,250 90% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Shantou Chenghai”) 24 June 1994 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
ANmERE R ARAR ((BNER])  $8/ BREEAT 133,224 60%  ROEREEBRARHER
ZE-ZENARR MREERRAIRZE
Chaozhou Huamao Energy Distribution Limited ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 133,224 60% Sales of pipelined natural

(“Chaozhou Huamao”)
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SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11() MR RRE (&) 11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
R RERAA (AR R]) hE/ BRRTAH 10,000 100%  RbERERREERRS
“Z-ZERA=TA
Tangyin Yuneng Gas Limited (“Tangyin Yuneng”) PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Provision of designing service
30 May 2013 of gas pipelines in the PRC
B e ONG ((E el hEEE/ BREEAT 79* 100%  REBETRENAERE
ZT-PENARR
Wah Shing Century Limited Hong Kong/ Limited liability company 79* 100% nvestment in equity and
(“Wah Shing Century") 5 August 2014 assets in HK
IrARRAERARA (I RARRE]) e/ BREFAT 70,000 100%  RRERERNMER
Z2EFRAZTZH
Beijing Tian Lun Investment Company Limited ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 70,000 100% Intermediary holding in
(“Beijing Tian Lun Investment") 23 May 2006 the PRC
TEXRREERARAA (XRIAER) 8/ ERREAT 265,411 0%  MMERERMREERER
ZZEN\EZATNHA
Henan Tianlun Pipeline Company Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 265,411 90% Sales and transportation gas
(“Tianlun Pipeling”) 19 February 2008 in the PRC
HIERRRERAR (H)IXR]) hE/ BRRTAH = 100%  RRERERARHEARMR
“2-NEtA=R RRMHE
Xichuan Tianlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company - 100% Sales of natural gas and
(“Xichuan Tianlun”) 3 July 2019 trading of natural gas

equipment in the PRC

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 175



e HRME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11() B R RRE (&) 11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
HEERRERAA([=HER]) hE/ BRRTAH 24,000 100%  RRERERRHERERR
ZE-Z5-ANR REEREE MREET
BEE
Sanming Hui Ji Energy Company Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 24,000 100% Sales and transportation gas,
(“Sanming Huiji") 9 January 2012 gas pipelines connections
in the PRC
FNXRRRERERAR (SMAR) e/ ERREAT 50,000 85%  RPEREMEHERER
ZZEN\E=ATtA
Suzhou Tianlun Natural Gas Pipeline Network ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 50,000 85% Sales and transportation gas
Company Limited (“Suzhou Tianlun") 17 March 2008 in the PRC
RRELERNRERAA (BRER]) hE/ BRRTAH 3,000 100%  RPEREREERARHER
12 December 2005 MAEERRETRRE
Li Quan County Hong Yuan Natural Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 3,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Company Limited (“Liquan Hongyuan”) 12 December 2005 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
ETERRRARAR (RERE)) e/ ERREAT 3,000 100%  RPEREEERARHER
“BREAATIE MREERRATRLE
Qian County Hong Yuan Natural Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 3,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Company Limited (“Qianxian Hongyuan”) 18 September 2006 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
ENEZREIRRARAR ([ EHEZ ) e/ BREFAT 19,000 100%  RHERREERRRHER
Z2-5FRAZT-H MREEEREIRTR
Jilin Qian'an Tianlun Gas Company Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 19,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Jilin Qian'an") 21 May 2010 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

e SRR M EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BARx  BEENER IERBAGEnY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
BEEMRIERRERAR (BEmE)  +8/ EREfRA 10,000 100%  HRE %Eﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁi%&
Z3——F=f=1-H MREERRATRLE
Fenghuang County Zhongyou Zhiyuan Gas PRC Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of p|pe|med natural
Company Limited (“Fenghuang Zhongyou") 31 March 2011 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
M ¥ REXARARELRA ((MIIHE]) &/ ERREAT 30,000 100%  RPEREEERARHER
ZEERETRCTH MREERRAIRLE
Sichuan Mingsheng Natural Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Company Limited (“Sichuan Mingsheng") 20 December 2000 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
W EERAARERERRR(HIER]) 8/ BREFAT 39,800 100%  RERREERRRHER
“Z-RENA-R MREEEREIRTR
Xichuan Longcheng Natural Gas Company PRC/ Limited liability company 39,800 100% Sales of pipelined natural
Limited (“Xichuan Longcheng") 1 September 2015 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
AETRBEEERRAARAT P/ BREAAA 20,000 8%  IPEREEERARHER
[2EZIEE)) “ZELE-ATHR MREERRAIRZE
Lechang Anshunda Pipeline Nature Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 85% Sales of pipelined natural
Company Limited (“Lechang Anshunda”) 15 February 2007 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
W% £ EEXRIRARAA ((REMA)) HE/ EREfAA 51,145 100% Waﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁi%&
“MAZERATZR MREERRATRTE
Sichuan Jintang County Tian Lun Gas PRC Limited liability company 51,145 100% Sales of p|pe|med natural
Company Limited (“/intang Gas”) 12 May 1993 gas; construction and

connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11a) B ATIRE (i) 11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
BEXERRERAA ([HEns]) hE/ BRRTAH 1,081 100%  RPEREREERARHER
I gl MREERRATRLE
Nantong Tian Lun Gas Company Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 1,081 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Nantong Gas") 22 January 2017 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
REERERRRABEMAR((RERE]) &/ ERREAT 10,000 100%  RPEREEERARHER
“B-_EMATIE MREERRAIRLE
Wubu Changxing Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“WubuChangxing") 18 April 2012 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
AEERARAREREALA (RERE]) +&8/ BREFAR 12,000 100% RAERREBARRHER
ZZEENATIA MREEEREIRTR
Mizhi Changxing Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 12,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Mizhi Changxing”) 14 April 2006 gas; construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
FRRRRARERAR ([ BAXAR]) hE/ BREEAT 5,000 100% N EIRERA RS R
- \§WAT-R RRMHE
Shanghai Tian Lun Natural Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 5,000 100% Sales of natural gas and
(“Shanghai Natural Gas") 11 April 2018 trading of natural gas
equipment in the PRC
RFHE AR ARAR ([AREEM]) e/ ERREAT 10,000 100%  RPEREEERARHER
“2-=F/\AZTH MREERRAIRLE
Shijiazhaung Jinming Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Shijiazhuang Jinming") 20 August 2013 gas, construction and
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11) B EIRE (&)

SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
SETAREZHRERAR(RERR])  HE/ BREMAA 16,030 100%  RREREENEE Rk
“2-\FNAZTH SHEMRH
Xingyang City Tian Lun Intelligent Energy PRC/ Limited liability company 16,030 100% Electricity generation, supply
Limited (“Xingyang TianLun") 20 September 2018 and sales services in
the PRC
RRRRERRARAR (RAXR)) e/ BREFAT 2,884 5820%  NREREEERRREE
“E-\EtA+-H TERARRREETE
e
Dongming Tian Lun Yunzhen Energy Limited ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 2,884 58.20% Sales of natural gas,

(“Dongming TianLun") 11 July 2018 construction consulting and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC

BT ERAARAR (BT e/ EREEAR 20,000 100%  APERREEXARHE
“ZREMATEA TRHARRRERIR
e
Xiping Kaida Gas Company Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 100% Sales of natural gas,

(“Xiping Kaida") 15 April 2003 construction consulting and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC

B REREZRARAT hE/ BREEAR 10,000 51% RRERRARRSEHE

(TN &R = Z3-\fZAt-H

Sichuan Tian Lun Shuxin Clean Energy Limited ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 51% Wholesales of natural gas in

(“Sichuan Shuxin")***

11 February 2018

the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11() B R RRE (&) 11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
EnXRENRERAR (BRG] $E/ BRRTAH 10,000 5%  REEREARRHEHE
“F-NERAZT-H
Guangyuan Tian Lun Shuxin Energy Limited ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 51% Wholesales of natural gas in
(“Guangyuan TianLun") *** 21 May 2019 the PRC
NEEEERARARAR (ILER)) e/ BREEAT 60,000 100%  RPERREERARES
ZER=ET-ACTARA TEFARRREEIR
7k
Shengiu County Huixin Natural Gas Company ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 60,000 100% Sales of natural gas,
Limited (“Shengiu Huixin") 25 December 2003 construction consulting and
(LEEEERARARAR) connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
THEBRAARAREAR((FHMIER]) =&/ BREEAT 46,000 100%  RPERREERAREE
“2RHE-ANA TEFARRREEIR
7k
Zizhou County Shunxiang Natural Gas PRC/ Limited liability company 46,000 100% Sales of natural gas,
Company Limited (“Zizhou Shunxiang") 9 January 2007 construction consulting and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
EREARRMERARAR ((ERER])  $E/ BREEAT 10,000 100%  RPERREERRRES
“2-EELA=T-H TEFARRREEIR
7k
Gulang Longtian Natural Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of natural gas,
(“Gulang Longtian") 31 July 2020 construction consulting and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
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SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11() MR RRE (&) 11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
TEAFNERNRARAR ((THAE])  $8/ BRRTAH 20,000 100%  RehERERD MR
“B--E=Z 1A
Jiangsu Yongyang Hefeng Energy Technology ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 100% Intermediary holding in
Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu Yongyang") 24 March 2021 the PRC
ERERERELAR(ERER)) e/ BREEAT 25,000 0%  REREEBRARHER
“ZEMEMAZT-H MREERRAIRZE
Deyang Huaneng Gas Co., Ltd PRC/ Limited liability company 25,000 90% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Deyang Huaneng") 21 April 2004 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
ERgMAERAR ([ ERa]) hE/ BRRTAH 10,000 0%  MPEHEREANR
ZEE\E-A=1-H
Deyang Lvneng Gas Co., Ltd PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 90% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Deyang Lneng") 31 January 2008
TEARMRERAR([TEAR]) e/ BREEAT 20,000 100%  REHERERAR
“B--E=AZT=H
Wangqing Tianlun Gas Limited PRC/ Limited liability company 20,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
(“Wangging Tianlun") 23 March 2021
ERENRBERARERAR ((BHHR]) +&/ BREFAT 3,000 100%  REEERERAR
“Z——FRATIA
Huzhu County Limin Compressed Natural Gas ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 3,000 100% Sales of NG in the PRC
Co., Ltd. (“Huzhu Limin") 19 May 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11() B EIRE (&)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
NEgSHMRERAR (AEeL]) hE/ BRRTAH 30,000 100%  RPEREEERARHER
“ZZ\EAT=R NREEEREIRER
Datong County Jindi Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Datong Jindi") 13 June 2008 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
ARESHEBERARERAR((AREE) 8/ ERREAT 10,000 100%  RREHERERAR
“2-FF/\A=15A
Datong County Jindi Compressed Natural PRC/ Limited liability company 10,000 100% Sales of CNG in the PRC
Gas Co., Ltd. (“Datong Yasuo”) 26 August 2010
BHEeRRARAR ([EhEH)) e/ BRRTAH 30,000 100%  RPEREEERARHER
“ZZ\E+AmA MREERRATRTE
Huzhu County Jindi Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Huzhu Jindi") 4 July 2008 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
HESRARAR ([HEeH)) e/ ERREAT 88,500 100%  ReERRERAER
“2CRECANA
Gansu Jindi New Energy Co., Ltd PRC/ Limited liability company 88,500 100% Intermediary holding in
(“Gansu Jindi") 9 December 2020 the PRC
BRESHMRARAR ([BREH)) e/ BRRTAH 30,000 100%  HRE %E%Ei%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
“2——%RACTEA MREERRATRTE
Jingyuan County Jindi Gas Co., Ltd PRC/ Limited liability company 30,000 100% Sales of p|pe|med natural
(“Jingyuan Jindi") 24 May 2011 gas, construction and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
BARERRERAA (&K e/ BRRTAH 320 100%  RPEREREERARHER
“2CRETCALA MREERRATRLE
Jincheng Tianlun Gas Development Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/ Limited liability company 320 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Jincheng Tianlun") 7 December 2020 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
HEMENBAMRERAR(ENRE])  HE8/ ERREAT = 100%  RPERRRAFSRAA
“B-—E+—f1tH 1%
Xuchang Hongfan Intelligent Technology PRC/ Limited liability company — 100% Technology development and
Co., Ltd (“Hongfan Zhineng") 17 November 2021 consulting services in
the PRC
REEARIRERAR(REXR]) e/ BREEAT = 100%  RREREREERARHER
“R-EELASTR MREERRAIRZE
Minguan Tianlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company - 100% Sales of pipelined natural
(“Minguan Tinanlun") 30 July 2020 gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
REZXRGREERAT ((REXR) *  wE/ BRRTAH 4,585 100%  RPEREREERARHER
e Sl 1= NREREREIRER
Luoning Tianlun Gas Co., Ltd. PRC/ Limited liability company 4,585 100% Sales of pipelined natural

(“Luoning Tianlun")***

25 December 2020

gas, construction and
connection of gas pipelines
in the PRC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(TRREMBARETIT(FHFFEEHH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11() B EIRE (&)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
HRELHER/ B/
£ WHRAH EEERE BABRE  BEAVEE @ IEEEASERY
Issued/
Country/Place and date paid-in Effective Principal activities
Name of incorporation Type of legal entity capital interest held and place of operation
NS
(RMB'000)
MEEATERRa B R (BRa%) hE/ BRRTAH = 100%  ReEIRRRmHE
(FgEs)) “ECCECACTEA
Henan Daohe New Energy Technology PRC/ Limited liability company - 100% Technology research and
Partnership (“Henan Daohe") 24 February 2022 development
e SRR R B BEITIRAN A 1,000 o The issued capital of Upsky Holdings is USD1,000.

ETT °

RABF RN E BITRARE
#27T -

EEERONERHRTREAS
100,000 37T ©

ERHLENEBRTRAREE

100,0007T °
o LR AR EREROKERE - o
= )| EHMETRBER-F o

TEZFAAZFTRARE R
BRXRERZT-_=ZF/XA
—F\BEH e
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The issued capital of Tian Lun New Energy is HKD2.

The issued capital of HK Xin Rong is USD100,000.

The issued capital of Wah Shing Century is HKD100,000.

Shares hold directly by the Company.

Sichuan Shuxin and Guangyuan Shuxin was disposed on 26
September 2023. Luoning Tianlun was deregistered on 28 June

2023.
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ERHFFEH RS

RZBEZ=F+=A=+—HH
EZFIGEERBRBENAARE
312,148,000 (ZFE = =4 : A
R#314,725,0007T) * R4 A

A R #106,216,0007T ) B 7 &
MEEX - 49 A R % 36,643,000 7T
T4 : AR¥38,297,000
TL)RERGRRER  HARK
37,452,000 L(—ZE=-—F: AR
¥ 37,682,000 7T) 2R B &k M K@ °
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ERTEA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(continued)

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2023 are
approximately RMB312,148,000 (2022: RMB314,725,000), of
which approximately RMB106,984,000 (2022: RMB106,216,000)
is attributed to Chaozhou Huamao, approximately RMB36,643,000
(2022: RMB38,297,000) is attributed to Tianlun Pipeline, and
approximately RMB37,452,000 (2022: RMB37,682,000) is
attributed to Suzhou Tianlun.

The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiaries are not
material.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for each
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(SEEE(TBARKTF T (BIESHEHDT))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11a) B A RRE (&)

(@) EARHVEZFIMEER(E)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(@) Material non-controlling interests (continued)

BEEEBXBE Summarised balance sheets
ENER AR ER BNXfR
Chaozhou Huamao Tianlun Pipeline Suzhou Tianlun
Wt+=A=t-H W+=A=t-H iy ey el
As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
—E-cE —E-C —E-CE —E-CF —E-CE —EoCF
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ik Current
BE Assets 39,103 24,356 428,839 208,363 177,106 203,756
B Liabilities (7,640) (9,254) (65,372) (126,876) (117,611) (152,255)
FREEEAE  Total net current assets 31,463 15,102 363,467 81,487 59,495 51,501
ERE Non-current
AE Assets 268,500 284712 486,492 512,585 280,832 291,717
&fF Liabilities (32,503) (34,274) (483,525) (211,098) (90,645) (92,003)
FEmENF Total net
BEE non-current assets 235,997 250,438 2,967 301,487 190,187 199,714
BEFE Net assets 267,460 265,540 366,434 382,974 249,682 251,215
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SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(SEEBE(TBARK T T (BIESEHPB))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(@) Material non-controlling interests (continued)

PEHNZERHE Summarised statements of comprehensive income
HNER AR RER Y PN
Chaozhou Huamao Tianlun Pipeline Suzhou Tianlun
BZET-A=t-HLFEE BET-A=t-HLFE BET-A=1T-HLEE
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
—E-_=E @ —E_— —E-=E —E-— —E-=F —F-—
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
AR®ETT ARETT AR®Tr ARETT AR%®Tr ARETR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 151,375 165,848 532,378 506,242 565,427 547,739
BRRTSEAI Profit/(loss) before
B,/ (B5#8)  income tax 2,620 (9,681) 6,269 21,079 44,996 40,899
FiEtiER Income tax expense (700) 2,333 (1,696) (5,040) (11,357) (10,260)
FEFI Profit for the year 1,920 (7,348) 4,574 16,039 33,638 30,639
Hib2EKzE  Other comprehensive income = — — _ _
2EMEEEE  Total comprehensive income 1,920 (7,348) 4,574 16,039 33,638 30,639
SHEUEEE  Total comprehensive
AEEIEHES  income allocated to
erday non-controlling interests 768 (2,939) 457 1,604 5,046 4,596
Bf3EE4IE  Dividends paid to non-
R RF controlling interests — 2,111 — 5,276 5,364
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11a) B ATIRE (i) 11(a) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(a) EXRHFEFIMERER(F) (a)

Material non-controlling interests (continued)

BEREXBE Summarised statements of cash flows
BMER AR RER BEM X ta
Chaozhou Huamao Tianlun Pipeline Suzhou Tianlun
BE+t-A=1t-HLFE HBEt-A=1T-ALEE HEt-A=1-HLEFE
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
ZE-=fF B ZE-ZF B —E-=fF —ZT-C
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
AR®ETT ARETT AR®TRT AR®TT AR®TRT AR®ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RETHN Cash flows from
HeRE operating activities
MEELRIRS  Cash generated from
operations 19,408 1,861 34,481 48,938 66,563 77,846
BRETEH Income tax paid (921) (1,264) (5,394) (5,050) (13,943) (14,093)
REEE)EER  Net cash generated from
ReFH operating activities 18,487 597 29,087 43,888 52,620 63,753
BREED Net cash (used in)/
(ER)/E%  generated from
FRE TR investing activities (4,501) (3,219) (229,569) (47,852) 26,800 (67,277)
BMEED Net cash (used in)/
(#R)/E%  generated from
FREFE financing activities (2,959) (11,501) 200,449 (430) (55,537) (24,272)
BEMEELE  Net increase/(decrease)
EBYEm,/ in cash and
(Rid) 28 cash equivalents 11,027 (14,123) (33) (4,394) 23,883 (27,796)
FHR& NI  Cash and cash equivalents
ZEW at beginning of year 18,100 32,223 871 5,265 11,554 39,350
FREE K Cash and cash equivalents
ReEEY at end of year 29,127 18,100 838 871 35,437 11,554

A EER R A RIFEHATHBER -

The information above is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BT BARKETF T (BIESEHPB))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIRE 11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

R EEABRERNEEN The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as
I follows:
R+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—=2-= -4
2023 2022
AR%T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEE RN 2ZE Investments in associates 833,468 757,967
HEELEZRE Investments in a joint venture 32,582 43,048
866,050 801,015
R EROSEENT ¢ The amounts recognised in profit and loss are as follows:

BE+T-A=1+—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-=F —E-_F

2023 2022

AR®ET T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

i NG Share of results of associates 70,612 70,772
EIEE SR Share of results of a joint venture (10,466) (24,042)
60,146 46,730
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIRE 11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(#&) THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
INTAERERR=_E=_=F1+=A4 Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
=T—HEERBZBERTF 2023, which are held directly by the Group.
% EBu%/ ERRIER PR % BERNME HTEAE
Place of business/ Nature of Measurement

Name of entity country of incorporation % of ownership interest the relationship method
ARLHRRERNBRAR HE/ RS 33.33 GiERY %

(TAREHE])
Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Inner Mongolia, the PRC 33.33 (Note 1) Equity

Gas Investment Corporation Limited
(“Inner Mongolia Petroleum

and Gas”)

BNTFHEIERARERAA GEVRIE 20.00 (M3E2) Bz
(TBRMFEE D)

Suzhou Ping Zhuang Industrial Gas  Jiangsu, the PRC 20.00 (Note 2) Equity

Co., Ltd (“Suzhou Ping Zhuang”)

AENReRAEERHERAR /AR 20.00 (P3E3) Bk
(CAmAg))
Henan Jiuding Financial Leasing Henan, the PRC 20.00 (Note 3) Equity

Company Limited (“Henan Jiuding”)

BEENFTRR R ARE AR HE,/ W)l 11.00 (Fi=E4) G
(DEMERFD)
Chengdu Huaizhou Xincheng Gas Sichuan, the PRC 11.00 (Note 4) Equity

Company Limited (“Huaizhou Gas”)

TRLEESRIERAR (RS FB,/76H 16.00 (F¥zE5) %
=)
Pingdingshan Nylon City Gas Company Henan, the PRC 16.00 (Note 5) Equity

Limited (“Nylon City Gas”)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIRE 11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(&) THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
8 EBunE EMALER PR % BENEE HTEAE
Place of business/ Nature of Measurement
Name of entity country of incorporation % of ownership interest the relationship method
AEGRRRARAEMRERAR  HE/ 0w 40.00 (P3E7) Bk
(MEERRD)
Shengiu County Jieyuan Natural Henan, the PRC 40.00 (Note 7) Equity

Gas Vehicle Refueling Co., Ltd.
(“Shengiu Jieyuan")

BIR (FIEIL) Fee R AR A A HE/ TR 36.00 (f3E8) B
(TBAFTEL])
Guotian (Pingdingshan) New Energy ~ Henan, the PRC 36.00 (Note 8) Equity

Technology Company Limited
(“Guotian Pingdingshan”)

BLX (BR) MBI AR AR /A 36.00 CiE) Bk
([BIXEEE])
Guotian (Hebi) New Energy Technology Henan, the PRC 36.00 (Note 9) Equity

Company Limited (“Guotian Hebi")

AR R AR A A B/ 36.00 GiEL) %
([FFEER])
Xu Chang Guotian New Energy Henan, the PRC 36.00 (Note 9) Equity

Technology Company Limited
(“Xu Chang Guotian”)

Tian Lun Gas Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023 191



e HRME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) TLEREARNIRE

(&)

PREL :

BeE2

BRE3 -

ffaE4

BRES
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TZA+T—HB  XE2HEER
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SR AN EE MR
FF o BB ES PR R L bT EE SR
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RN T E 2 B E BRI
R o RN T 7 B A SR B EUS
HEF TS o

AELRER=_ZT—RFE=A
Zt+=HFEMmix 2%
EREHE REMEEEER
2 BEBmEHFEE R
FEREREMmE R 0
FANRANEBNERSER
o AIARBETERP AR
BEEAXEERLREHEE
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11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas was incorporated on 11 December
2014 and mainly engages in the construction of long-distance
petroleum and gas pipelines, and investment in the petroleum and
gas industry. Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas is a strategic partner
for the Group, providing access to new customers and markets of the
upstream gas industry and creating synergies with the subsidiaries of
the Group.

Suzhou Ping Zhuang mainly engages in the sales of bottled gas.
Suzhou Ping Zhuang provides access to new customers and markets.

Henan Jiuding was incorporated on 23 March 2016 and mainly
engages in financial leasing, financial leasing assets trading, fixed
income securities investment, inter-bank borrowing investment and
other financial business. Henan Jiuding is a strategic partner for the
Group, and can finance potential industrial customers substituting its
energy supply from coal and electricity to pipelined natural gas and
create synergies with the subsidiaries of the Group.

Huaizhou Gas mainly engages in the sales of natural gas, construction
and connection of gas pipelines, and construction and operation of
gas stations etc. Huaizhou Gas provides access to new customers and
markets, and create synergies with the subsidiaries of the Group.

Nylon City Gas mainly engages in the sales of natural gas,
construction and connection of gas pipelines in Pingdingshan Nylon
City Area. Nylon City Gas provides access to new customers and
markets, and create synergies with the subsidiaries of the Group.



SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) IRFEZSEABRWIRE  11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
(4 ) THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

a7 AERREERSHERER Note 7: Shengiu Jieyuan mainly engages in the sales of compressed natural
AR o L ERIR W B A & B gas. Shengiu Jieyuan provides access to new customers and markets.

THEPMmS °

B8 BATFIBLESHE ARG Note 8: Guotian Pingdingsha mainly engages in solar power technology
T AR 7% o b P9 12 BHER 15 K5 88 services. They provides the Group access to new customers and
AR TS - AR markets in solar power, create synergies with the subsidiaries of
A BT B A R Bl 15 R 2E - the Group, and development of energy saving and environmental
R ED AL IRIRIRIN o protection technology.

Mo B RBEMIFERREEHR Note 9: Guotian Hebi and Xu Chang Guotian mainly engage in solar power
= K5 8e BT AR 7% o b P9 %2 technology services. They provides the Group access to new customers
B EUE KI5 e B M 2T & 2 Al and markets in solar power, create synergies with the subsidiaries
miz - AEEAKERQALRE of the Group, and development of energy saving and environmental
% B 2 e - I 3R AR AR IR R protection technology. There is no capital injection from the Group as
Bife RZFE=Z=F+=H at 31 December 2023.

=t—H8 AEBEREERE
AR ERT] -

EERA - ERINEHMEEQFE The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
SENEESEEELATELE o opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
EERA  FYHMBEARNE the Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of
HMEEYRRFBNRITE ° the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
FiBEtE AR RIELETMAR - B All associates are unlisted companies and there are no quoted market
IRHER B TIZME o ANEE = prices available for the equities. There are no contingent liabilities
ARz IR EAE - relating to the Group’s interests in the associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) TR EZARNIRE

(&)

BEQATNHEMBER

THIRTEEAR/UNAKEE
A RENFOMBEERBE - 7
BER A E R AR AR RE
WRP 2O - MIFRAEE
FEME L F MDA - W RRE
BECRAEDESAIENRE 8
BRHRIABENHBANL G

NI

11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for the associates

The tables below provide summarised financial information for
Henan Jiuding, which in the opinion of the director, is material to
the Group. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the relevant associate not the Group’s
share of those amounts. It has been amended to reflect adjustments
made by the entity when using the equity method, including fair
value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting

REREITIEEISN - policy.
EEEEXBE Summarised balance sheet
AR
Henan Jiuding
R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E_= —Eo—F
2023 2022
AR®F T ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ED Current
He KBS EY Cash and cash equivalents 555,515 650,656
Bt mEEE Other current assets 1,184,178 1,063,593
BB EATE Total current assets 1,739,693 1,714,249

mEBRE AR

FERE

FERENE EHRRR

FRBE ERRE

RS AR ER

Total current liabilities

Non-current

Total non-current assets

Total non-current liabilities

Total equity

(29,075,453)

(28,787,755)

33,207,971 31,047,980
(2,094,122) (545,374)
3,778,089 3,429,100
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BT BARKETF T (BIESEHPB))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for the associates
(continued)

PHUZEBHE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
SRR
Henan Jiuding
BE+-A=+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—ZE_= —E- 4
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 1,288,724 1,064,892
BRETS BRI AE Profit before income tax 466,681 463,266
FEFHE Profit for the year 348,989 347,688
FHIKRBREE Total comprehensive income 348,989 347,688
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(TRREMBARETIT(FHFFEEHH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11b) IREFEZAERNERE
(&
KA RNEER SR
(%)
HEEEE R TR
Fir 2 71| &9 1 2 B 7% & L ER B 42 A |)
ERREEE/AF -

11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for the associates
(continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to
the carrying amount of its interests in the associates.

HBEERBE Summarised financial information
AR
Henan Jiuding
BE+-A=1t—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR®ET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEEFE Opening net assets 3,429,100 3,081,412
FEFE Profit for the year 348,989 347,688
AREEFE Closing net assets 3,778,089 3,429,100
B2 N AIHERR (20.00%) Interest in associates (20.00%) 755,618 685,820
BREEE Carrying value 755,618 685,820
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(REEBARE T (BRIHFEEFHH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Summarised financial information for the associates
(continued)

Individually immaterial associates

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the Group
also has interests in six of individually immaterial associates that are
accounted for using the equity method.

BE+t-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E=-= —E- 4
2023 2022
ARET T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
&R = TN EAREE  Aggregate carrying amount of individually

EARMERERE immaterial associates 77,850 72,147

REEBIFT(H{D5E4R%E :  Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of:
— REETE — Profit from continuing operations 814 1,234
— 2 EKEERE — Total comprehensive income 814 1,234
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

ARBIRE 11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

11(b) AE RS
(&)

IUTAAREER T -_=F+_A
—t+t—HEEBBEZAERE -

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at 31 December
2023, which are held directly by the Group.

RZZEZ=F+-A=+—HHE

Nature of investment in a joint venture as at 31 December 2023:

BOEZREMEMT :
8 k% BRRIER PR % BENEE FEEE
Place of business/ % of Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity country of incorporation ownership interest relationship method
AABERRIERREE S HE/ A 40.00 (K#3E 10) Bt
(BRE%)(DiERERRES])
Henan Yuzi Tianlun New Energy Henan, the PRC 40.00 (Note 10) Equity

Investment Fund Centre (Limited
Partnership) (“Henan Yuzi Tianlun
Fund”)

ME10: AmBRERBEEN =T —N\ Note 10: Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund was incorporated on 27 June 2018 mainly

FRAZTHHRKYL  =EH
A BRI R IB R R ETR
MARAREXRFETRE - A
TMEFBERAREXRRERR
RS THRBEEEE
2 N EA BERART
HEBENEN

AEBRERMESRIELTA
Al EREREMIS®RE - XN
SERA R RRIEEER - &
BEHE2HMTE35 - REEES
EOEZEaTETMNAE

& o

198 XGRKERAERAT 2023EEEHE

engaged in investment in coal-to-gas conversion projects in the
townships in Henan Province and the upstream and downstream
natural gas industrial chain, to capture the opportunities brought by
the rapid development of the natural gas industry in the PRC and
explore the huge potential of the natural gas market in the townships
in Henan Province through making full use of the strengths of the
Group.

Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund is unlisted company and there are no
quoted market prices available for the equities. The Group provided
guarantee to subsidiary of Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund, see details in
Note 35. There are no other contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interests in the joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(h) IRFEZSEABRWIRE  11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
(&) THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

BELENBEMBER

THIRTEEAR/YNAKEE
ANBELEAEBRERRESH
MEERME - IENEARR
G S EEMBREKRT 25N
B MIFR AR E R I F 2R
D8 - Wl RIR B FERAEDE
FREFTER AR - BREQAEBED
HEANRE TR ERETHEE

Summarised financial information for the joint venture

The tables below provide summarised financial information for Henan
Yuzi Tianlun Fund, which in the opinion of the director, is material to
the Group. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the relevant joint venture not the
Group’s share of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method,
including fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in
accounting policy.

&K o
EEEEXBE Summarised balance sheets
HEBERMRES
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
R+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—EBE_=F —E-F
2023 2022
AREET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ED Current
ReRBFEEED Cash and cash equivalents 133,521 468,854
Bt meEE Other current assets 577,324 842,898
MBI E EMRRE Total current assets 710,845 1,311,752
EMnsasE Other current liabilities
(BIEEMNER) (including trade payables) (4,338,696) (4,472,163)
B A EeE Total current liabilities (4,338,696)  (4,472,163)
FERE Non-current
IEmBNEEARTE Total non-current assets 7,731,064 6,915,145
IEmB B ELTE Total non-current liabilities (2,988,157) (2,610,681)
e REE Total equity 1,115,056 1,144,053
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(SEEE(TBARKTF T (BIESHEHDT))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIRE 11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(#& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
BELENRENKER Summarised financial information for the joint venture
(%&) (continued)
PHUZEBHE Summarised statements of comprehensive income
TREBEXRRES
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
B= HE
—E_= B
+A=+—8 +A=+—81
IEFE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue 471,767 547,246
BRET1S T AT (Loss)/profit before income tax
(E518) FlH (33,284) 6,527
FEEE Loss for the year (28,997) 4,606
FHEIBREE Total comprehensive loss (28,997) 4,606
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BT BARKETF T (BIESEHPB))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

11(b) REZEARNIRE 11(b) INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(& THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)
BELENRENKER Summarised financial information for the joint venture
(&) (continued)

HEHBER TR Reconciliation of summarised financial information

FrEFIMHERFERESZE QT
s AREEER AT :

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to
the carrying amount of its interests in a joint venture:

HBEERBE Summarised financial information
EBEXRRES
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
S HE
—E-=F —E-F
+A=+-A +A=t+-8
IEFE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AR®ETR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HMYNEEFE Opening net assets 1,144,053 1,139,447
FE(&18) /FHE (Loss)/profit for the year (28,997) 4,606
MAREEFE Closing net assets 1,115,056 1,144,053
EBERRES
Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
8= H=
—E_=F —E-F
tA=+t-8 t+A=t-~
LEFE LEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
ARET ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
— B —HHEIYIBRMEEE Opening carrying amount 1 January 43,048 67,090
EFZ (F518) /FE (Loss)/profit for the year (11,599) 1,543
28H (KRB )Y Realized/(unrealized) gains 1,133 (25,585)
+—-—HA=+—H Closing carry amount 31 December
HREREEE 32,582 43,048
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12

(@)

(b)

(c)

FriEBieE M

AR R RERBERE B o
XL PR B SRS 1 ©

HRMNEH

BE_T_=F+-_A=+—HIt

—E__F+-A=+—ALF
B AKEE QR RRREB
BRI - But BRSMEBFIE
B (K 16.5%) -

B FTEH

RRRIETE AR B stk Sz 80 BT 8
NAEl AR EEERET - R
—E_=F+-_fA=+—HK=ZF
——H+-_A=+—HLEFE %
ZLRAEBIERBABIAMEEARA R
07 TE 1) FE AR B U 2 VA TE FT 15
TR RS - NP EAMHER
AEERANF BEREMETHRES R

25%(—F——4 :25%) ' fEH®
Bif - mERE  AEER - &R
A~ [U)IAE - S EMR - K
Rl - RERHE - €2XE - TM
JERE ~ SEREH - RILKBFHER

BRI ARZEARERESR
PIRP AR R B EME VBB R
B ZEFLATR_T_=FHNE
PSR ERIS%(ZT_Z
15%) - MEFERBER - BHEEH
BER - FFEXRREM - XfaMKRE
B HERXfE - BTXM  ITEK
o EMELEMEMRPEFRIZE N
MEREBMERRRBE - ZFA
AR - =FNEEMEHRHREX
735% o

202 XHMRIEBRERDT 2023EFEHE

12

(a)

(b)

(c)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company and Upsky Holdings are not subject to profits tax in
their respective countries of incorporation.

Hong Kong profits tax

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023,
there are no Hong Kong profits tax applicable (tax rate 16.5%) to any
Group entities.

PRC corporate income tax (the “PRC CIT”)

All the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are subject
to the PRC CIT, which has been provided based on the statutory
income tax rate of the assessable income of each of such companies
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,
as determined in accordance with the relevant PRC income tax
rules and regulations. The CIT rate of all the relevant subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is 25% (2022: 25%), except for Gansu Baiyin,
Liquan Hongyuan, Qianxian Hongyuan, Baiyin Wantong, Gulang
Tianlun, Sichuan Mingsheng, Jintang Gas, Mizhi Changxing, Wubu
Changxing, Huize Datong, Zizhou Shunxiang, Jingyuan Jindi, Mizhi
Changxing, Yanshan Datong and Gansu Jindi, as they were approved
to entitle to the CIT Preferential Policies for the Development of
the Western Regions and the CIT rate of 2023 is 15% (2022:
15%). Hebi Tian Lun Vehicle, Hebi New Energy, Xuchang Tian Lun
Vehicle, Tianlun Pipeline, Weishi Tianlun, Guangyuan TianLun,
Jiangsu Yongyang, Jilin Qian’an and Jilin Zhongji are entitled to the
Inclusive Tax Deduction and Exemption Policies for Micro and Small
Enterprises and the CIT rate of 2023 was 5%.



12 FREBER (&)

(c)

BRGSHRAMSEHER

HREIREFRBH (&) (c) PRC corporate income tax (the “PRC CIT”) (continued)
= The amount of income tax expense charged to profit or loss
represents:

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LBHE N BARETF T (IS HHBH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E2=-= —E -4

2023 2022

ARET T AREBTTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

&S H Current tax on profits for the year 204,832 196,830
EIEFIIA (F17E30) Deferred tax (Note 30) 4,917 4,022
209,749 200,852

BN ERASHE R EER
B AR R G BB AT 1S AT FE A

BFIAMZEBLHMT

The difference between the actual income tax charge in profit or loss
and the amounts which would result from applying the enacted tax

rate to profit before income tax can be reconciled as follows:

BE+T-A=1t—-HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-=F —E-_F
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRETS A AIAE Profit before income tax 716,026 670,124
WEBE A AREA2  Tax calculated at statutory tax rate applicable
EEMEFTE ZFE  to each Group entity 206,961 200,764
B IE R Y a Income not subject to tax (17,748) (17,693)
TRIHNFAE R Expenses or losses not deductible for tax purposes 10,315 8,195
RERIEIEFITBEE  Tax losses with no deferred tax assets recognised
KRR 1,428 595
A LABISEAMER  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses
EEAl €= ES (1) (9)
o Bo i zs ABRE K Withholding tax on profit to be distributed
BIE (i) in future (i) 8,794 9,000
209,749 200,852
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

12 FREBER (&)

(c)

REREAES (&)

()  AEEPERHEAE
iES: YN E SE A=Y
ERYE RGN - 107
BBIMER A RIE KT ER
PEIREN S RERA - A
EXRAEEREARHE R
AR B B B TRIR PSR
5% - N B L FF S
ERBRMEHHEERTRE
BERS - Bl - AEED
12 B A R ) 0 B Y
BEMFEERNEBRE
FHERHIFAEH

L H i 2 [ W 2 O ALK BB 12 R O

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(c) PRC corporate income tax (the “PRC CIT”) (continued)

(i)

Withholding income tax is provided on the dividends and
intra-group interest charges to be distributed by the Mainland
China subsidiaries of the Group. The relevant overseas holding
companies have successfully obtained endorsement from
Mainland China tax bureaus to enjoy the treaty benefit of 5%
withholding income tax rate on dividends received from the
Mainland China subsidiaries of the Group and 7% withholding
income tax rate on interest charges from the Mainland China
subsidiaries. Accordingly, withholding income tax has been
provided at respective tax rate of the dividends and interest
charges to be distributed by the Mainland China subsidiaries
of the Group.

The tax credit relating to components of other comprehensive income

RIBEZT : is as follows:
HEt-BA=t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—EC=E —E-CF
2023 2022
BRBi A0 HEER BBl BRAtAl HEED BRBife
Before tax Tax credit After tax Before tax Tax credit After tax
ARETTL ARETL ARETTL ARBTT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
DAAEEEEE  Fair value (losses)/gains on financial
BERTAEMEE  assets at fair value through other
WatesEERL  comprehensive income
[EE2E(EE) /TS (18,000) 4,500 (13,500) (12,800) 3,200 (9,600)
Eth2AiG Other comprehensive income (18,000) 4,500 (13,500) (12,800) 3,200 (9,600)
{ETFEH (H:£30) Deferred income tax (Note 30) = 4,500 = = 3,200 -

204 XRAMBEZEBRERADT 2023FFEHRE



SmEMBHERME (&)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(SEEBE(TBARK T T (BIESEHPB))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

13 BRER 13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@ EZXF (a) Basic
AEXRGREEBIEEBNAR R Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated by dividing the profit
BENFE  BRIAFRNEEITER attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
ARE INEFEE B FE - number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BE+T-A=1t—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR%T AREBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000

MEEBERARAF] Profit attributable to owners of the Company
FiEE(ARBFT)  (RMB'000) 479,562 444,598

BETLERAMNE  Weighted average number of shares in issue
T (F%) (thousands) 969,084 982,830

B YN ST e Basic earnings per share (RMB per share)

(B AREITT) 0.49 0.45

(b) #HZE=—Z—_=FR_ZF_—%F+= (b) The diluted earnings per share was the same as the basic earnings

A=+—BHIFEANTEELEE per share as there was no potential dilutive share issued during the
f&fn - HitEGREEEERS years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.

P ERARSE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(TRREMBARETIT(FHFFEEHH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14 ABE - - MERRE 14

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B NS
EF R HREE REH EEIR b
Office
Equipment equipment
and and motor
Buildings machinery  Gas pipelines vehicles CIP Total
AER®TT AR%Tz AR%Tn ARETr AR%Tn AR%Txn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-B-=f£-f-H At 1 January 2023
AR Cost 545,443 434614 3,519,956 67,097 286,703 4,853,813
2ihE Accumulated depreciation (145,050) (250,925  (772,818) (38,915) —  (1,207,708)
RHFE Net book amount 400,393 183,689 2,747,138 28,182 286,703 3,646,105
H2-E-=F Year ended 31 December 2023
TZA=t-RLEE
FRAFE Opening net book amount 400,393 183,689 2,747,138 28,182 286,703 3,646,105
1 Additions 238 - 2,237 322,233 333,357
EETEEA Transfer from CIP 14,971 8,605 318,200 - (341,776) -
REUFHEEA Transfer from investment
(FtzE 16) properties (Note 16) 179 — - - - 179
HE (fizE32) Disposals (Note 32) 3) (284) (9,804) (218) = (10,309)
HEMBAR Disposal of subsidiaries
(BsF11(2) (Note 11(a)) — (17) = (20) = (37)
Epp Reclassification (7,167) 7,167 — - - =
FEER (Fi:#8) Depreciation charge (Note 8) (22,760) (29,412)  (155913) (4,459) —  (212,544)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 385,851 178,397 2,899,621 25,722 267,160 3,756,751
RZBZ=F+=F=+—H At31 December 2023
KR Cost 560,912 464,298 3,854,234 71,473 267,160 5,218,077
25E Accumulated depreciation (175,061)  (285,901)  (954,613) (45,751) —  (1,461,326)
BE¥E Net book amount 385851 178397 2899621 25722 267,160 3,756,751
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(&)

(FREMBARETIT (IS HHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
N
BF RERES MEEB REH ERIE a5t
Office
Equipment equipment
and Gas and motor
Buildings machinery pipelines vehicles CIP Total

AREBTR  ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARMTR  ARET:R

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZB-—£-f-H At 1 January 2022

A Cost 538,935 424769 3,197,952 61,028 306,899 4,529,583

2iHE Accumulated depreciation (123,506)  (222,455)  (628,526) (36,387) - (1,010,874)
FHFE Net book amount 415,429 202,314 2,569,426 24,641 306,899 3,518,709
BZ-E__F Year ended 31 December 2022

TZA=t-HALEFE

FRRFE Opening net book amount 415,429 202,314 2,569,426 24,641 306,899 3,518,709

)l Additions 2,265 5,075 805 5,827 321,647 335,619

EETEEA Transfer from CIP 6,599 9,674 321,869 3,365 (341,507) —

REREHEEA Transfer from investment

(MizE16) properties (Note 16) 747 = = = = 747

HE (fizE32) Disposals (Note 32) (3,216) (2,519) (477) (248) (336) (6,796)

WEER (M8) Depreciation charge (Note 8) (21,431) (30,855)  (144,485) (5,403) —  (202,174)
EXREFE Closing net book amount 400,393 183,689 2,747,138 28,182 286,703 3,646,105

RZEZZF+=F=+—H At31 December 2022

AR Cost H45,443 434614 3,519,956 67,097 286,703 4,853,813

ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (145,050) (250,925) (772,818) (38,915) —  (1,207,708)
RHEE Net book amount 400,393 183,689 2,747,138 28,182 286,703 3,646,105
(@ & % B HARK (@)  Depreciation expense of approximately RMB199,318,000

199,318,000 c( =& ==
F: A K #190,302,000
T)MTEEBRG AHE
KA AR ®193,000
T(ZEZZF: AR
#217,0007T ) & A &
A A LR AR
13,033,000 c( = & = =
& AR¥11,655,000) 5t
AITHRER °

(2022: RMB190,302,000) has been charged in cost of
sales, RMB193,000 (2022: RMB217,000) in distribution
expenses and RMB13,033,000 (2022: RMB11,655,000) in
administrative expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(BLEHENBARET T (BRIFZEHD))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

14 F8E BEERRE 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(4 ) (continued)

b) RZE=Z=%+=AH (b) As at 31 December 2023, buildings and gas pipeline
== EI TREHARE amounting to approximately RMB2,600,000 (2022:
2,600,000 T EF(=F RMB4,736,000) and RMB91,094,000 (2022:
——F: AR¥ 4,736,000 RMB98,719,000), respectively, were secured for bank
7o) F#I AR 91,094,000 borrowings of approximately RMB270,000,000 (2022:
TTHMREB(ZE _—F : RMB410,800,000) (Note 29(a) and (e)).

A R #98,719,0007T ) #
E & A R # 270,000,000

T(ZF__F: AR¥
410,800,000 7T ) K IRATfE
FAEAR (HT5E 29(a) F (e))

(c) RZBEZ=FF+=ZA=*+— (c) As at 31 December 2023, the Group was in the process of
B - RFEEEHY )\ B obtaining the legal title of buildings with carrying amount of
115,650,000c( = &F = = approximately RMB115,650,000 (2022: RMB139,394,000).

F: A K 139,394,000
JC) P HYE TERERE IEE I

B o

(d RZEBE_=F+-_A=+— (d)  As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the CIP
=S i mainly comprised the gas pipelines, LNG and CNG stations
—t—H EEIREER being constructed in the PRC.

ERPBRBEAEZNMRRE
B BRICRAR R BERBRA
RAABCUE o

(&) RIEZ=F+Z"HA=+— (e)  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
HIEFER AEEHE capitalised borrowing costs amounting to RMB17,308,000
BREEEBERNbERK (2022: RMB16,085,000) on qualifying assets. Borrowing
K AH AN R ¥17,308,000 costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its
T(ZEZZF: AR% general borrowings at 5.43% (2022: 5.05%).

16,085,0007 ) ° f& & A
AIRIEAR B 15 30 HIHE 7 15
MEB43%(ZF ==
5.05%) HAETEAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(RFEBBAREF T (BIFZEHA))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15 #HE 15 LEASES
(i) EBERBERABERNSHE (i)  Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
BEBGBERITH TN SEEBEE The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:
B -
R+=B=+—~H
As at 31 December
—E2=-= —E -4
2023 2022
ARBTT AREBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EREEE Right-of-use assets
T R Land-use rights 260,732 261,946
¥ Buildings 4,520 6,169
265,252 268,115
HEEE Lease liabilities
RED Current 3,047 1,569
FEMRE Non-current 6,407 6,886
9,454 8,455

BE_ZTZ-_=F+_A=+—H1
FEAN FAEEEEMARE
10,325,000 c(ZE=—=_F : AR

¥ 5 260,000 7T) °

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31

December 2023 were RMB10,325,000 (2022: RMB5,260,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(£BEEBARETIT (BHESEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

15

(ii)

(iii)

HE(E)
BRI SR

REEEBERIIR T SRR
HERR :

15

(ii)

LEASES (continued)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the
following amounts to leases:

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E_= B F
2023 2022
ARET R ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FREEENITEER Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

T R Land-use rights 8,676 7,666
¥ Buildings 4,512 3,735
13,188 11,401

FEZ I (FF AT Interest expense (included in finance cost)
/)M 10) (Note 10) 507 560

T —FRNAHEEEENRESR
H 48 %8 A A R #6,935,0007T (=
T——4F: ARK#¥8,168,0007T) °

RZEZ=%+=—H=+—H =&
EBEHARE 1,932,000 (=
T-—4F: AR%2100,000)H
=+ (5 R B IEFE IR A TE AT o
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(iii)

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December
2023 was RMB6,935,000 (2022: RMB8,168,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was in the process of
obtaining the legal title of land-use rights with carrying amount of

approximately RMB1,932,000 (2022: RMB2,100,000).



e MR MEE (F)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(RFEBBAREF T (BIFZEHA))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

16 REMEMHE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BE+T-A=1t—-HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—EC-=F —E-_F
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
F4 At beginning of the year
BN Cost 71,364 70,491
ESEin Accumulated depreciation (29,788) (25,483)
REFE Net book amount 41,576 45,008
FR For the year
FHEEEFE Opening net book amount 41,576 45,008
BREE - WEKRFZRME Transfer to property, plant and equipment
a2 A (fizE14) (Note 14) (179) (747)
EER Depreciation charge (2,734) (2,685)
FRIEMFE Closing net book amount 38,663 41,576
FxR At end of the year
BN Cost 71,523 71,364
25 E Accumulated depreciation (32,860) (29,788)
REFE Net book amount 38,663 41,576
FERAEE (D) Fair value at end of the year (b) 88,247 127,616
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZFEEN BARKETFIL (RIS EHH))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

16 REMEMWE (&) 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
(@) TIEEERIERTER (a)  The following amounts have been recognised in profit or loss:

BE+T-A=1t—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—EBE-=F —E-_F

2023 2022

ARBET T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

HEW= Rental income 2,897 2,947
ELERS W ARIEE  Direct operating expenses from properties that

EHENEZERLEER  generated rental income (2,734) (2,685)

163 262

RZE_=F+-_A=+—HBEk=
TZ-_—F+-A=+—0  ~x&EHF
TEA A IR K 4B 45 [B] 3= 75 18
& -

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group had
no unprovided contractual obligations for future repairment and
maintenance.

(b) AEBEHREMFEHESTMOT (b)

The Group’s investment properties are analysed as follows:

R_ZE—_=ZF+-_A=+—HR=
TFtTZA=T—R &KEH
FHWENAREBEEREATAE
EHA(FE3RE)FTE -

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the fair value
of investment property is measured using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3).

AEEHNBRR AN EHEBREEHL

BRANEN A BRAAEEE

ARE B A o

TEC=FRCZECFAREL

2 3B AN AT AT -
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The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as at of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the years of
2023 and 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16 REMFHE (&)

(b)

AEENREUEFMESTAT
(&

15 EF 7
BREMBHENGEENRERLER
AERE - AR L BMENEE
ERTERFHPImERENRS
ERFR)NEZEHFE -

HEATAIBRBA R

ERMSER — ERMENER
MIHER

YEREE — ERYENERERE
EEAFR — ERXMEXERCE
PR -

16

(b)

(2B BARETIT(FIFEHHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties are analysed as follows:
(continued)

Valuation techniques

The valuation of investment properties is determined using the direct
comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for property’s size and the ageing degree.

The significant inputs adopted include:

Recent market price — Based on the actual market selling price of
the properties;

Property’s size — Based on the size of the properties;

The ageing degree — Based on the years of the properties used.

it — WAKE ANREE BRI FABRRGAE
Description — Office building  Fair value Valuation technique Unobservable inputs

ARET T

RMB’000
R-Z_=F+-A=+—H 88,247 BELEE FFAK AR 3,000-10,000 7T
At 31 December 2023 88,247 Direct comparison approach RMB3,000-RMB10,000
per square meter

R-E-_—F+-A=+—H 127,616 HEELEE FFAKARK5,321-18,000 T
At 31 December 2022 127,616 Direct comparison approach RMB5,321-RMB18,000

per square meter
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZFEEN BARKETFIL (RIS EHH))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

16 REMEME (&) 16

(c) WEERHARE?2734,000t(= (c)
T - —4F: AR#2685,0007T)
eSS PSS o

d HEZH (d)

AEEREFARBERAEEHE

BEFREMEE - P REN
RIERERNER - REREM
BB b EE AT R AR 2 TR B R IR R
EReMHRATRANKEEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Depreciation expense of approximately RMB2,734,000 (2022:

RMB2,685,000) has been charged in cost of sales.

Leasing arrangements

Certain investment properties are leased to tenants under long-

term operating leases with rental payable at regular intervals during
the year based on the payment terms. Minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of investment properties not
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are receivable as

WSREELAT - follows:

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—=2-= —E-_F
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
—FR Within 1 year 1,832 2,016
—FLAEENEBBE=F Later than 1 year but no later than 3 years 1,150 2,172
=FE More than 3 years 1,216 1,993
4,198 6,181
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e MR MEE (F)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(2B BARE T (BIEZEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BILEE 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EF
HE R e [ FREB& @t
Contractual
Operating Computer customer
Goodwill rights software Network  relationships Total
ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BR=Z--%-A-H At 1 January 2022
AR Cost 2,736,579 1,989,763 16,416 590,850 401,910 5,735,518
Bt Accumulated amortisation = (406,052) (12,379) (106,444) (113,643) (638,518)
EFE Net book amount 2,736,579 1,583,711 4,037 484,406 288,267 5,097,000
HE-E-CF Year ended
+ZA=t-HLEE 31 December 2022
FAREEE Opening net book amount 2,736,579 1,583,711 4,037 484,406 288,267 5,097,000
WeE—RH B LR Acquisition of a subsidiary — — (4) — (&)
1 Additions = = 6,209 = 6,209
BiEER Amortisation charge = (81,664) (4,254) (20,042) (16,836) (122,796)
FXEEFE Closing net book amount 2,736,579 1,502,047 5,988 464,364 271,431 4,980,409
R-8-Z At 31 December 2022
t2A=1-8
AR Cost 2,736,579 1,989,763 22,611 590,850 401910 5,741,713
K5t Accumulated amortisation —  (487,716) (16,623)  (126,486)  (130479)  (761,304)
FFE Net book amount 2,736,579 1,502,047 5,988 464,364 271,431 4,980,409
HE-B--F Year ended
+ZA=t-HLEE 31 December 2023
FREFE Opening net book amount 2,736,579 1,502,047 5,988 464,364 271,431 4,980,409
#m Additions = = 5,712 = = 5,712
He Disposals = — (409) — — (409)
BHBH Amortisation charge = (86,060) (3,377) (20,042) (16,836)  (126,315)
FEREMFE Closing net book amount 2,736,579 1,415,987 7,914 444,322 254,595 4,859,397
RZEZ=F At 31 December 2023
t2A=+-8
R Cost 2736579 1,989,763 27,875 590,850 401910 5,746,977
RitEE Accumulated amortisation —  (573,776) (19.961)  (146,528) (147,315  (887,580)
REFE Net book amount 2736579 1,415,987 7914 444,322 254,505 4,859,397
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e RRMEE (E)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZFEEN BARKETFIL (RIS EHH))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17 BEREE(&2) 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

@ #H#=—=-—_=F+=-—A=+—8 (a) During the year ended 31 December 2023, amortisation of
IEFE - #H AR%121,085,000 approximately RMB121,085,000 (2022: RMB116,536,000)
(2T = F: AR % was included in cost of sales, and RMB5,230,000 (2022:
116,536,000 T ) WE#HE [ SHE RMB6,260,000) was included in administration expenses.

AR IR S8 - 49 AR 55,230,000
T(ZE = —F : AR¥6,260,000
JC) R SHAE [1THE R P8y -

(b) MEEREE (b) Impairment for goodwill
EREREHNBARMNERERSE Management reviews the business performance based on the type
BHEBRA REEHBETLEE of business in its subsidiaries. The CGUs are principally engaged
NHERAREE - RARHEMT in sales of natural gas in cylinders, sales of natural gas in bulk and
R KR - engineering construction services.
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e MR MEE (F)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(2B BARE T (BIEZEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

- > == .

17 BEEE (&) 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(b) EEREE) (b) Impairment for goodwill (continued)
UWTASHEeELETHRmES# The following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each CGU:
BE

R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
=== —E %
2023 2022
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
= ARE Jilin location
EHEWFRE Jilin Zhongji 89,045 89,045
TN Jilin Qian’an 3,089 3,089
HEmmg Gansu location
HEAR Gansu Baiyin 86,715 86,715
VEIR S Jingyuan Jindi 95,053 95,053
] e [ ek Henan location
S X Puyang Tianlun 6,167 6,167
A EAARR Henan Luyuan 7,663 7,663
=12 Henan Songxian 8,115 8,115
GEERCEE Kaifeng Xi’Na 10,079 10,079
)| BERK Xichuan Longcheng 33,533 33,533
sz Xiping Kaida 87,682 87,682
L eSS Shengiu Huixin 118,433 118,433
KimARE R Tianlun Pipeline 265,503 265,503
A R Hunan location
A A ZRE Dongkou Senbo 7,572 7,572
JBl &L H Fenghuang Zhongyou 20,353 20,353
=& I Yunnan location
ERAR Yunnan Datong 16,778 16,778
1L R [ e, Shandong location
EEBBRX Caoxian Zhongtian 11,401 11,401
EAS PN Shanxian Zhongtian 14,222 14,222
SHEESA Heze Guanghe 61,656 61,656
HEAES Dongming Wanji 14,967 14,967
e Guangdong location
RN EE R Chaozhou Huamao 166,070 166,070
IWEER G Shantou Chenghai 65,937 65,937
48 77 )[B3E Lechang Anshunda 28,063 28,063
fEEEE I Fujian location
—BRER Sanming Huiji 22,518 22,518
LR 13 Jiangsu location
RN K AR Suzhou Tianlun 188,697 188,697
R 7 [ 1 Shaanxi location
BRRR Liquan Hongyuan 90,106 90,106
B IR INR Qianxian Hongyuan 57,978 57,978
SRPE R B Mizhi Changxing 52,215 52,215
RERE Wubu Changxing 29,497 29,497
FMIERE Zizhou Shunxiang 41,973 41,973
PO || (&2 13, Sichuan location
7o)||BREE Sichuan Mingsheng 249,305 249,305
SEMR Jintang Gas 246,422 246,422
KFRETR Yongyang Energy 93,061 93,061
A b & 15, Hebei location
ARG E Shijiazhuang Jinming 145,784 145,784
SEEE Qinghai location
HeEsi Gansu Jindi 300,927 300,927
2,736,579 2,736,579
* IBEEH B TIRAR M IE R 5 * The CGUs in the same geography grouped together for presentation
HEITEE - BEET - only.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(£BEEBARETIT (BHESEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

17

(b)

BIEE (&)

R ERE (&)

REeEHETMRIKESEIRE
EREEFEETE - A ETAFA
BARERETRR - KREEEL
ZMAFHMMBIEE - EREER
EPARBRIZREREK - EF
K REEREMFTEEK o

R-ZF-_=FEEREEFEPE

RAmEREKRET
AFHER R 3%-36%
ZEFZF : 3%-36%)
FEF|= 8%-37%
ZEF 1 9%-40%)
RARIE R 2%
TETF 1 2%)
AT IR 2 11%-13%

“EF - —F : 13%-14%)

EREEREBARANEEEH D
FIRAPATSRROAERGTS
EREELHETHERXLEN
FoRANKREEREEZRE
EEEEZRTEZEREENET
HERA R RSB R AR M Y BR A
it R KRR T B AT IZ G R
EREHEEEIRSE DL BTN
ERERR

RABEERR AEEERERS
TR S E L BT W E S B
RRORSEAEEFNBERT
REeERETNAIKESETRTE
ERREEE -
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17

(b)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment for goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
are those regarding the growth rates, gross margin, long term growth
rate and discount rates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2023 are
as follows:

Growth rate beyond 5-year period 3%-36%
(2022: 3%-36%)
Gross margin 8%-37%
(2022: 9%-40%)
Long term growth rate 2%

(2022: 2%)
11%-13%
(2022: 13%-14%)

Pre-tax discount rate

Management estimates growth rate and gross margin of individual
CGUs based on past performance and management's expectations
of market development over the five-year forecast period. The long
term growth rates are based on management’s best estimates with
consideration of both internal and external factors relating to the
CGUs. Discount rates that reflect current market assessment of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs will not be lower than the carrying amount even if taking
into account a reasonably possible change in a key assumption on
the calculations of recoverable amounts of the CGUs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(2B BARE T (BIEZEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

18 RERESNETRT 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

H
REBRE SR TA The Group holds the following financial instruments:
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-=F B
2023 2022
L ARET T AREBT T
EREE Financial assets Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
LAESHA ANET 2 /Y Financial assets at amortised cost
CREE
JFEE LA B 0 AR L At Trade and other receivables (exclude
WK (T RIETERR prepayments and value-added-tax to
I8 - EERBER be offset, prepaid income tax)
TEfTFTISHR) 20 1,658,941 1,056,866
RERBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 24 964,310 1,340,135
SR FI3R 5 Restricted cash 24 199,242 134,745
LUARBESFERHE  Financial assets at fair value through

BETAHMEE other comprehensive income

W mEE 19 56,128 70,699
UWARREEEHRE  Financial assets at fair value through

BEETABRA profit or loss

SREE 23(a) 171,624 135,399

3,050,245 2,737,844

ol N=R Financial liabilities
LA SRR ANFTER A& Liabilities at amortised cost

FERTE ZAEAMERZR  Trade and other payables (exclude
(TEEEFFe R accrued payroll and welfare payables
187 AN E At FE 44 and other taxes payables)
THIE) 28 682,745 926,503
EE Borrowings 29 6,801,454 7,203,064
HE&E Lease liabilities 15(i) 9,454 8,455
RARBEGFEAEHR Financial liabilities at fair value

BEET BT through profit or loss

CRBE 23 — 8,562

7,493,653 8,146,584

N ER B Rt T EL AR R Y =R [ B ik The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the financial
A RT3 - NEEEEHE SR instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum exposure to credit
T EMRENSERRERS R risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each
ARERRER AR El S ES E class of financial assets mentioned above.
BEMKRAEE -
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(£BEEBARETIT (BHESEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 UAREEFEAEH 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ST AHMEEUNK THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
BHNERMEE INCOME
AR EEEBEEB T AEM Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
2EBENEREERTE include the following:
R+=—BA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E=-= =B F
2023 2022
AR®ET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IEmENEE Non-current assets
T A — Equity instrument —
I EMES unlisted securities
— WRRAT SR (i) — Gas industry equity interest (i) 41,800 59,800
R+t=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR®ET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M EE Current assets
BTHE Debt instrument
— FEUREERE (ii) — Notes receivable (ii) 14,328 10,899
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19

(i)

AR nEETEAR
LB ASLMZE R
BN ERMEE (&)
DAREEH BB B
A A2 E s KR T A

R=B-=F+=A=+—AR=
T-—Ft-A=+—8 F%£H
SR A R DR 19% -

PR IR AN 5% [ 3 A A ) S 4R B T i

MERTE  WERESBAEUA
AEEFEEELZY T AEMEE

WEMEREE - ML QT
HIRE - BRAKECRIR—BK
RIERBIRELTMESZEKE - K
SERBEEBIRE T RMERF
& HEEREBEERENTEER:

AR AEEERDBEIR
I 8 PR 7 AR R
MRREBEATE

A B B E 7 2 BN E
B A B BRI EA
HA

B AR A A fT{E sk AT R
BEREE

RE B EERBILE TR
BHMEEERTEZEEA
BRI -

SEAN - AEBRBEFER
WIREHESSRIETEZ
a0 PIanAR 2 Eoat 1A &
HRERET N RAEEELRIK
EF o BEERORER -

AARBEFEREZEH T AHM
EHNGENEREERGABEER
BRABAEETE  REFE
R AN BRENEZHIZER

g
DR e

ARE BB IRAR B EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19

(i)

(2B BARETIT(FIFEHHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Equity instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group’s total
percentage shareholding in the investee was 19%.

This investment is classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, rather than as an investment in an
associate, because the Group does not have the power to exercise
significant influence over the investee. Although one representative
has been assigned to the investee as its director of the board,
the Group’s determination that it does not exercise a “significant
influence” over the investee has been based on the following factors:

The Group does not have a significant influence in respect
of the voting power in the policy-making decisions of the
investee due to the minority shareholding position;

There is no interchange of management personnel or sharing
of technical information between the Group and the investee;

There are no potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or currently convertible;

The access to the financial and operating information of the
investee was very restrictive for the Group;

In addition, the Group made a few proposals to the board of
the investee in prior years, such as the dividends distribution
plan and senior management assignment to the investee etc.,
and all of these proposals were vetoed.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet are
categorised by level according to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(£BEEBARETIT (BHESEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 AREEFEREHR 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

(i)

SEFTAEMEEK
HNEMEE (&F

UanEBEFEEES S
AEfEHWENEZETA
(&)

AEEHNBRR AN EHEREH
BRAENBEE - AR EBEE
MEBHKEA - REEEARR
EBEEAEZFHTAEMEZEK
SMEBMEEMNEIEREE
EBEHIEA -

ZE=F+ZA=1T—HAK=ZE
T+ -A=+—H'kEtmm
BEFENAABEREXENS
A B &S A B Asset Appraisal
Limited 1T{&H{E + 2R TS EEST
ZE  WBREZXSHEXRFHERT
7 [ FEEE 8] bAREE A8 B sk k8 1L
BEEMS LNARER BB
FZEFEFLIEAAABERER
3 E -

RAMSER - BRRNGEEU
EEBBORHERDUH2HH
TERMEEHERE - WiEEKE
RIBESE SRR EXBEAFE - BT
AHEBEEMEE SNEENYS
2YEARRNHERR - ARE
R HEHHEBEUAR R DS
HERCFBANR B ERTERER
EAM AL B EEE - (HETR KRR
M EGREERTFEMRERS
HITEB R RIEL - R EmiES
BREMNBEILRERATEEHN
AEERFHEEE -
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(i)

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Equity instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer. There were no transfers in
or out of Level 3 fair value measurements for financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income during the year.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the fair values of
unlisted equity investment are valued by independent professionally
qualified valuation firm Asset Appraisal Limited and calculated by
using the market approach to determine the fair value of the assets
by reference to the transaction prices, or “valuation multiples”
implicit in the transaction prices, of identical or similar assets on
the market, which results in these measurements being classified as
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

In applying the market approach, a few valuation multiples are to be
determined by dividing a financial parameter by the transaction price
paid for similar business enterprises, such as historical or prospective
turnover or profit at a given level. Valuation multiples are applied to
the corresponding financial parameter of the subject asset in order
to value it. Adjustments are required to the transaction prices or
valuation multiples to reflect the differentiating characteristics of the
business enterprises and the comparable business enterprises for
which the transaction prices or valuation multiples are known. The
multiples adopted in the valuation are among P/B ratio and price/
EBITDA, and the value of unlisted equity investment was determined
by the average of the results calculated using the different multiples.
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(i)

(ii)

ARE BB IRAR B EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

UAnEBEFERAR
ST ARMGEER
HNETRMEE (&)

(RFEBBAREF T (BIFZEHA))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

DAREBEFEEESEHF (i)  Equity instrument at fair value through other
AHMEHEWZENERTA comprehensive income (continued)
(%)
HRABAXT B HA (E3E) Information about fair value measurements using significant
WA EETEEE unobservable inputs (Level 3)
TAREGA FABREGAY
it MEE fhER FABREAA (B mETH) MEENEE
Unobservable
inputs Relationship of
Valuation (probability- unobservable inputs
Description Fair value technique Unobservable inputs  Weighted average) to fair value
(AREFTT)
(RMB'000)
FLTRERE
Unlisted equity investment
—RZBZ=Ft+-A=+-H 41,800 (220 RE 0.69 HEER  MABEES
— As at 31 December 2023 Market approach P/B ratio The higher the ratios, the
higher the fair value
REAEHrERE 7.68
AL,
Price/EBITDA
—RZBZZF+ZA=1-H 59,800 Bk RERZML 1,06 hEds - AEEER
— As at 31 December 2022 Market approach Price/earnings The higher the ratios, the
higher the fair value
REASHIrERE 7.01
EIpIES
Price/EBITDA
DAREBHETEEH®E (i) Debt investments at fair value through other

AREHERENERIRE
TA

URARBEFELEZESH T AHM
PEHEENEBRETABIEK
RE EASERENBRRRE
BERHE ERHERIMNIRTT
FHRNEERE -

comprehensive income

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
comprise notes receivable which certain subsidiaries of Group’s
endorsed or discounted the notes receivable to settle payables to
suppliers or from bank.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(£BEEBARETIT (BHESEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

19 UAREEFEAEH 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

SETAHMEE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
mNERMERE (& INCOME (continued)
(iii) FFABZMEAMZEUKEBN (i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other
ot | comprehensive income
REEA - AEBFATFEEA During the year, the following gains were recognised in profit or loss
B ME A 2 EES and other comprehensive income:
—E-=H —E-_F
2023 2022
AR% TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
STAHMEMURAR  Loss recognised in other comprehensive income
fE518 (5E27) (Note 27)
ER 2R 15 & A Related to equity investments (18,000) (12,800)

(iv) MUAanEEAEEHEZFZHAEM (iv) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

2EUENEREEAARES are denominated in RMB.
’fﬁ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20 PEWRBRFFIH fthrEUR

(2B BARETIT(FIFEHHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

S
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EBE-=F —E-_F
2023 2022
ARET ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
JEURBRZK — 48%E(a)  Trade receivables — gross (a) 550,416 515,629
JE UK B ES 5 FR0E (a) Receivables due from related parties (a)

(K$7E35) (Note 35) 1,131,612 463,631
W B Less: provision for impairment (169,574) (45,330)
i E2E Notes receivable 44,586 15,614
H fth EUK Other receivables 102,203 107,624
R EEE Less: provision for impairment (302) (302)
BEFBERK Value-added-tax to be offset and

TEfSFTISHR prepaid income tax 35,625 29,601

1,694,566 1,086,467
FEfTFRIE (b) Prepayments (b) 389,444 558,110
2,084,010 1,644,577

(@) MREE—BETEPHE
EHAMMER - HRIER
ERRBEF AKERE
ERYERTEUR R + AR SH
MIBERT  EEERYE
REFHNEEMRE - WE
AMREEAE —RBF
TARBAME - U TNAEE
& A K #1,118,016,000
T(ZZEZZF: AR¥
450,034,000 7T ) & Uk 27 Bt
FESHIE - MEPKRIZE
B HEIZ2 5 E U R AR B
DT

The credit period generally granted to customers in relation
to sales of pipelined gases is up to two months. As for the
customers in relation to engineering construction service,
the Group generally requests advance payments, and in
circumstances of credit sales, management closely monitors
the credit quality of the customers, and credit period was
granted case by case with maximum of two years. The
following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables and
receivables due from related parties in trade nature amounting
to RMB1,118,016,000 (2022: RMB450,034,000),
presented based on billing date at the end of the reporting
period:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(SEREMBARETIT(FHFEEHH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20. ﬂﬁﬂﬁlﬂﬁﬁi&ﬁ{&ﬂﬁuﬂ 20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
M (= (continued)
(@) (&) (@)  (continued)
R+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E_= —E- 4
2023 2022
AR®T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F PR Less than one year 1,363,006 821,521
—FNUE Over 1 year 266,167 113,773
M Over 2 years 39,259 30,369
1,668,432 965,663

(b) FBNREBEXIZEERBIA
R RV IIRZRRS
Dl

() FEUGBRRBUANE fth 8 W 3R e AR
EEEREQAEEEA—
B o

(d)  FEUER RN E b 8 R
MEREEDFSRME
31°JEH&EE/TAfDFI\1‘@JEW

REOEMERL TEEE
%E/WEE’\JQE

(e) RHEIR  &RAXERERMA
A L SR EWGRIER R E
B8 - ZK%@T%ﬁEHf’E
AEFIER®

() FEUMRRREON H Ao 8 W R e AR
EEEAARKEE -

(8 RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—
A AEEREEBEORA
R # 87,092,000 7T I f& Uz
RREEARERERE
#ﬁ%(_gzzi P AR
94,994,000 7t) (Fi7F 29(a)
F29(c)) °
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Prepayment primarily related to purchase of gas, raw material
and engineering construction service.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

See Note 3.1 for the provision for impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables. And the other classes
within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired
assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2023, the trade receivables with
carrying value of approximately RMB87,092,000 (2022:
RMB94,994,000) were pledged for the Group’s borrowings
(Note 29(a) and 29(c)).
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22

EBRHE I REEEM

e MR MEE (F)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(2B BARE T (BIEZEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

21 PREPAYMENTS RELATED TO OTHER NON-

EA Y TR RIE CURRENT ASSETS
W+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E_-= =B _F
2023 2022
ARET T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RS (DS B 1% 4HR K Prepayments related to share purchase
T FRIE (1) agreements (i) 41,788 41,788
ERRHIE LA Prepayments related to long-term assets
TE SR8 construction 57,012 39,103
98,800 80,891

(i) R-E—=F+-_A=+—
H BN REARE
41,788,000 L( =& = =
F: ARM41,788,0007T)
BT R B AR AT SR E M AL
EARIREER o

(i) As at 31 December 2023, prepayments amounting to
RMB41,788,000 (2022: RMB41,788,000) were related
to the prepayments made for purchasing the equity of other
private companies in gas industry.

A 22 INVENTORIES

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E_= B
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R EERM A Materials for gas pipelines 66,308 93,143
JHFEM Consumables 47,353 17,296
A RIBKIRA Contract fulfilling cost 67,178 18,821
180,839 129,260

RZEZ=F+=—A=+—HBEk=
To_F+ZA=+—8 ' R8T
BET TR (E S -

GFERAER AN SE BRI
ABHERNANESENRBARKE
5,463,931,0007L( =& = — 4 :
AR#5,278,145,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, no inventories
write-down was provided.

The cost of inventories recognised as the Group's expense
and included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
RMB5,463,931,000 (2022: RMB5,278,145,000).
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e RRMEE (E)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BFEBE L BAREFT (RIS EHA))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23 LAREEFERH 23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

SETABZNEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
TH
(@) UAREEFEBHZEF (a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
ABBENERMEE
B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE Non-Current assets
T X B EARIA = Cross currency swap and interest rate swap
HIE 49 (1) contracts (i) 11,057 80,687
REBEE Current assets
#4215 S 5 (i) Total return swap (ii) 82,037 47,212
XX Eiktm BFIF| 22 Cross currency swap and interest rate swap
BE 49 (1) contracts (i) 78,530 7,500
160,567 54,712
45t Total 171,624 135,399
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23 UAREBENEREH
SETABERNER

(@)

TH

——
(&

UanEBEFEEES B
ABZNEREE

(i)

(i)

AEBEAZNERERTE
T RETTRITERAE
B REBRFEIER
% ARBEETSREE
I T ZMINEITET RS
#J o

KRB —_=F+-_A=+—
B AEEGTETAESHH
FEEFRT ¢

e RS R R Y EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZREEN SAREFT (RIS EHS))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(i) The Group is exposed to exchange rate risk mainly arising
from bank borrowing denominated in USD and HKD. To
manage and mitigate the foreign exchange exposure, the
Group entered into various foreign currency derivative
contracts with certain financial institutions.

The major terms of the outstanding derivative contracts as at
31 December 2023 are as follows:

EEREH Z|H BHEOR=E

Notional amount Maturity Forward contract rate
2.6018%T 2023-2025 1ETHARE : 6.4522-6.7292
USD260 million 2023-2025 USD1 to RMB6.4522-6.7292

- —_FRA+=ZH K
ARAIHETEFSBRAA
(TRSR S ¥ F ) 7] L A8
EH(TRS)RZ S » ¥
R tn B2 =T 178 B RO R 2R AR
EBAERR - FEREL2HE
ARIR-ZBE-_—FHA+H
HRIRE - TRSR B W
BAZRSEALEST -
RZZ=_=FMA+—8"
A QAR E K ETRS R
SEFHINRS  TRETY
BE-Z_=FAF+—Hie
TMER12@EA - FEHL
BAARR-E =4 A
T=HHA% - TRSHRZ
TNFEEATZHAIAE

A 4
©FREEE o

(i) On 13 May 2022, the Company entered into the Total
return swap (TRS) Transaction with Hantec Securities Co.
Limited (the TRS Counterparty), in a bid to hedge the risk
of increasing cost of acquiring the Shares caused by the
Company’s future Share price appreciation, as discussed
in the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2022
for details. The maximum Equity Notional Amount of the
TRS Transaction is HKD100 million. On 11 April 2023, the
Company decided to extend the TRS transaction with the TRS
counterparty for a period of not less than 12 months from
11 April 2023, as discussed in the announcement of the
Company dated on 13 April 2023. The TRS will be settled
net in cash by July 12, 2024.
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e RRMEE (E)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BFEBE L BAREFT (RIS EHA))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23 UAREEFERH 23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
BETFABENSRA THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
IR(E

(@) UAREEFEBHZEF (a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
AERNEMEE (&) (continued)

(i) (continued)

(i) (%)
RZBE-_=FWA+—8 " On 11 April 2023, the Company entered into another TRS
RARIETRS R G F HE] transaction with the TRS Counterparty, for details of which
V% —HTIRSR 5 ' #E please refer to the Company’s announcement dated on 13
FREARRER == April 2023. The maximum equity notional amount for the
MA+=HKMAEL - FZFE second TRS transaction is HKD100 million. The TRS will be
TRSZRZHERBRAEZER S settled net in cash by October 16, 2024.

ERLEHBTT - ZETRS
RZZE_WF+ B +/NHA
AR S REAMEE o

(b) UUAREEFEBHSZEF  (b) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

ABENEREE
R+t=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=K Current liabilities
RERINET A Forward exchange instrument = (8,562)
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23

(c)

ARE BB IRAR B EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

UAnEBEFERAR
SETABERNER

IH(Z&E

STAEHERNEE (c)

REEA - REBHELATFIGERIE

KET B profit or loss:

(ZFREMBARET T (BGIHFEEHPE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following gains and losses were recognised in

BE+T-A=1T—HLHFE

For the year ended

—E-=F —E-_F
2023 2022
ARBTT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
SNET BERYAREESR  Fair value gains on forward
FHF exchange instrument 3,213 17,274
X G EAANA S  Fair value gains on cross currency swap
HIA A AREEEE  and interest rate swap contracts
Fil2 45,325 80,520
BRI A EES  Fair value losses on
EE=ES total return swap (27,764) (15,319)
20,774 82,475
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e RRMEE (E)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(BFEBE L BAREFT (RIS EHA))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

24 BEeRBEEEY 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(@) RERRESLEEY (@) Cash and cash equivalents
R+=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E_=F —E-_F
2023 2022
ARET T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERS Cash in hand 5 2
RITER Cash at banks 964,305 1,340,133
964,310 1,340,135

FHRRE RRITFERTIATIEE

Cash in hand and at banks are denominated in the following

A - currencies:

R+=BA=+—8H

As at 31 December
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR¥ET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 949,755 1,287,296
ETT usD 1,123 30,831
ok HKD 13,432 22,008
ReERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 964,310 1,340,135

AN R SHE R SRR AR INE
K& EE R E P B AETH
[0 K P 28 ) SN EE 1 R AR B %
B

The conversion of the RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC are
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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(b)

e MR MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRFELBARKETIT (IR EHA))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

24 BERBEEEY 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(%) (continued)
TREEE (b) Restricted cash
R+=BA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-=F T F
2023 2022
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 67,615 36,385
K HKD 42,084 15,829
E usD 89,543 82,531
ZRHER® Restricted cash 199,242 134,745

RZZEZ=%F+ZHA=+—H" A
R # 37,308,000 7T & 1F BN #R 1T
ERFALENEBRNRES £
12,642,000 jT #7# ¥ 34,771,000
(4 A AR# 121,052,000 7T )
(ZZE==% : %511,850,0007C
N 76 # 17,720,000 ° “9B AR
# 98,359,000 7T ) & 1F MR R 1T
EARHEREERLIS AR
25,280,000 L F R R1T1E A B
HIRERFR  B% 11,670,000
T (#B AR 10,575,0007C) A&
FEHRERAREAEER M AR
TR+ AREES,027,0007T(=
T-—F: AR%386,0007T) i
RERRRITHZRHIER - T A
RUEHEEBERARARIEAT
BERRES -

As at 31 December 2023, RMB37,308,000 are restrict deposits
held at banks as reserve for issuing notes payable; USD12,642,000
and HKD34,771,000 (approximately RMB121,052,000)
(2022: USD11,850,000 and HKD17,720,000, approximately
RMB98,359,000) are restrict deposits held at banks as reserve for
bank borrowings; RMB25,280,000 are restricted deposits held at
bank as reserve for performance guarantee letter; HKD11,670,000
(approximately RMB10,575,000) are restricted deposit held at
security companies for repurchase of shares; RMB5,027,000 (2022:
RMB386,000) are restricted deposits held at bank for purchasing
natural gas from the suppliers and deposits from engineering
construction.
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e RRMEE (E)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZFEEN BARKETFIL (RIS EHH))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

25 BRA& - RO=ENE 25 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND

= TREASURY SHARES
(@) BRHFREDRE (@) Share capital and share premium
RIPEE EEk RDEE Bt
Number of shares  Ordinary shares  Share premium Total
(F&) ARETT AREFTL AREFTL
(thousands) RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ERTIHE Issued and fully paid:

RZZ-Z%—-HF—H AtlJanuary 2022 1,003,615 8,466 528,133 536,599

T _FERBNE  Dividends relating to 2022 dividend

(PR&E31) (Note 31) — — (223,081) (223,081)
fe R Issue of shares upon placement 50,000 403 333,369 333,772
SRR Cancellation of shares (43,588) (358) (297,325) (297,683)
R-B--& At 31 December 2022

+=ZA=+—-H 1,010,027 8,511 341,096 349,607

—“E-=EEREHE  Dividends relating to 2023 dividend

(BfsE31) (Note 31) — — (171,135) (171,135)
B Cancellation of shares (28,142) (247) (88,644) (88,891)
R-B-=& At 31 December 2023

+-A=t+-H 981,885 8,264 81,317 89,581
AARERBRAEATHBELEE The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000
2,000,000,000 % ( =& = — 4 : shares (2022: 2,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HKD0.01
2,000,000,0000%) - B EE & per share (2022: HKDO0.01 per share).

B0l T (ZZE-_—F: FRE
BEB%0.017T) °
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e MR MEE (F)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(LREEN BARKTFT (BIESEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

25 BRA& - RO=ENE 25 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND

7 (48) TREASURY SHARES (continued)
(b) EER (b) Treasury shares
KR ot |
Number of shares Amounts
(F8) AR®F T
(thousands) RMB’000
R-IBEZ—F At 31 December 2021
+=B=+—H 31,490 200,697
& =l i Repurchase of shares 52,178 255,911
EEiz)an) Cancellation of shares (43,588) (297,683)
N-—EE_-_F At 31 December 2022
sE=H=G—H 40,080 158,925
f& 15 188 Repurchase of shares 881 3,199
FEIHAR (D Cancellation of shares (28,142) (88,891)
R-EB-=F At 31 December 2023
+=A=+—H 12,819 73,233
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PR AR M eE (4)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZFEEN BARKETFIL (RIS EHH))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

25

(b)

26

BAR - R RENE
R (&)

EER (&)

RoB-=&F  AAAREBY
AR SHERA TR &% BR
T

25

(b)

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND
TREASURY SHARES (continued)

Treasury shares (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited as follows:

R EE BRESE BRBEE X ATHEE

Number of  Highest Price Lowest Price Aggregate

B/ Month/Year shares per share per share price paid
(FA%) BT BT BB

(thousands) HKD HKD HKD’000

—=%—A January 2023 881 4.42 3.80 3,655

AR BER B

RZZE-_—FNA=Z+/, B KA
RIESSHLE T RGK ERBEEI( =

T_—5t3)) ZABEERER
SENEEFE - F2RENOFE
EAREE M SERT - WARRE

RASENEABREERE
B RS RSB BEEAS AR
RAGEREBN B RER

=== —%‘JrEUE%%@?tt}E?é 104
NEX - IRE-T— —tEIAI 31T
B &Z THBEAR TR ERITR
AE)5% °

M:Y:_$+ A=+—H8 ' &K
NAEIBIR D BT E R MBI T
FEABAA$12,817,500 (==
—— 4% :12,817,5000%) A2 Alf%
9 WEATRENRDERERG
EEETER T &R LS -
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26

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 26 August 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company
approved the share award scheme (“2021 scheme”), the purposes
of 2021 scheme are to improve the Group’s incentive system, align
the interests of participants with the Group’s interest, and encourage
them to create long-term value for the Group and the Shareholders
and attract and motivate professional talents to enhance and promote
the Group’s sustainable and healthy development.

The 2021 scheme is valid and effective for 10 years from the
approval of the Board of Directors. The maximum number of shares
that may be issued under 2021 scheme will not exceeding 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

As at 31 December 2023, 12,817,500 (2022: 12,817,500 shares)
shares were acquired by an independent trustee appointed by the
Company for the share award scheme with no awarded shares been
granted to any selected participants pursuant to the share award
scheme.



e MR MEE (F)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZREEN SAREFT (RIS EHS))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27 RENBEFWRE 27 RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(@) f#fE (@) Reserves
NAREETE
BHEFHHA
Hit2EKEN
EXRE EERE tREE st
Financial
assets at
fair value
through other
Capital Statutory comprehensive
reserves reserves income Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZEZZ#—-H—H At1 January 2022 (90,608) 804,605 22,822 736,819
B — #% (Mf:519)  Revaluation-gross (Note 19) — — (12,800) (12,800)
Bft — HIE(:E30)  Revaluation-tax (Note 30) — = 3,200 3,200
BB Appropriation (i) — 150,459 = 150,459
UM B A RIEESMEZS  Acquisition of additional
interests of a subsidiary (12) — — (12)
EE MR B2 : Employee share option
scheme:
— EERBHEE — Value of employee
services = — — —
— RERMEETE]  — Issue of shares pursuant
BITMRG to share option
scheme = = = —
RZEZZ& At 31 December 2022
+=ZA=1+—-H (90,620) 955,064 13,222 877,666
RZZ-=%-HF—H AtlJanuary 2023 (90,620) 955,064 13,222 877,666
Bt — 2% (f1:519)  Revaluation-gross (Note 19) — — (18,000) (18,000)
Sfh — #IB(fi3£30)  Revaluation-tax (Note 30) — = 4,500 4,500
B () Appropriation (i) — 115,004 — 115,004
R-B-=& At 31 December 2023
+=A=+-A (90,620) 1,070,068 (278) 979,170
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(£BEEBARETIT (BHESEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27 RENEFREE)

(@)
(i)

ikt (&)

EEMRE

KRR BEARRERER MAKER
i) SN NG RE T i VALY = PN
(THEMBAR ] NASERZAA
MRE - PEMEQRAERAE
EFEEERR - Rk AR
PEe R EERFREARELN
0% BEEERBAES - EPE
MEARMEERRNTESHREE
BEMEAR 0% K - BRERAEIFR
ERTE— TR -

AEBHBAES AN BABES
EER(NE) - TFaEBEARIR
15 B AR AN LL )[R B AR SR B8 1T
AL MERITRBTROATEBRA
BEHENDNEMEAR25% -

BHE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HI
FE - ETHBEWE QR LR
METRBRABESERINARE
115,004,000 (=== : A
FR# 150,459,000 7T) °
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27 RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(a)
(i)

(continued)

Reserves (continued)

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
Articles of Association of the companies incorporated in the PRC
now comprising the Group (the “PRC Subsidiaries”), it is required
to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profits of the PRC
Subsidiaries, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined
under the PRC accounting standards, to the statutory surplus
reserves fund before distributing the net profit. When the balance
of the statutory surplus reserves fund reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries, any further appropriation is at the
discretion of shareholders.

The statutory surplus reserves fund can be used to offset prior years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholding,
provided that the remaining balance of the statutory surplus reserves
fund after such issue is not less than 25% of registered capital.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, approximately
RMB115,004,000 (2022: RMB150,459,000) were appropriated to
the statutory surplus reserves funds from net profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries.



(b)

(c)

e MR MEE (F)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZREEN SAREFT (RIS EHS))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

27 f#EMBIFEWER(4Z) 27 RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(continued)
BFEWES (b) Retained earnings
AREBT T
RMB’000
R=-ZB=-=%—HA—H At 1 January 2022 4,145,458
FEBENARRMEENFE Profit attributable to owners of the Company 444,598
B AE Appropriation (150,459)
MN-—ZFE-_—_F+—-HA=+—H At 31 December 2022 4,439,597
N=—EB=-_=%—H—H At 1 January 2023 4,439,597
BB RRIFTEERAE Profit attributable to owners of the Company 479,562
B Appropriation (115,004)
MR-ZZBE-=F+="H=+—H At 31 December 2023 4,804,155
Hiap2mEUES - HIBRSBIE (c) Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Hih2m
Hithf# s Wik zE
Total other
comprehensive
Other reserves income
ARET T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BE-ZE_-=%+=H Year ended 31 December 2023
=+—HLEFE
AREBESEBES  Change in value of financial assets
et AEMEEUES  at fair value through other comprehensive
NemEENERE income, net of tax
g+ MRFHIA (13,500) (13,500)
Hitn 2 ER B Total other comprehensive income (13,500) (13,500)
BE-_Z—-_—_F+=H Year ended 31 December 2022
=+—HLFE
ARBEEBES  Change in value of financial assets
et AEMEEUWES  at fair value through other comprehensive
NemEENERE income, net of tax
g« MRFRIA (9,600) (9,600)
Hi2mEKFEEE Total other comprehensive income (9,600) (9,600)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZFEEN BARKETFIL (RIS EHH))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28 FE{TERFXFNHE Mt eSS 28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

£
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EBE-=F —E-_F
2023 2022
AR%T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEERF (a &2 b) Trade payables (a and b) 344,181 358,256
R EE Notes payable 219,308 427,700
FE ST BB 75 5RIA (a) Amounts due to related parties (a)

(PfizE35) (Note 35) 6,689 16,244
st & MR Accrued payroll and welfare 7,676 6,069
FERFIE Interest payables 16,090 13,243
ot fE G R IE Other taxes payables 289,631 229,419
RSB B Contingent consideration payables 9,993 14,516
H b ERF (a) Other payables (a) 86,484 96,544

980,052 1,161,991
(@ R-B-—=FE+-—A=+— (@)  As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, all such
BER-—ZE-__+=A trade payables and other payables of the Group were non-
=+—8 XN&ELMERS interest bearing and their fair values approximated to their
R EMERRE AR carrying amounts due to the short maturities of majority of

B ARARE D R EIER payables.
HIREE - E AR EBEER
HEBEEE -
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28

ARE BB IRAR B EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FEAY BR AR AN HL A FE S

(&

by R-B=F+_A=+—
HR=ZZ=-Z—_F+=A
=+—H ' BAEFIRER
BHHMBRETAT ¢

(b)

(RFEBBAREF T (BIFZEHA))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the ageing
analysis of the trade payables, based on billing date was as
follows:

B+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-=F —E-—F
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FE A Less than 1 year 302,272 317,393
—FEEMF 1 year to 2 years 15,298 18,437
WEE=F 2 years to 3 years 14,890 6,906
=FUE Over 3 years 11,721 15,520
344,181 358,256

€) AKEMNEMNIRRMEDRE
NREREEETDATIE

(c)

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade and other payables
were denominated in the following currencies:

st

R+=-—H=+—H

As at 31 December
—==-= —EoF
2023 2022
ARET AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 974,993 1,155,658
X7T usD 4,592 4,842
T HKD 467 1,491
980,052 1,161,991
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(SEREMBARETIT(FHFEEHH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29 B

29 BORROWINGS

R+=A=+—~H
As at 31 December
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR®T T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
IERED Non-current
RITIERK Bank borrowings
— B (a) — pledged (a) 135,467 —
— EELR (b) — guaranteed (b) 812,555 251,750
— BEEIFILIELR (c) — pledged and guaranteed (c) 853,384 974,850
— ERfER — unsecured 1,308,279 3,056,794
HMEF(d) Other borrowings (d) 4,188 4,384
IEmENE TN RE Total non-current borrowings 3,113,873 4,287,778
TED Current
RITER Bank borrowings
— B (a) — pledged (a) 37,528 5,800
— B#ER(b) — guaranteed (b) 963,635 325,000
— BEHIIER () — pledged and guaranteed (c) 900,943 745,380
— EAER — unsecured 1,785,204 1,838,851
HAbfEFR(d) Other borrowings (d) 271 255
MENE T AREE Total current borrowings 3,687,581 2,915,286
BBt Total borrowings 6,801,454 7,203,064
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29 fER(#E)

(a)

(b)

RZBEZ=F+=A=+—
B AR #172,995,000
TCH) R B M IE R BN IR 1T E
HEREEEEAARE
89,175,000 JT K & Ut iR 3%
HIRER - FIBF20M =
20(g) °

RZBEZ=F+=A=+—
B+ AK# 5,800,000 TH)
B R IEMEN IR TIE KA TE
f54%BE A R 1,952,000 7T
BT A A K 1,008,000
TOR {5 AR AR AR o

RZBZ=F+-A=+—
B AR¥1,776,190,000
T(ZF=_—F: AR®
576,750,0007C ) &t B &
IEMBIRITIE R AR S 5L

EREKE)  REEXRE
(RBRESREREKE) KA
NEERBRE2EFENN
BRI A R B T
SBEERAR - ABKXMmA
RIREBR QB FE
KRinBEEBR R RIFEHE
R o

e RS R R Y EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(2B BARETIT(FIFEHHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29 BORROWINGS (continued)

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2023, the current and non-current
bank borrowings of RMB172,995,000 were secured
by trade receivables with carrying value amounting to
RMB89,175,000. See Note20(g) for details.

As at 31 December 2022, the current and non-current bank
borrowings of RMB5,800,000 were secured by buildings
and land-use rights of Deyang Lvneng amounting to
RMB1,952,000 and RMB1,008,000.

As at 31 December 2023, the current and non-current
bank borrowings of RMB1,776,190,000 (2022;
RMB576,750,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Zhang Yingcen,
Ms. Sun Yanxi (a family member of Mr. Zhang Yingcen), Mr.
Zhang Daoyuan (a family member of Mr. Zhang Yingcen) and
the related parties wholly owned by controlling shareholders
of the Company, which were Henan Tian Lun Investment
Holdings Group Limited, Henan Tian Lun Gas Engineering
Investment Limited and Henan Tian Lun Real Estate Group
Limited.
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e M mRRMEE ()
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(£BEEBARETIT (BHESEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29 fER(#E)

(c)

RZBEZ=F+=A=+—
H - AR¥1,754,327,000
TR E RIEM BN IRTTIE K
MmEHEXMm - AEXMmR
RRERHE  KigRHE -
BRESH - NLaA - £
AAM - KEKH - AR
o EEHK AW BEK
o BRIG A KBS
- BEBhEH - FAFENE
=EEE  2ERE - AR
ME - BEo - BEX
fa « RiBEME - EEFIRK
MRWEELREEBEARE
87,092,000 JT ¥ & It B 3%
(MIsE20(F) » €S EMR
KERE  RERHE - AKX
Hem - Heael - K@d
- KIBERLE - GBS
AR FREH - AE
SiE - KFRER - 1EI5ARRE
RIERGEREMNRFEERE - K
BE MM E B A R
2,600,000 THIEF R AR
# 91,094,000 7T KA & &
BRI (MIEE 14(b)) °

It FRITERBERBRS K
B BB L RARREE
BB R 2B+ A MV REHE 77 0
MERREREEREEAR
RE - AREXREBERR
REFA R IR R TR
BARARRMHIER
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29 BORROWINGS (continued)

(c)

As at 31 December 2023, the current and non-current bank
borrowings of RMB1,754,327,000 were secured by the gas
charging rights and trade receivables with carrying value
amounting to RMB87,092,000 (Note 20(f)) of Shangjie
Tianlun, Henan Tian Lun Gas, Wubu Changxing, Mizhi
Changxing, Shijiazhuang Jinming, Jiutai Dadi, Panshi Dadi,
Da’an Dadi, Baicheng Dadi, Zhenlai County Dadi, Dunhua
Dadi,Tongyu County Dadi, Datong Jindi, Huzhu Jindi, Xiping
Kaida, Deyang Huaneng, Jintang Gas, Baiyin Gas, Jinyuan
Jindi, Hebi Tianlun, Datong Yasuo, Huzhu Limin, equity
interests in Jintang Gas, Mizhi Changxing, Wubu Changxing,
Shijiazhuang Jinming, Gansu Jindi, Datong Jindi, Datong
Yasuo, Huzhu Jindi, Huzhu Limin, Jinyuan Jindi, Xiping
Kaida, Yongyang Energy, Deyang Lvneng, Deyang Huaneng,
buildings and gas pipeline of Datong Jindi and Huzhu Jindi
amounting to RMB2,600,000and RMB91,094,000 (Note
14(b)).

These bank borrowings were guaranteed by Mr. Zhang
Yingcen, Ms. Sun Yanxi and the related parties wholly
owned by controlling shareholders of the Company, which
were Henan Tian Lun Investment Holdings Group Limited,
Henan Tian Lun Real Estate Limited, Henan Tian Lun Gas
Engineering Investment Limited.



29 fER(#E)

(c)

(%)

RIBZZF+H="+—
A AR¥1,720,230,000
TCH B R IE R ENRI T
BRWBRAEN  LEHX
fm JAEXERAR  RER
B.RKERE ARES
B La R - EBAHAH
AR - B - HE
R B K- B
BAM - RBE&H - BB
i AFEE ElHE
B8 REMR - [)IRER
MARWEEKEEARE
94,994,000 7T &9 & 1 BR 5%
(FFE20(g) - @ EMA
KERE - RERE - AKX
H&rg - WIRPE - HES
# RBEH « KBERLE -
HBheih - BEEHAER - BB
FLE  KIFREIR  1RI54REE
RIEMGERE MR R R - K
BEWAME AR
2,784,000 THEFR AR
#5 98,719,000 7T K #A | &
BIERER (5L 14(b)) °

It FERIT B KB RBR S 5k
£ BRI RAR R
R 2 E R A RRRE A
MAEXRREEREEAR
NE - REXfmEBERR
REFA X R RTIZR
BARATHRMHAER

RZBEZ=F+=A=+—
B AR¥ 4,459,000 TH
BR(ZEZ_F: AR
4,639,0007T ) BAEBE R
—EE - FRERUIEART
BT AR E BARS L
REMAPERIRATER

e RS R R Y EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(2B BARETIT(FIFEHHS))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29 BORROWINGS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the current and non-current bank
borrowings of RMB1,720,230,000 were secured by the gas
charging rights and trade receivables with carrying value
amounting to RMB94,994,000 (Note 20(g)) of Tianlun
Pipeline, Shangjie Tianlun, Henan Tian Lun Gas, Wubu
Changxing, Mizhi Changxing, Shijiazhuang Jinming, Jiutai
Dadi, Panshi Dadi, Da’an Dadi, Baicheng Dadi, Zhenlai
County Dadi, Dunhua Dadi, Tongyu County Dadi, Datong Jindi,
Huzhu Jindi, Xiping Kaida, Deyang Huaneng, Jintang Gas,
Sichuan Mingsheng, equity interests in Jintang Gas, Mizhi
Changxing, Wubu Changxing, Shijiazhuang Jinming, Sichuan
Mingsheng, Gansu Jindi, Datong Jindi, Datong Yasuo, Huzhu
Jindi, Huzhu Limin, Xiping Kaida, Yongyang Energy, Deyang
Lvneng, Deyang Huaneng, buildings and gas pipeline of
Datong Jindi and Huzhu Jindi amounting to RMB2,784,000
and RMB98,719,000 (Note 14(b)).

These bank borrowings were guaranteed by Mr. Zhang
Yingcen, Ms. Sun Yanxi and the related parties wholly
owned by controlling shareholders of the Company, which
were Henan Tian Lun Investment Holdings Group Limited,
Henan Tian Lun Real Estate Limited, Henan Tian Lun Gas
Engineering Investment Limited.

As at 31 December 2023, borrowings of RMB4,459,000
(2022: RMB4,639,000) from local government were assumed
by the Group to acquire the exclusive operating rights for city
pipeline network in Xuchang City of Henan Province in 2003.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZFEEN BARKETFIL (RIS EHH))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

29 B (&) 29 BORROWINGS (continued)
() RBMER  NEEERK (e)  The maturities of the Group’s borrowings at respective end of
REEIEAT reporting period are set out as follows:
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-= -4
2023 2022
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
— —FEPR — Within 1 year 3,687,581 2,915,286
— —FEWF — Between 1 and 2 years 2,011,598 1,504,304
— WMEFEERF — Between 2 and 5 years 1,093,275 2,752,729
— AFEE — Over 5 years 9,000 30,745
6,801,454 7,203,064
(f) AREBEFHWERABENAT (f) The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
SIEHSEN - denominated in the following currencies:
R+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—EC-=F —E-_F
2023 2022
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE RMB 3,857,982 3,764,355
e usbD 2,377,097 2,855,197
ot HKD 566,375 583,512
6,801,454 7,203,064
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ARE BB IRAR B EE ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

29 fER(#E)

(g)

(h)

AEEERNREEEREE
NABERE -

ARBARY - ZLRAER
fE SRR & 3 &S R B A
KT -

29

(ZREEN SAREFT (RIS EHS))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

BORROWINGS (continued)

(g) The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximated
their fair values.

(h) The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings
denominated in RMB, USD and HKD at the end of each
reporting date are set out as follows:

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E=-= T F
2023 2022

AR RMB
v usD
ot HKD

3.75%~5.30% 3.30%~5.50%
5.97%~7.64% 5.97%~6.73%
4.87%~7.62%  6.32%~7.44%
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(SEREMBARETIT(FHFEEHH))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30

(a)

BiE 30 DEFERRED TAX
EERIBEERBBENDT (@)  The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:
R
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
=8==%F T CF
2023 2022
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEFIBEE Deferred tax assets
— 12 @ A& R — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
RIEFIE & B after more than 12 months 6,430 13,330
— 12 &8 A A E#Y — Deferred tax assets to be recovered
EEFIEE A& within 12 months 1,608 4,714
8,038 18,044
REHIEBE Deferred tax liabilities
— 12{@R&EEK — Deferred tax liability to be recovered
RIEFIITEEE after more than 12 months (689,380) (712,599)
— 12 AL A — Deferred tax liability to be recovered
EIERIES & within 12 months (46,526) (32,896)
(735,906) (745,495)
FEEBIES M (B)  Deferred tax liabilities — net (727,868) (727,451)

248 RAMREBRERADT 2023FFEHE



30

e MR MEE (F)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(RFEBBAREF T (BIFZEHA))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

IEIERIE (45 30 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(@ (&) (@)  (continued)
EET IR AR B ;B 8K 7 The gross movements on the deferred tax account are as
REATR follows:

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

— —F-ofF

2023 2022

AR¥ET T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

Rn—HA—H At 1 January (727,451) (726,629)
ERE (b 2 EUZSHERER)  Tax credit relating to other comprehensive

HIEMER (fizE12) income (Note 12) 4,500 3,200

MR8z AELER (B3 12) Charged to profit or loss (Note 12) (4,917) (4,022)

Wn+=—_HA=+—H At 31 December (727,868) (727,451)
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(ZFEEN BARKETFIL (RIS EHH))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30 RAEMIE (&F 30 DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(b) FAEREFHBBEEMBED (b)  The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
FEIT - the year are as follows:
ELEBIREE Deferred tax assets
HAAER
B
FTABEH
EENERE EHER  ROEER fiE SREEER it it st
Revaluation
of financial
assets at
Provision for fair value
impairment Accrued through profit
of assets expenses  Taxlosses  Depreciation or loss Others  Offsetting Total

ARBTT ARBTT ARETL ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'OO0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O0O  RMB'OOD  RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'000  RMB'00
WZFZZE-F-A A1 Janvay 2022 11,304 2,558 25,249 1,001 9,168 2,1% (25,036) 27,040

WEEMIR/ (28)  Credited(charged) to

rofit or loss 17,185 (403) (58) (132) (7,027) (310) (18,251) (8,996)

i — Asat 31 December 2022
+-B=1-B 28,489 2,155 25,191 869 2,141 2,486 (43,287) 18,044
RZE=F-A-F M1 Janvary 2023 28,489 2,155 25,191 869 2,141 2,486 (43,287) 18,044

WEEMIR/ (25)  Credted(charged) to
profit or loss 16,169 (673) (6,558) (126) (2,141) (1,186)  (15491)  (10,006)

R-E-=E s at 31 December 2023
+Zh=1-H 44,658 1,482 18,633 743 - 1,300 (58,778) 8,038
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZREEN SAREFT (RIS EHS))
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30 EEBIE(Z 30 DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(b) FAEREFHBEEMBED (b)  The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during

HEINT : (&)

the year are as follows: (continued)

EEMIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
HESRRA
-
AERA/
MERE WEHERE
EffHRE MEMBE it it &t
Withholding
tax relating
to dividends
to be
distributed/
Fair value interests
revaluation eamed from
and the PRC
adjustments subsidiaries Depreciation Offsetting Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE-—%-f-H At 1 January 2022 576,171 36,048 166,486 (25,036) 753,669
AEMZEYWETIE  Credited to other comprehensive income (3,200) — - - (3,200)
RERA(MG) /& (Credited)icharged to profit or loss (14,965) (2,968) 31,210 (18,251) (4,974)
i S As at 31 December 2022
TZR=1-H 558,006 33,080 197,696 (43,287) 745,495
R-E-=%-f-H At 1 January 2023 558,006 33,080 197,696 (43,287) 745,495
Pl el Credited to other comprehensive income (4,500) - - - (4,500)
NERA(HI%) /28 (Credited)icharged to profit or loss (24912) 8,317 26,997 (15,491) (5,089)
—E-= As at 31 December 2023
T-R=1-H 528,594 41,2397 224,693 (58,778) 735,906
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(£BEEBARETIT (BHESEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

30 IR

(b)

(c)

BE (A&

FRREHRAEEENAER
ZSFMT : (F)

R_B-_=F+=-A=+—
B RNEB R — LB
REIZATFTHERF M
FE 2 4% T8 40 B i 3| B A9
BEEHEEBHOARKE
298,637,800 L( =& = —
F: AR #267,329,000
T)EHBER 2SS H
BWKBERNBIRE - R
—EZ=F+ZA=+—
BRARFOEAEFBELY
A AN R ¥5,972,756,000
T(ZEBE-Z_F: AR
5,346,573,0007T ) ° AN %
EEERrERARK AR
BB AR THRAF
BB EBBIERAF] o

RNEBRBEROELETIEE
EXABARE 12,527,000
T(ZE-—F: AR
11,101,0007z) - i ¥ &
HY 7] 4% 88 DK R R E R
M=K EEAARMK
775,211,000t (===
F: AR¥ 769,507,000
JL) °
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30 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(b)

(c)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
the year are as follows: (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax liabilities of
approximately RMB298,637,800 (2022: RMB267,329,000)
had not been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
Such amounts are permanently reinvested. Unremitted
earnings totalled approximately RMB5,972,756,000 as at 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB5,346,573,000). The Group
does not intend to remit these unremitted earnings from the
relevant subsidiaries to the Hong Kong holding entity in the
foreseeable future.

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of
approximately RMB12,527,000 (2022: RMB11,101,000)
in respect of losses amounting to approximately
RMB775,211,000 (2022: RMB769,507,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income.



e MR MEE (F)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(2B BARE T (BIEZEHE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

B2 31 DIVIDENDS
RZZE-=FEAMRKEREAA The dividend paid in 2023 was RMB171,135,000 (2022:
R#171,135,0007t( === : RMB223,081,000).

AE#223,081,0007T) °

—EC=F —F_F
2023 2022
AR%T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT —ZF = —4 Final dividend for the year ended
ERBAREER 31 December 2022 of RMB11.00 cents per
AR#11.00% share (2021: RMB14.57 cents per share)
(Z=2=—%F : 8k distributed to ordinary shares
AR¥14.579) 105,336 148,031
TEREIR —Z — =4 Interim dividend for the year ended
ErREARR BB 31 December 2023 of RMB6.82 cents per
AR 6.825 share (2022: RMB7.35 cents per share)
—E__F 5K distributed to ordinary shares
AR®E7.35%) 65,799 75,050
171,135 223,081
REEFER -_F-_MF=A Pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 28 March
“HN\BMRE ARRESE 2024, the board of directors of the Company proposed to distribute
BRRBHE_T_=F1+_F7 total final dividend of approximately RMB106,240,000 (RMB10.82
ST REFENRBRSBE cents per share) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
#9 AR ¥ 106,240,000 7T (& B A RMB11.00 cents per share, approximately RMB105,336,000.
K#1082%) (ZF =% This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in the
BARKILO0OD  HHRARK consolidated financial statements.

105,336,000 7T ° iR EARE
RAEMBHRERPRRAEMNRS
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32 REEEXWNHESE 32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(a) SBRAISBHAIRNBEABTAL (@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash
EELNRS generated from operations
BEZE+=-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E_=F —E-—F
2023 2022
AR¥ET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B AT A5 i 7 Profit before income tax 716,026 670,124
FEEIFRE - Adjustments for:
— TB)E - WEKREMLL  — Depreciation of property, plant and
MG EMEHERE equipment and investment properties
(M95¥14,16) (Notes 14,16) 215,278 204,859
— mAE S (MisE 17) — Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) 126,315 122,796
— FREEENE — Depreciation of right of use assets
(MF5E15) (Note 15) 13,188 11,401
— B (M15E 10) — Finance income (Note 10) (9,429) (11,541)
— WA (B5E10) — Finance costs (Note 10) 381,376 315,850
— BN F5E (Mfi727) — Net foreign exchange gains (Note 7) 76,695 245,598
— L ARBESEBES — Gains on financial assets and financial
T ABTNEHE liabilities at fair value through profit or
B (FEE7) loss (Note 7) (20,774) (82,475)
— SRNEEHEERRIE — Net impairment losses on financial assets
518 558 (MisE 3.1(b)) and contract assets (Note 3.1(b)) 67,397 64,293
— E(REEE DT R A% — Share of results of associates and a joint
HEE (HE11(0) venture (Note 11(b)) (60,146) (46,730)
— BRETEE - MEMFEZ — Gains on disposal of property, plant and
HERFS (b) equipment (b) (6,889) (2,555)
— ZAREANEEE — Changes in fair value of contingent
15E7) consideration (Note 7) — (49,449)
— REMBA TR — Gains on disposal of a subsidiary (997) (10)
— RERERFZEMIE  — Gains on disposal of investments accounted
B Was for using the equity method — (4)
— HAp — Other 1,051 566
1,499,091 1,442,723
LEELEE) Changes in working capital:
—zE — Inventories (51,579) 25,382
— XBRHHRE — Restricted cash (56,529) 54,456
— FEURBR AN E b fEU L — Trade and other receivables (580,692) (236,716)
— FENBRERAE M ER X — Trade and other payables (181,939) (65,792)
— BWNEE — Contract assets 583,191 (303,896)
— EBHBE — Contract liabilities 36,325 (16,152)
(251,223) (542,718)
LEEANRE Cash generated from operations 1,247,868 900,005
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(continued)

of property, plant and equipment comprise:

32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal

BE+T-A=1T—HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—E_= —E- 4
2023 2022
AR¥T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BREVFE (MizE14) Net book amount (Note 14) 10,309 6,796
RETHE  EK Gains on disposal of property, plant and
REBHITNG (HFE7) equipment (Note 7) 6,889 2,555
BRETIE  WEK Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
RAEFT S R0E equipment 17,198 9,351
B FERE (c) Net debt reconciliation

AEETI G EREAMIIROER

SRR AEES -

net debt for each of the periods presented.

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E_= —E- 4
2023 2022
ARET T AREBTTT
B FRE Net debt RMB’000 RMB’000
HEe RIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 964,310 1,340,135
SR HIR & Restricted cash 199,242 134,745
&R Borrowings (6,801,454) (7,203,064)
HEHE Lease liabilities (9,454) (8,455)
B 55 Net debt (5,647,356) (5,736,639)
He Cash 1,163,552 1,474,880
BEi%4a%E — EEA®R  Gross debt — fixed interest rates (1,478,840) (1,520,465)
BETG4E%E — 2 BT Gross debt — variable interest rates (5,322,614) (5,682,599)
HEBRE Lease liabilities (9,454) (8,455)
B F5E Net debt (5,647,356) (5,736,639)
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32 BREEENRE (& 32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(continued)
(c) MEXRFHEAEGHE) (c) Net debt reconciliation (continued)
ReRk
RESEN  BMRE  SRMEE B HEAE 3t
Cash and cash Liquid Restricted Leases
equivalents investment cash Borrowings liability Total

ARRTT  ARETR  ARETR ARRTR ARMTT AREAR
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RWBOOD

W-B-—E-B-REEFE Net debt as at 1 January 2022 1,014,978 30,000 177219 (6,306,022) (9,974)  (5,093,739)
R Cash flows 322,661 (30,000) (42,534) (664,054) 4,539 (409,388)
BEHE New leases = = = = (2,460) (2,460)
EXAEAEMER 2D Foreign exchange adjustments and

other non-cash movements 24% = = (232,983) (560) (231,052)
RIBZZETZA=T-ABHSE  Netdebtasat 31 December 2022 1,340,135 = 134,745 (7,203,064) (8,455  (5,736,639)
R-8Z=5-A-AEKRE Net debt as at 1 January 2023 1,340,135 - 134,745 (7,203,064) (8455  (5,736,639)
Réng Cash flows (375,208) - 64,497 488,301 3,855 181,445
nEtE New leases = - - — (4,347) (4.347)
B AEALER S Foreign exchange adjustments and

other non-cash movements (617) - - (86,691) (507) (87,815)
RIBZZETZA=T-AERFE  Netdebtasat 31 December 2023 964,310 - 199,242 (6,801,454) (9,454)  (5,647,356)
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33 HEEHE 33 CONTINGENCIES
RZBEZ=F+=ZA=+—HEKZ= As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group did
T-_—F+-_A=+—H KA&£H not have any material contingent liabilities.
EmEANBAME-
34 AF® 34 COMMITMENTS
(@) EXRFEE (@) Capital commitments
R EEREFTHERBEZER Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of each reporting
AT period, but not yet incurred is as follows:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—=2-= —E- 4
2023 2022
ARET T AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
¥ mgERGES  Capital investment to Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund
BRI E 3,600,000 3,600,000
YH L N FEARMRE  Capital investment to associate 1,230 6,119
THE - BEMK Property, plant and equipment 18,861 15,628
3,620,091 3,621,747
(b) REEERAR (b) Licensing fee commitments
R+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—EC-=F —F__F
2023 2022
ARET T AREBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TiBiE—F Not later than one year 1,100 1,100
BiB—FETHBBRF Later than one year and no later than five years 4,400 4,400
HBidAF Later than five years 4,400 5,500
9,900 11,000
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35

BB E RS

BT RIE— T RRENESE T
REEMBMELERR LBMEKR
B - NEHRARES - TEE
B FREAEE o

$$EE%§E%?%%%%WI
WAREBEERAAIZES - Z2
HeBEERBRA EK%%%%R
BEIMKL) 2EHE WK
HRmS A « FREERA L -~ RE
RS (B [EARARER ]) 42l -

LWTRRAEBE_ZE _=F+=A
= +—HERZZE-_Z=_F+=A
=+ —HBIEFE - ANE B LR
FRAREBETNEZMH IR
SHE UER-_FT=-_=F+=
A=+—HBkZ= "::¢+ A
= +—BHEHERE S
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35

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control.

The Group is controlled by Tian Lun Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Gold Shine Development Limited (incorporated
in the BVI), and is ultimately controlled by Mr. Zhang Yingcen, Ms.
Sun Yanxi and Mr. Zhang Daoyuan (“Controlling Shareholders”).

The following is a summary of the significant transactions carried
out between the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course
of business during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2023, and balances arising from related party transactions
as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
BEA B RER (@) Name and relationship with related parties
RAEE S 2B e
Name of related party Relationship
BRN T REEHE AR

Suzhou Pingzhuang

L ERIR
Shengiu Jieyuan

DE=Y::ES

Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas

Bl RESEE
Guotian Hebi

B R FTE L
Guotian Pingdingshan

FFEEIR
Xu Chang Guotian

ESFTEEIR
Xinyang New Energy

ARBRER RES

Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund

AR TRR
Henan Yutian

ARARRRTIERERRAR (NUEXRIRE])

Henan Tian Lun Gas Engineering Investment Limited

(“Henan Tian Lun Investment”)

AmXmEHEARAR (AR XREBE])

Henan Tian Lun Real Estate Group Limited

(“Henan Tian Lun Real Estate”)

A RNRREEREERR AR (IRERmREZER])
Henan Tian Lun Investment Holdings Group Limited

(“Henan Tian Lun Investment Holdings”)

Associate of the Group

NG EHE = A A
Associate of the Group

i SIE Tk /NS
Associate of the Group

NS5 EHE A A
Associate of the Group

AR EHE A A A
Associate of the Group

i SIE Tk /NE]|
Associate of the Group

i SIE kNS
Associate of the Group

REBEEMRE
Joint venture of the Group

AEBRERMEDIES 2 AF]

Controlled by Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund

ERBRE2ERAZ AT

Wholly owned by the Controlling Shareholders

ERERE2ERALZ AT

Wholly owned by the Controlling Shareholders

ERBRREERAZ AT

Wholly owned by the Controlling Shareholders
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35 BBMAERS (& 35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) EXBEAIXS (b) Significant related party transactions
REE BB ET NIERR The Group had the following significant transactions with related
Z o parties.

BE+T-A=1T—-HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MRRHEE Sales of gas
BRI Suzhou Pingzhuang 24,450 27,020
MEIEZRE SN Henan Yutian 206,518 180,985
230,968 208,005
BE+=-A=1t—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EMBEE Purchase of raw materials
EIEZDE TN Henan Yutian 834 1,516
BEZ+=-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—EC=HF —ToF
2023 2022
AR#ET ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB TRERS Construction Service
MENEZRE SN Henan Yutian 190,846 570,684
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35 BMARE (& 35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) EXBELIRS(E) (b) Significant related party transactions (continued)

BE+=-A=1T—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-=F —E- 4
2023 2022
AR¥ET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
H At R 7% Other Service
B R T L Guotian Pingdingshan 47,757 —
i RS R 5 B B EE IR These transactions are carried out on terms agreed with the counter
A 1h e A R FGEETT o party in the ordinary course of business.
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35 BEBARS (& 35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(c) CEERFEER W&RR (c) Balances with related parties
R+=—H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUBRF A E M EUER  Trade and other receivables
— A EBRX — Henan Yutian 1,114,588 450,034
— A mEKXEEE — Henan Tian Lun Investment 13,597 13,597
— BXFETEIL — Guotou Pingdingshan 3,427 —
1,131,612 463,631
R+=-—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E_= T F
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BHEE Contract assets
— A EEkx — Henan Yutian 2,119,416 2,695,196
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35 BHARS (& 35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(c) EERAEEASMALER(2) (c) Balances with related parties (continued)
B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-=F —E-_F
2023 2022
ARET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R A EMAETR Trade and other payables
— AREEX — Henan Yutian 4,363 12,231
— S X GEE — Henan Tian Lun Investment 42 =
— RN — Suzhou Pingzhuang 212 211
— AEIHER — Inner Mongolia Petroleum and Gas 870 2,600
— LE2IR — Shengqiu Jieyuan 1,202 1,202
6,689 16,244
R+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—BIZ=HF —ET_F
2023 2022
ARET T AREBTTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEE Contract liabilities
— RN FEE — Suzhou Pingzhuang 125 103
(d) BREEASHH (d) Key management compensation

BE+t-A=1T—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E_=F —E-_F

2023 2022

AR¥T T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

EARF S M2 Basic salaries and allowances 23,098 23,096
HeRpESL L Social security payments 2,346 1,390
25,444 24,486
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35 BEARS (&) 35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(e) BEBHLRMEHER (e) Guarantee received from related parties
R—E_=F+-_A=+—8" As at 31 December 2023, Mr. Zhang Yingcen, Ms. Sun Yanxi,
M E - R T - ?ELL?E Mr. Zhang Daoyuan and the related parties wholly owned by

&E BERBRTERERERE controlling shareholders of the Company, which were Henan Tian
A ARIEE RO E KX mEID Lun Investment Holdings, Henan Tian Lun Investment and Henan
E‘Eﬁ$%/\§ﬁ§l,94l,255,000 Tian Lun Real Estate provided guarantee to the bank borrowings of
(T _—F+-_A=+—H: the Group amounting to RMB1,941,255,000 (31 December 2022:
AR #2,296,980,0007T ) HER1T RMB2,296,980,000) (Note 29).

fER IR IR (£ 29) -

f) HHEREYN (f)  Financial guarantee contracts

NES B B B TR R IR T 18 IR The Group provided guarantees to bank borrowings of Henan Yutian.

1% RZEZ=F+=HA=+— As at 31 December 2023, the guaranteed borrowings of Henan
A RmRRER AR (RER) R Yutian amounted to 432,400,000 (2022: RMB458,400,000). The

)\E?ﬁﬁ432,400,000ﬁ(:%:: Group undertaken 50% guarantee obligation of the aforesaid total

F: AR#¥458,400,0007T) ° A borrowings.

SEAER A AREREEE 0% Wz

RETE °

R-ZEBE-_ZTFXA-_+WTA: A On 24 June 2020, one shareholder of Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund

MRERMESH —BRERM provided an entrusted guarantee agreement with a maximum amount

MRREHRT =B ERDBE to Henan Yutian to secure a financing facility from 9 January 2020

LAW%Q —EEF-ANABRZE to 12 July 2024 with a maximum outstanding principal amount

—E_NFLA+_BHRMER of RMB3,000,000,000. The Group has entered into a counter-

B ERABREeEAARE guarantee agreement with a maximum amount which provides a

3,000,000,0007T ° ZFS'%@%’TI% counter guarantee to the shareholder of Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund.

SRERERGZ @ AAEERE XM The total amount of the counter-guarantee liability assumed by the

HEWBRRIBEHRER - AEEIR Group under the counter-guarantee agreement shall not exceed the

BRERBERAENREREER value of the shares in Henan Yuzi Tianlun Fund.

ENMSEBEHTERE R GES

AR RI(EE °

BEERE  AEBZEHAOMEER In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the financial

BHNAABEITERK ° guarantee contracts of the Group provided were insignificant.
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WMEHREE 36 EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
REEEER _FT_NF=A Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors on 28 March
“HNHERE EFeEaKE 2024, a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 of
BE_ZT_=F+-_HA=+—H1IF RMB10.82 cents per share was proposed. The proposal is subject to
FENRHARESRARE10.82 approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, details refer to
Do AR M A ERITRAR R Note 31.
RAFER EFUE  FBEBE2EH
BfE31 °
AABMBERRTR 37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
B EER RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
AR BRI TR Statement of financial position of the Company
R+=HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—EBC=F —E-_F
2023 2022
MI5E ARET T ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
H1th fE U R Other receivables 5,908 375
UAREEFER Financial assets at fair value through
HEFT ABRA profit or loss
EREE 11,057 80,687
B A TIRE Investments in subsidiaries 11(a) 129,220 129,220
146,185 210,282
REEE Current assets
H b U Other receivables 1,492,272 2,551,688
NAREEGTER Financial assets at fair value through
HEB)t A Bz profit or loss
EEE 160,567 54,712
ZRHIR® Restricted cash 131,628 98,360
REeRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 62,077 58,573
1,846,544 2,763,333
EEHE Total assets 1,992,729 2,973,615
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37 ARARMBARTRK
EEBEBER (&

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

EARMBRREK (E)

Statement of financial position of the Company

(continued)
R+=—H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-=F —E-F
2023 2022
BisE AR#ETR AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ERLEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BERAATMEE Equity attributable to owners of
2R the Company
B&ZR Share capital 8,264 8,511
ERERS Treasure shares (Ft7ENote (a)) (73,233) (158,925)
It = E Share premium (Fff zENote (a)) 81,317 341,096
M Reserves (K47ENote (a)) 19,179 19,179
RETEE Accumulated losses (Fft5ENote (a)) (1,009,777) (713,991)
A Total equity (974,250) (504,130)
aE LIABILITIES
FRBARE Non-current liabilities
B Borrowings 1,308,269 2,525,069
REBEE Current liabilities
RN Borrowings 1,635,204 909,001
E At FET R Other payables 23,506 43,675
1,658,710 952,676
BEA%E Total liabilities 2,966,979 3,477,745
HERREE Total equity and liabilities 1,992,729 2,973,615
sExelN _ZE_mWE=/F_—_+/\H Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
O FT AT o March 2024.
RS EE BEIRIR &
Mr. Zhang Yingcen Mr. Xian Zhenyuan
Eoa EE
Director Director
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37 ARARMBARTRK
EEBEBER (&

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

W@ ARBERFR  ROEE - &

Note (a): Treasure shares, share premium, reserves and accumulated losses

HBEREEEEEER movements of the Company
EFR B4 E eS| &
Treasury Accumulated

shares Share premium losses Reserves

ARETT ARETFT ARBTIT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR=ZT=-—%—H—H At1 January 2022 (200,697) 528,133 (837,680) 19,179

FEFE Profit for the year = = 123,689 —

ST EAR REARR S, Interim and final dividends paid = (223,081) — —

A% [El8E Repurchase of shares (255,911) — — —

(A=l Issuance of shares upon

placement — 333,369 — —

A% Cancellation of shares 297,683 (297,325) — —
R-TB-—F At 31 December 2022

+=—A=+—H (158,925) 341,096 (713,991) 19,179

MR-ZZE-_=%—HF—H At1 January 2023 (158,925) 341,096 (713,991) 19,179

FEEE Loss for the year — — (295,786) —

PR EAR REARS S Interim and final dividends paid — (171,135) — _

A&7 [E1 88 Repurchase of shares (3,199) — — =

fEicliiar) Cancellation of shares 88,891 (88,644) — _
R-B=-=F At 31 December 2023

+=HA=+—H (73,233) 81,317 (1,009,777) 19,179
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38 EEMFMmMELE(F 38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

BCATERDID (£ 622 DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
F)E 3831 (AT BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
(HEEENRER) KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
BOINE6226E) & 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
EHRARENIKE) INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF

DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) EEBERITEHARTM (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
BHREERITHAHMNSIMT The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is set out
below:
BHE_ZT-_=F+-A=+—HIL For the year ended 31 December 2023:
FE
AERRATL,
-0 I
LENERRR
BUEH AtESHRER
LY big i AEAR FGET L
ik #¢ Kk EhEA [ £3:5 RAZHZE e @
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of

director's other
senvices in

connection with

the management

Employer's Other benefits of the affairs

Allowances contribution  and share-hased  of the Company

Discretionary and benefits o a retirement compensation or its subsidiary
4 Name Fees Salaries honuses inkind  benefit scheme expenses undertaking Total
AB®TT ARBTR ARETR AR#TR ARBTR AR®TR AB#TT ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FRARE Mr. Zhang Yingcen - 780 - 27 34 — — 841
BARsEH M. Liu Min = 555 = - - - - 555
E>-1a Ms. Li Tao - 486 - 10 9 - - 505
L3 Mr. Liu jin 54 = = - - — - 54
£ Fid Mr. Li Liuging 60 - = = = - - 60
#ELT Ms. Zhao Jun %5 — = = = - - 2%
Fhut M. Qin Ling* - 50 = = - - - 50
BTRRT Ms. Ou Yaqun 60 - = = = - - 60
Rixt Ms. Chen Hong 60 - = = - - - 60
FEERE Mr. Zhang Daoyuan* 35 - = = = = - 35
EEERE" Mr. Lei Chunyong* 35 = = = = _ - 35
Bl e Ms. Zhou Lin* 35 - = = = = - 35

it : Chief executive officer:

HRRLE Mr. Xian Zhenyuan - 600 - 27 34 = = 661
364 2471 - 64 i - - 2,976
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38 EEMFMmMELE(F 38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

(R ARG (5 622 DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
= =
E)E 3831k - (A FH BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG
== AW ? N
(HEESEREER) KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
=r
BB (E6226E) K 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
EFHRARENHE) INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
(42 DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)
(@) EBERTHRARETH(E) (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)
BE-T-_—_+-_HA=+—H1F For the year ended 31 December 2022:
R
FERART
ARBARRE
2HR RN Apid  EERBHmRE
e i Hfste B MELHR  RRGRARH &ME@(}@F &
ther
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
director' offer
services in
connection with
the management
Employer's Other benefits of the affairs
Allowances contribution  and share-based  of the Company
Discretionary and benefits ~ to a retirement compensation or its subsidiary
A Name Fees Salaries bonuses inkind  benefit scheme expenses undertaking Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ABETT ARETT ARETT ABETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FRALE M. Zhang Yingoen = 780 = 2% 2 = = 836
ARss Mr. Liu Min - 604 - - - = = 604
£ Tan Ms. Li Tao = 484 = 10 = = 503
By Mr. Liu Jin® 132 = = = = = = 132
SRERE Mr. Li Liuging 60 = = = = = = 60
HELL* Ms. Zhao Jun* 60 = = = = = = 60
ZRht Ms. Qin Ling = 605 = = = = — 605
ETERT Ms. Ou Yaqun 60 = = = - - - 60
Rt Ms. Chen Hong 60 = = = = = = 60
it : Chief executive officer:
RREE Mr. Xian Zhenyuan = 600 = % 2 - - 65
312 3073 = 58 73 = = 3,576
* 2k RZE-=F XA @ Mr Liu Jin: resigned with effect on 2 June 2023.
—HEHE -
HEZLT WZZT-_=%,H Ms Zhao Jun: resigned with effect on 2 June 2023.
—HEHE -
B+t RZE-_=F=A1 Ms Qin Ling: resigned with effect on 16 March 2023.
+ABEHT -
RERILE: R_TE_=F Mr. Zhang Daoyuan: appointed with effect on 2 June 2023.
AZHAXfE-
EEBLEE  RZE-_=FX Mr. Lei Chunyong: appointed with effect on 2 June 2023.
AZBXfF-
Bt RZE-_=%FXA Ms. Zhou Lin: appointed with effect on 2 June 2023.
“HEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(2 FRETBARET T (FIFZEHA))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG

KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year, no retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by the directors in respect of their services as directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries or other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking (2022: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year, no payments or benefits in respect of termination
of directors’ services were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year, no consideration was provided to or receivable by
third parties for making available directors’ services (2022: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(ZFREMBARET T (BGIHFEEHPE))

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)
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(e)

(f)

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG

KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year, there are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

During the year, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2022: Nil).
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE+-—A=t+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December
E4 —EC=F T -fF 2o ZZEZTF ZTNF
RESULTS 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ARETT ARETET ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

WA Revenue 7,725,448 7,542,859 7,650,345 6,439,777 6,548,618
EF Gross profit 1,452,847 1,392,909 1,779,119 1,786,125 1,703,892
MRS E AU A Profit before income tax 716,026 670,124 1,362,804 1,418,375 1,127,380
5T &R Income tax expense (209,749) (200,852) (334,690) (354,702) (313,915)
FEAE Profit for the year 506,277 469,272 1,028,114 1,063,673 813,465
Rt+t=B=+—8
As at 31 December
EE - BERER —E-= T -4 ZEZTF ZT-hF
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

ARBTRE ARETT AREBTIT ARBTIT AR®TRT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'O00  RMB'000

EE Total assets 15,690,524 15,958,734 15,104,836 12,918,138 11,938,781
FEN=N Total liabilities 9,578,703 10,136,064 9,576,462 7,937,851 7,751,461
st e Total equity 6,111,821 5,822,670 5,528,374 4,980,287 4,187,320
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